EIH

ENERGY INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREERREERBIIRA A

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability 735 £ B & s it 32 2 AR A 7))
(Stock code B&n 5% : 353)

* For identification purpose only

ERal

ANNUAL

REPORT
£ & 2011




CONTENTS
H &

Corporate Information

Management Discussion and Analysis
Biographical Details of Directors

Corporate Governance Report

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Income Statement
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

ARER
ERENREH N
EFAEEE
CEERRE
EFEHEE
B B E S
GARER
HA2ERAR
GARBRAE

B TSR R

3
o
BX
REk
&
2

2
op
Nii
k>
=4
ftin

MK

ERERREZRERAT « —

Pages
AR

23

38

41

43

44

46

47

48

50




CORPORATE INFORMATION
AEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Luo Nianru

Mr. Chan Kwok Wing
Mr. Wang Donghai
Ms. Wang Meiyan
Mr. Yang Guangming

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Choi Chi Fai
Mr. Wang Jinghua

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Choi Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jinghua

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Choi Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jinghua

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Choi Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jinghua

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Wang Meiyan
Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

EExg
BITES
&AM
PREIS 5
ERBALE

TR L
BIREE

BYFHITES

BEEEE
ITEELE

BEREES

BEBEERE (Z2E)
TRERE

FHWEES

BEBEE (ZE)
TRERE

REEES

M

P AED D)
54
REBWE
ERIG T 1S
RENX
Exmut
EPIE F 3
AR ER

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

=+
o
5

2 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2011



CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREH

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1508, 15th Floor
The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 484, HSBC House

68 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1106
Cayman lIslands

LEGAL ADVISERS TO THE COMPANY

As to Hong Kong Law:
Hui & Lam Solictors
Room 1505-6

The Center

99 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong

As to Cayman Islands Law:
Conyers Dills & Pearman
2901 One Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place

Central, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

25th Floor, Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

EREEANEERITEEREH

)
ERREBEHINR
IR
15#1508%

BERDBFERIE

BEEERERAA
B

SR ANBR28%

© $EIE P 02618

TEROBFERE

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 484, HSBC House

68 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1106
Cayman Islands

KRB EEER

BEZ
REAREEDTT
BETR

2R RNEFIIHR
IR
1505-6 %

FH S S EE -
Conyers Dills & Pearman
EEBRIR

R4 E 585
RHES— 2901 =

BB ED

EENEERGTMEEAMARAR
B

FHBEFR1115%

X% 251

HERERREZRERAT « —T— —FFRH




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN®E D

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded revenue
from its continuing operations of approximately HK$231 million (2010:
HK$44 million (re-presented)) and loss before income tax from its
continuing operations was approximately HK$66 million (2010: a profit
of HK$533 million (re-presented)). It was mainly due to the absence
of the gain from excess of acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
cost of approximately HK$606 million which were recorded in the last
year and impairment loss of goodwill of approximately HK$65 million
during the year. Moreover, the discontinued operations recorded a
loss of approximately HK$1 million (2010: loss of HK$351 million (re-
presented)).

CARPET TRADING BUSINESS

The market environment of carpet trading continued to be extremely
competitive. During the year, no revenue (2010: HK$1 million) is
recorded by the Group and incurred a loss of approximately HK$1
million (2010: HK$2 million) in carpet trading business. The Board
decided to cease this segment of operation.

ELECTRICITY AND HEAT BUSINESS

The Group acquired a 60% interest of Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi
Heat and Power Company Limited (“Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi”) in
August 2010. Year 2011 was the first full-year of its operation to be
consolidated into the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi
generated sales revenue of approximately HK$103.8 million. It reported
a profit of approximately HK$6.9 million before (i) impairment loss
on goodwill of approximately HK$64.7 million (ii) amortisation of
intangible assets of approximately HK$16.5 million (iii) gain on
extinguishment of non-current borrowings of approximately HK$1.8
million, and (iv) finance costs of approximately HK$5 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD

In 2011, the unfavourable situation for coal-fired power generation
enterprises remained unchanged because of rising coal prices and
rigid electricity tariff controls in the market. During the year, high coal
prices which led to increase in production cost significantly outpaced
the modest increase in selling price of electricity. Subsequent to the
on-grid tariff adjustment announced by the National Development and
Reform Commission (“NDRC”) in June 2011, in order to ease the coal-
electricity pricing inconsistency and to ensure stability of the electricity
supply, the NDRC further announced the electricity tariff adjustment
in December 2011. The new tariff increase was effective from 1
December 2011 and the financial impact of such tariff adjustment
would be reflected in 2012.

Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi, being the only central heat source/supplier
in Lingshi county, maintains a close relationship with the local
government of Lingshi county. We renewed the heat supply agreement
with the Central Heat Transmit Station for the period from November
2011 to March 2012 with terms materially the same as those of last
winter period. During the year, in addition to the heat revenue of
approximately HK$23 million, we received aggregate government
grants of approximately HK$37 million for the heat business.

The management will continue to review our collaboration with the
local government for the heat supply in Lingshi county to ensure that
our heat business remains commercially sound.

OIL BUSINESS

In 2011, the global economy continues to show signs of volatility as
concerns over the sovereign debt crisis in Europe, linger and a spate of
mixed economic data points to slowing recovery in the United States.
Despite of numerous uncertainties including the fluctuations of United
States dollars and regional political uncertainties especially in Northern
Africa and speculative activities, the PRC’s economy is expected to
maintain a rapid growth and demand in crude oil and refined products
markets is expected to rise accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD

The results of operations and costs incurred in oil business are detailed
below. In the second half of 2011, over 40,000 metric tonnes of
crude oil was produced from the oil field and met the requirement
under the cooperation contract entered into between China National
Petroleum Corporation and China Era Energy Power Investment Limited
on 13 August 2007 for proceeding to the production period. Thus,
the production period was commenced in 2011 and the production
period will continue for 20 years. The management expects that the oil
business will continue to generate revenue and contribute profit to the
Group in the year of 2012.

(a) Results of operations

BHERZCEEBERITS 2 RAFEINT o
ZE——FTHF HEEDEBIBE40,0002 1 R
S E B B R KA R E A A EE A B A AR A
BREBRARR-ZEZ+FENA+=BHFTIL
ZEERE 2T AEAEER - A - 4 EH
BEZT——FHG TS E0F - ERER
HAREBR T —FHEEARNEESRI
7 Nom A B B o

(a) WEXE

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—H

W“FE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
g% L
FTHET FHEIT
Net sales to customers ERHEFE 127,544 -
Other income H A 13,465 -
Operating expenses LER X (65,264) -
Depreciation e (19,114) -
Special petroleum revenue tax AR R ER T (26,037) -
Result of operations before income tax BB SZAIL L 25
expenses 30,594 -
(b) Costs incurred in oil exploration and (b) AHMEBIERBEREZHAX
development
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—H
WFE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2——F —E-TF
FHERT FET
Exploration costs BV R A = -
Development costs i 2 AR A 139,045 -
Total costs incurred FFr 51 B4 A AN 139,045 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD

EXPLORATION AND MINING BUSINESS

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 26 and 27
August 2010 and the Company’s 2010 interim report, the Board, to its
astonishment, found out that as from 31 January 2010 the exploration
licence held by QHFSMI, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company incorporated in the PRC, had been transferred to a company
known as A & /NMILILREZBEZEEGR 2 A (in English, for identification
purpose only, Inner Mongolia Xiao Hong Shan Yuen Xian Mining
Industry Company Limited), which is wholly-owned by Ms. Margaret
Lai Ching LEUNG beneficially through a company known as Yuenxian
Mining Industry Holding Company Limited, without the Company’s
knowledge, consent or approval. Due to the loss of the exploration
licence, it is the Board’s current intention to suspend the Group’s
exploration and mining business until the Group regains control of
QHFSMI and the exploration licence.

Upon taking the advice from the legal advisers and legal counsel
of the Company, the Company will take further legal action in the
PRC and continue to seek advice from its PRC legal advisers. Further
announcement(s) will be issued by the Company as and when
necessary to comply with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

FUTURE PLAN AND PROSPECTS
(i) Electricity and heat business

In pursuit of a more environmentally friendly economy, the
PRC government released an outline of the 12th Five-Year Plan
on environmental protection in December 2011. It sets new
goals for major pollutants reduction between 2011 and 2015,
such as sewage treatment, desulfurization and denitrification.
Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi will endeavor to strengthen its efforts
on environmental protection measures and to enhance energy
efficiency. In 2012, we will commence the construction work of
sewage treatment zero-emission project. During the 12th Five-
Year Plan, we will strive to achieve the remaining new emission
standards by enhancing our environmental protection facilities
on our coal-fired power generating units.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN WD

(i)

In December 2011,
nationwide increases in tariff together with caps on spot coal
prices. We anticipate that these measures can mitigate the
impact of high coal prices in 2012.

the NDRC announced a substantial

With the trend of high coal prices and tighter government’s
environmental protection policies, the challenges that we face
in 2012 are mainly to (i) maintain a tight control on production
costs; and (ii) meet the new emission standards requirement.
We have taken initiatives in strengthening internal control
and enhancing production and operation efficiency, thereby
improving financial performance of the electricity and heat
business.

Oil business

In 2011, the global economy is expected to revive more notably
and China’s economy continues to bloom. Despite of numerous
uncertainties including the fluctuations of US dollars and
regional political uncertainties especially in Northern Africa and
speculative activities, China's economy is expected to maintain
a rapid growth and demand in crude oil and refined products
markets is expected to rise accordingly.

In the coming year, the Company will continue with a high level
of exploration and production activities, aiming to increase its
production capacity and reserves. The Company will continue to
place great emphasis on its scientific and geological researches,
increased efforts to make breakthroughs on key techniques,
strengthened the meticulous exploration of mature oil field,
actively pushed forward venture exploration in oil field.

In the meantime, various measures will be deployed for
the maintenance of wells in oil field, including stabilising
and controlling the production rate of aged wells, and
implementing the maintenance project for water injections
wells. As the key personnel for the operation of Petroleum
Business will be retained despite the completion of acquisition,
the operation of Petroleum Business shall continue in a

substantially same way.

(i)
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BAEESEERHFTEERE KER L
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FRaEBreE-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD

The Group will drill around 192 more production wells in the
year of 2012. These 192 new wells are expected to contribute
to the oil production during the year of 2012. Taking into
accounts the production capacity of other existing wells and
facilities, it is estimated that the annual oil production of the oil
field of the Lower Cretaceous System Quantou Formation Third
Member Yangdachengzi Layer which is situated at Liangjing
Block of Songliao Basin at Jilin Province of the PRC in 2012
will be approximately 156,000 metric tonnes (equivalent to
1,144,000 barrels of oil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2011 was
approximately HK$231 million. The administrative expenses for the
year ended 31 December 2011 were approximately HK$30 million,
which represented an increase of 47% compared to the administrative
expenses incurred last year.

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2011 was approximately HK$62 million, as compared to
a profit of approximately HK$185 million in the previous corresponding
year. The loss was mainly resulted from the absence of the gain
from excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost of
approximately HK$606 million and the impairment loss in goodwill
approximately HK$65 million.

As a significant portion of the Group’s sales and purchases were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, the Directors
considered the Group has no significant exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations in view of the stability of the exchange rates of Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi. During the year under review, the Group
did not use any hedging instrument.

CURRENT AND GEARING RATIOS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$3,146 million (2010: HK$3,176 million), total liabilities of
approximately HK$880 million (2010: HK$883 million), indicating a
gearing ratio of 0.28 (2010: 0.28) on the basis of total liabilities over
total assets. The current ratio of the Group for the year was 0.96
(2010: 1.16) on basis of current assets over current liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN®E D

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had interest-bearing bank
borrowings of approximately HK$12 million (2010: HK$33 million)
and pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$976,000 (2010:
HK$945,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2010: Nil).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2011, the Group employed approximately 450
full-time employees (2010: 517). The Group’s emolument policies
are formulated on the performance of individual employees and
are reviewed annually in line with industry practice. The Group also
provides provident fund schemes (as the case may be) to its employees
depending on the location of such employees.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

INFORMATION OF OIL RESERVES

Changes in estimated quantities of proved crude oil reserves for the
year ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 are indicated as follows:

EERA

R—B——F+-_A=+—HB AEEAH:
BiIR 1T 412,000,000 T (ZE—FF:
33,000,000/ 7T ) & B ERTT1F 549976,000/%
T (ZZ—Z 4 :945,00087C) °
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AmEEESR

BE_Z——HR_FT-FTF+_A=1+—HL
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—Z2——F+=A=+-A
T-TEE) -

Crude oil

PRC

(millions of Tonnes)

R 2 R

(E&m)

Reserves as at 1 January 2010 —E-ETFE-A-HZH=E -
Changes results from: FATEEmMESZ8) :

Acquisition I i 3.796

Reserves as at 31 December 2010 —E-EFSF_A=+—HZ#HE 3.796
Changes results from: EATEEMmMESZH :

Production HE (0.029)

Reserves as at 31 December 2011 RZB——F+ZA=Z+—HBZRE 3.767

Note: Based on the Group's share of participated interests in the oil field et BREAEEZEHFRZEHEROENME L2

through jointly controlled operations.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Luo Nianru, aged 60, was appointed as executive Director of the
Company in November 2011. He graduated from Sichuan Provincial
Institute of Economic Management with a degree in Economic
and Management. He has over 40 years of working experience in
exploration and exploitation of the petroleum industry. He has acted as
the deputy director of the Manager of Ministry of Foreign of the China
National Petroleum Corporation (the “CNPC") from August 2002 to
June 2011 and the deputy director of the Sichuan Petroleum Board

Authority of the CNPC from May 1998 to July 2002.

Mr. Chan Kwok Wing, aged 54, was appointed as executive Director
of the Company in July 2009. He has been working in securities
brokerage and funds management professions. Wholly devoted to
petroleum and natural gas upstream development arena since 2006,
he participated in discussions on various petroleum and natural gas
projects in China and internationally, including Africa, central Asia and
America, accumulating rich and extensive experience in exploration,
exploitation and production. He was an executive director and chief
executive officer of China Energy Development Holdings Limited
(stock code: 228), a company listed on the Main board of the Stock
Exchange, for a period from October 2009 to December 2009.

Mr. Wang Donghai, aged 59, was appointed as executive Director of
the Company in September 2009. He has extensive experience in all
oil-related areas, including oil production, exploration, development
and investment economics, investment and financial management,
infrastructure and overall operations of oilfields. He has been acted
as the Head of the Gudong Oil Production Centre (one of the largest
oil production centres of the Shengli Oilfield) since 2000; He also has
been a visiting professor at the Nanjing University since 2001, teaching
post-graduate and graduate students on subjects including oil field

exploration and development, oil economics and state security.

Ms. Wang Meiyan, aged 49, was appointed as executive Director
of the Company in January 2011. She graduated from a vocational
education institute. She was a senior officer of the Office of Dongying
Municipal Committee, Shandong Province, Geology Research Institute
of Shengli Oilfield (& 7| h H #E #95P ) , Huaren Group of Shenyang
Military Area Command (JE[5E @ #E{Z&E ), Chinese Enterprises
Daguan Magazine ( R Bl{d ¥ KB #5541 ) , the Association of Chinese
Enterprises Television Stations (FEI{(PEEHR S Z ), American Pan
Asia Investment Group Corporation (FEEZ 35 #% & % ® A 7)) and
Kashgar project of Tarim Oilfield in Xinjiang. Ms. Wang has extensive
experience in corporate management and leadership.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEBEFR

Mr. Yang Guangming, aged 64, was appointed as executive
Director of the Company in January 2011. He obtained his diploma in
petroleum geology from Jilin Petroleum School (FH#M&E A HER A
JRHE ) in September 1983 and his degree or diploma of Petroleum
Exploitation Geology in China University of Geosciences ( ¥ Bl /&
AERHBEZEME ) in 1991. He worked in Oil Extraction Plant No. 2
of lilin Oil Field Group (& #l B H =& ) from 1970 to 2002, and
he worked in the same group as the head of the geological research
institute in 1983 and as chief geologist in 1994. From December
2002 to July 2007, He worked as deputy general manager in charge
of the production and chief geologist in Jilin Petroleum Natural
Gas Development Limited (EMABRKARFAEEREE AT .
As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 11 October 2010, He
currently is a member of the management team of certain subsidiaries
of the Company engaged in the petroleum resources development and
production business. He is responsible for supervising the operation of
production, in particulars to ensure that the operation complies with
the applicable laws, regulations, safety and environment requirements.
He is also responsible for making necessary arrangement in the
production line and planning for production schedule.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Choi Chi Fai, aged 34, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director of the Company in July 2011. He holds a Bachelor
Degree of Business Administration in Accounting from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. Mr. Choi is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over
10 years of experience in internal and external auditing, merger and
acquisition, and direct investment. Currently, Mr. Choi is the Associate
Director of CCB International Asset Management Limited (the
“CCBIAM™). CCBIAM s ultimately controlled by China Construction
Bank Corporation, which is listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
939) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: CH. 601939).

Mr. Wang Jinghua, aged 30, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director of the Company in July 2011. He graduated from
University of Exeter, United Kingdom. He holds two Bachelor of Arts
degrees with major in Internet Computing and Economics & Finance
and a Master of Science degree with International Management.
From 2009, Mr. Wang acted as a General Manager Assistant in China
Western Holdings Co., Ltd. He has most experience in the investment
program and contract in the urban construction project.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance, holding the beliefs of transparency, honesty and
accountability. The Board of directors of the Company considers that
sound corporate management and governance practices are essential
to the Company’s healthy growth under all business environments.
Therefore, we continuously review and improve our corporate
governance standards to ensure maximum compliance with the
relevant laws and codes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year review, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange for the year
ended 31 December 2011 except that (i) the non-executive directors
of the Company are not appointed for any specific terms as they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles
of Association; and (ii) the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
do not separate as the Company is still looking for a suitable candidate
to fill the vacancy of chairman and the chief executive officer after the
retirement of Mr. Tam Owen at the 2009 annual general meeting of
the Company. Further announcement will be made by the Company
upon fulfillment of this requirement under the Listing Rules. With
effect from 1 January 2012, following the resignation of Mr. Sun Tak
Keung, the number of the independent non-executive directors fall
below the minimum number required under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors by Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiries made, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year.
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3 'M\Aﬁﬂ:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board determines and keeps under review the objectives of the
Group. It makes decisions on overall strategies and actions necessary
for achieving these objectives, monitors and controls financial and
operating performance, formulates appropriate policies, and identifies
and ensures best practices of corporate governance. The Board
members are fully committed to their roles and have acted in good
faith to maximise the Shareholders’ value in the long run, and have
aligned the Group's goals and directions with the prevailing economic
and market conditions. Daily operations and administration are
delegated to the management.

The Board comprises a balanced number of executive Directors
and non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) that can ensure there is adequate independent judgment for
the running of the Company’s business. The members of the Board
comprise experts from various professions with extensive experience.
One of the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. In all corporate communications, the Company
had disclosed the composition of the Board according to the categories
and responsibilities of the directors.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
members, including five executive Directors and two independent non-
executive Directors. The Board members during the year and up to the
date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Law Fei Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 1 January 2012)
Mr. Luo Nianru (appointed on 7 November 2011)
Mr. Chan Sung Wai (resigned on 12 April 2011)
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing
Mr. Wang Donghai
Ms. Wang Meiyan (appointed on 25 January 2011)
Mr. Yang Guangming (appointed on 25 January 2011)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Choi Chi Fai (appointed on 1 July 2011)

Mr. Wang Jinghua (appointed on 1 July 2011)
Mr. Lum Pak Sum (resigned on 1 July 2011)

Mr. Sun Tak Keung (resigned on 1 January 2012)
Mr. Chow Pui Fung (resigned on 1 July 2011)
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Biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at the date
of this annual report are set out in the “Biographical Details of
Directors” section on pages 11 to 12 of this annual report. None of
the Directors has any financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of its independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmation,
the Company considers that the three independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, 17 full Board meetings
were held and details of attendance is set out as follows:

RAFHAY ARREETREHFTHRAFR
FNEERNE [EEEEFHE] —H-EFEX
BreRIYENH XH REXHEMEKNKIEH
BAR -

Rz EWARAIE3A3MG ARBEKREIZ B
HITEE NFEBUBRE - REFMBRRE
NE ARBARB=RBIUIFEATERTHBEILRN
ARF ANAEETRAUEINNEAEK 2 ES
v I

HE—_T——F+-A=1+—RHLFE XA
ARI7TRERESFS SR SEF2HFEF
W

Number of Board meetings
attended/eligible to
attend Board meetings
HE/SEEREE
EZESg3RY

Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Law Fei Shing EEW AL

Mr. Luo Nianru (Note 5) BRMWMEE (HiE5)
Mr. Chan Sung Wai (Note 2) BREMB T (Hit2)
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing FeR [ 8% 5 A

Mr. Wang Donghai FREEE

Ms. Wang Meiyan (Note 1) FESLZ T (M)
Mr. Yang Guangming (Note 1) BRBAEE (HET)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHTES

Mr. Choi Chi Fai (Note 3) BEEEE (H1723)

Mr. Wang Jinghua (Note 3) FURESE (Hi73)

Mr. Lum Pak Sum (Note 4) MR & (Hit4)
Mr. Sun Tak Keung FREEE

Mr. Chow Pui Fung (Note 4) EEB L E (Hit4)
Notes:

1. Appointed on 25 January 2011

2. Resigned on 12 April 2011

3. Appointed on 1 July 2011

4. Resigned on 1 July 2011

5. Appointed on 7 November 2011

17117
3/4
7/8

7117
0/17
12/14
0/14

3/7
177
6/11
9/17
6/11

Bt -

1. R-E——F-—A-THHEZE

2. WZZE——FWNA+ZHEHT

3. RIB——F+A-HEZRE

- R-Z——FLtA—A#E
5. R-Z——F+—ALREZE
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Every Board member have full and timely access to Board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and
services of the company secretary, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required. The company secretary continuously
updates all Directors on the latest development of the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practice.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code A.2.1 of CG Code provides, inter alia, that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

The Company is still looking for a suitable candidate to fill the vacancy
of chairman and further announcement will be made by the Company
upon fulfillment of this requirement under the Listing Rules.

The Board will review the management structure of the Group from
time to time and will adopt appropriate measures as may be desirable
for future development of the operating activities or business of the
Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has deviated from the requirements of Code Provision
A.4.1 of the Code, which stipulates that non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Some
existing non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company do not have a specific term of appointment.

As the appointment of non-executive Directors are subject to the
retirement by rotation provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Board considers that it is not necessary to appoint the
non-executive Directors for a specific term and it is sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are on terms no less exacting than the required standard set
out in the Code. At every annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not three or in a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. All Directors, including those appointed for a fixed term,
are subject to the retirement by rotation provision in the Articles of
Association of the Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee, established in compliance with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, comprises the three independent non-executive Directors
of the Company and the chairman of the Company, is responsible for
reviewing and evaluating the remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and senior management of the Company and making
recommendations to the Board of directors from time to time.

The remuneration committee currently comprises the two independent
non-executive Directors of the Company.

The remuneration committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated
under the Code Provision B.1.3 of the Code. The primary duties of
the remuneration committee are summarized as follows: (but without
limitation):

(a) to evaluate the performance of the executive Directors in order
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
remuneration;

(b) to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management; and

(c) to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

FHEES
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During the year ended 31 December 2011, the remuneration HE_Z——F+-_A=1+—"HBLEFE FME
committee held a meeting to review the remuneration package of BERIT —REH UBRITESSEKERSR
the Board members and the senior management. Composition of the EREZHFNFE -FTMEE S 2EKREERS
remuneration committee and details of members’ attendance to the BB ZHFERFMAT
committee are as follows:
Number of meetings
attended/eligible to
attend meetings
HESEE
HESHRRH
Mr. Choi Chi Fai (Note 1) BEBRE (M) 1/1
Mr. Wang Jinghua (Note 1) FUREL L (HaE1) 1/1
Mr. Lum Pak Sum (Note 2) MAAFR L (Hat2) 3/3
Mr. Sun Tak Keung SE{EoR St A 4/4
Mr. Chow Pui Fung (Note 2) BE 8L (HiE2) 3/3
Notes: Brat -
1. Appointed on 1 July 2011 1. RZE——F A —HEZEE
2. Resigned on 1 July 2011 2. RZTE——F+ A —BEHE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee, established in compliance with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, comprises the three independent non-executive Directors
of the Company and the chairman of the Company, is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and management of the Board succession.

The nomination committee currently comprises the two independent
non-executive Directors of the Company.

REEEE
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The nomination committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated
under the Code Provision A.4.5 of the Code.

REZEGSRABRE TR Z T ARA 456G
Mz B E AR A RS E

Number of meetings
attended/eligible to
attend meetings

HEEE®
HESZXH
Mr. Choi Chi Fai (Note 1) BEESLE () 11
Mr. Wang Jinghua (Note 1) FEELE (HaET) 1/1
Mr. Lum Pak Sum (Note 2) MIARR L E (K aE2) 3/3
Mr. Sun Tak Keung FEER A 4/4
Mr. Chow Pui Fung (Note 2) BiEBEE (HE2) 3/3
Notes: Hiat -
1. Appointed on 1 July 2011 1. RZE——F+A—AEZE
2. Resigned on 1 July 2011 2. RZE——F A —BET

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company was established with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules and the suggested terms of reference stated under the Code
Provision C.3 of the Code. The audit committee currently comprises
two independent non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Choi
Chi Fai. The audit committee is responsible for review of the Group's
accounting principles, practices internal control procedures and
financial reporting matters including the review of the interim and final
results of the Group prior to recommending to the Board for approval.
The major roles and functions of the Group’s audit committee are as
follows:

1. To consider the appointment of the external auditor, the audit
fees, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of the
external auditor of the Group.

2. To discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of the
audit.
3. To review the interim and annual financial statements before

submission to the Board.

4. To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
review and final audit, and any matters the auditor may wish to
discuss.

5. To review the external auditor's management letters and

management'’s response.
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To review the Group's internal control systems.

To consider the major findings of internal investigations and
management’s response.

6. WA AEEZ A ERESIEHIE

7. ZEANRNFAEZETZRAREEEZR
FE o

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the audit committee held HEZZ——F+-A=T—HLFE F&Z
two meetings to review the annual and interim results. Composition BERTTMASH UEHNFERPHEE-
of the audit committee and details of members’ attendance to the EREZEEZHEKRMREZEESNE 2 H R EFn
committee are as follows: IS
Number of
meetings attended/
eligible to
attend meetings
HE /a8 %
HESRRE
Mr. Choi Chi Fai (Note 1) BEEBRAE (i) 1/1
Mr. Wang Jinghua (Note 1) FEESA (HaET) 11
Mr. Lum Pak Sum (Note 2) MAAFR ST E (B iE2) 2/2
Mr. Sun Tak Keung ?1—%?&& 3/3
Mr. Chow Pui Fung (Note 2) B EE (HiE2) 272
Notes: it -

1.

2.

Appointed on 1 July 2011

Resigned on 1 July 2011

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, BDO Limited was appointed as the auditor of the

Company and to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company.

The following table sets forth the type of, and fees for, the principal

audit services and non-audit services provided by BDO Limited to the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2011:

. RCF-—FLA-BEEE
2. R-E-—FLA-RERE
B AT &

FR BRELGEEREANEBMBERRFAES
ERARBZZHE YEEEARR T —ER
RBAFARGTRERIL-

TEREIEHE-_TE——F+_A=T—HIEFE
HEABVEERZETMEBAERABRE TR
SEFEZHRBRIFEZERE 2 BHAKIK
p= 3

Services rendered
Fees paid/payable

HK$'000

FriR AR5

B ENER

FHT

Audit services Z 2R 876
Non-audit services (i.e. consultancy services) EzH R (BEREZRARSE) -
Total HE 876
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company endeavors to implement a sound risk management and
internal control system. The Board is responsible for maintaining an
adequate internal control system to safeguard Shareholder investments
and Company’s assets, and reviewing the effectiveness of such system
on an annual basis, as well as through the audit committee. For the
year ended 31 December 2011, the audit committee reported to the
Board on any material issues and inadequate measures and made
recommendations to the Board.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHT AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for them to demand
a poll on resolutions at Shareholders’ meetings are contained in
the Company’s Articles of Association. Details of such rights to
demand a poll and the poll procedures are included in all circulars to
Shareholders prior to 31 December 2011 and will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings. Poll results, if any, will be posted on both
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company no later than 30
minutes before the earlier of the morning session or any pre-opening
session on the next business day of the Shareholders’ meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. Our
Directors are available at the Shareholders’ meetings of the Company
to answer questions and provide information which Shareholders may
enquire. The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

Taking advantages of various resources, the Company keeps
communicating with its Shareholders regularly and properly to ensure
that Shareholders are adequately aware of any important issues during
the course of the Company’s operation, and then exercise their rights
as Shareholders with sufficient knowledge. Investors are welcome to
write directly to the Company at its Hong Kong registered office for
any inquiries.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the preparation
of financial statements of the Group and for ensuring that financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Board also ensures the timely
publication of financial statements of the Group. The Directors confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, having
made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited,
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 38 to
40 of this annual report.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. As such, all the resolutions
set out in the notice of the AGM will be voted by poll.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of Energy International Investments Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
principal subsidiaries are engaged in the supply of heat and electricity
and the oil production.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2011
are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 41 to 168. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the year.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION R EREE

The following is a summary of the published consolidated results of TXHEASEEZ_TZELF —TFN\F . =
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010 TENGE T EFR-FT——F+A=1—

and 2011, and the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the HIESFEZEHEGREEZEURAEERER
Group as at each of the reporting date, prepared on the basis set out EHHzEE BERFERRREZ2HBE
in the notes below. R BB PN R S Z P 5E o

RESULTS E 3

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—-RHLFE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—B-—fF —T-TF ZETNF ZTTN\F ZETLF

FERT FHET FHT FHET FHT

Revenue Wz 231,388 45,620 10,332 19,264 55,647
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FEfh (B518) /&7 -

Owners of the Company KRR A (61,750) 184,887 (432,187)  (341,321) (79,129)

Non-controlling interests JEIR AR R R A (3,640) (1,847) - (7,161) 568

(65,390) 183,040 (432,187) (348,482) (78,561)
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE BERFEERREERS

INTERESTS
At 31 December
R+=-A=+-—8
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-——-F —T-ZF —ZETNEF —TENE —TTLEF
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
Non-current assets FERBEE 2,948,495 | 2,955,357 554,799 747,086 702,176
Current assets mBEE 197,219 220,225 114,775 93,511 168,012
Total assets BEME 3,145,714 | 3,175,582 669,574 840,597 870,188
Current liabilities mEAaE 205,888 189,635 22,559 64,123 68,157
Non-current liabilities ERBER 674,006 693,680 19,279 192,695 177,403
Total liabilities BEEE 879,894 883,315 41,838 256,818 245,560
Net assets BEFE 2,265,820 | 2,292,267 627,736 583,779 624,628
Non-controlling interests FEERREER 150,547 142,332 = 1,288 33,581
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME- -BERSZE

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the KRB RAEEME BERZBERFRZEE
Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the IR R B mERM 6 -
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital during the year together
with the reasons therefore, are set out in note 33 to the financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 34 to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the Share
premium account of the Company of approximately HK$2,051 million
as at 31 December 2011, is distributable to the Shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The Share premium account may also be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus Shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 90% of the Group's total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 55%.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 63% of the total purchases for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately
28%.

None of the Directors of the Company, any of their associates or
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued Share capital), had any
beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest customers and/or
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Board members during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Law Fei Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 1 January 2012)
Mr. Luo Nianru (appointed on 7 November 2011)
Mr. Chan Sung Wai (resigned on 12 April 2011)
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing
Mr. Wang Donghai
Ms. Wang Meiyan (appointed on 25 January 2011)
Mr. Yang Guangming (appointed on 25 January 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choi Chi Fai (appointed on 1 July 2011)

Mr. Wang Jinghua (appointed on 1 July 2011)
Mr. Lum Pak Sum (resigned on 1 July 2011)

Mr. Sun Tak Keung (resigned on 1 January 2012)
Mr. Chow Pui Fung (resigned on 1 July 2011)
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In accordance with Article 108(A) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chan Kwok Wing will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Chan Kwok Wing will offer
himself for re-election as Director.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Luo Nianru, Mr. Choi Chi Fai and Wang Jinghua who
were newly appointed as Directors of the Company in 2011, shall hold
office until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
following their appointments and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent as defined in the
Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out on
pages 11 to 12 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no Director had
a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.

PENSION SCHEME ARRANGEMENT

Particulars of the pension scheme arrangements are set out in note 3(v)
to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURE

As at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), which had been notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required to be entered in the register referred to therein
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by the Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2011, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following person other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company had an interest or a short position
in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO:

Interest in Shares

EEBARODHES 2 EF

A6 P fa] BF ] - 4 fr) 25 55 Sk L e 48 380 R W 18 5%
Z T EERAIFEBARRR 2B HEH

Bm 2R TETEABEN: KARBRE
ERMEARMERT LERZY BUEEEATR

BEMEMEABEZ EAZER -

FERRRAQARMDRAEBRD
ZRERERAR

R-B——F+_HA=+—B BEARRESFH

TETHRABMA BRARRESHREZITHA

BN ATALTRARA et RBERD T HES

$/‘ﬂ$ﬁ<?ﬁ%‘%&ﬁﬂfﬂﬂ |%63361R AT HIFZ
Brfthriikz EamsRR

Interests in underlying Shares

gnk £ REBERG 2B
Personal Corporate Personal Corporate Aggregate  Approximate
Name of Shareholders Interests* Interest* Interests* Interest* interest percentage’ Notes
RREA fAARE NEER AR NEER ags BB MizE
Mr. Liu Ran Bl - 3,078,000,000 - 12,932,000,000 16,010,000,000 118.75% 1
Giant Crystal Limited By NG| 3,078,000,000 - 12,932,000,000 - 16,010,000,000 118.75% 1
Ms. Ho Mee Kuen Karen mERTL - 920,000,000 - - 807,302,000 6.82% 2
Maycrown Capital Limited ERERERAA 920,000,000 - - - 807,302,000 6.82% 2
Ms Leung Lai Ching 2EHLT - - 2,212,617,599 - 2,212,617,599 16.41% 3
* Beneficial owner * FEHE A
N Interests of controlled corporation(s) + Ty E B R
N Percentage which the aggregate long position in the Shares or ¥ RBEHORAEERG I IFREEGEAD TR
underlying Shares represents to the issued share capital of the Company —E——#+=-A=+—AH Z B 31T IR z’g

of 13,482,665,354 Shares as at 31 December 2011

13,482,665,354 % 2 B Ak
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Notes:

Giant Crystal Limited is a company incorporated under the laws of the
British Virgin Islands, the entire issued share capital of which is legally
and beneficially owned by Mr. Liu Ran. Mr. Liu Ran therefore deemed to
be interested in 3,078,000,000 shares and 12,932,000,000 underlying
shares held by Giant Crystal Limited.

12,932,000,000 underlying Shares consist of shares to be issued upon
the conversion of (i) the outstanding Tranche 1 Bonds (as defined in
the circular of the Company dated 11 October 2010) (which, based
on the conversion price of HK$0.08 per Share, can be converted into
6,346,000,000 Shares); and (i) the Tranche 2 Bonds (as defined in
the circular of the Company dated 11 October 2010) (which, based
on the conversion price of HK$0.08 per Share, can be converted into
6,586,000,000 Shares). However, the Tranche 2 Bonds has not been
issued. Please refer to the Company’s circular dated 11 October 2010
for details of the principal terms of the Tranche 1 Bonds and the
Tranche 2 Bonds.

Maycrown Capital Limited is a company incorporated under the laws
of the British Virgin Islands, the entire issued share capital of which is
legally and beneficially owned by Ms. Ho Mee Kuen Karen. Ms. Ho Mee
Kuen Karen therefore deemed to be interested in 920,000,000 shares
held by Maycrown Capital Limited.

2,212,617,599 underlying Shares consist of shares to be issued upon
the conversion of (i) the outstanding Tranche 1 Bonds (as defined in
the circular of the Company dated 15 October 2007) (which, based
on the conversion price of HK$0.508 per Share (as adjusted), can be
converted into 35,826,772 Shares); (ii) the outstanding Tranche 3 Bonds
(as defined in the circular of the Company dated 6 June 2008) (which,
based on the conversion price of HK$0.212 per Share (as adjusted), can
be converted into 2,358,491 Shares); and (iii) the Tranche 4 Bonds (as
defined in the circular of the Company dated 11 October 2010) (which,
based on the conversion price of HK$0.08 per Share, can be converted
into 6,586,000,000 Shares).

The Tranche 2 Bonds and Tranche 4 Bonds have not been issued. Please
refer to the Company’'s circulars dated 15 October 2007 and 6 June
2008 for details of the principal terms of the Tranche 2 Bonds and
Tranche 4 Bonds respectively.
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 26 August and
27 August 2010 respectively and the Company’s 2010 interim report,
the Board, to its astonishment, found out that as from 31 January 2010
the exploration licence held by Qinghai Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“QHFSMI”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC"), had been transferred to a company known as A5 & /)»
4T LR FRIEF A R A A (in English, for identification purpose only, Inner
Mongolia Xiao Hong Shan Yuen Xian Mining Industry Company Limited)
("Yuen Xian Company”) without the Company’s knowledge, consent
or approval. To the best of the Director’'s knowledge, information and
belief having made all reasonable enquiries, Yuen Xian Company is
wholly-owned by Ms. Leung Lai Ching Margaret through a company
known as Yuenxian Mining Industry Holding Company Limited.
However, according to the terms and conditions of the Tranche 2 Bonds
and Tranche 4 Bonds, the Tranche 2 Bonds and Tranche 4 Bonds will
only be issued if the Mining Licence has been received by the Group.
The Company is seeking legal advice from its legal advisers on whether
the Company still has any obligation to issue the Tranche 2 Bonds and
Tranche 4 Bonds to Ms. Leung Lai Ching Margaret in light of the present
situation, in particular, in these circumstances where Ms. Leung Lai
Ching Margaret has transferred the Group's exploration licence to her
own company without the Company's knowledge, consent or approval.

All the interests stated above represent long positions in the ordinary
Shares of the Company. As at 31 December 2010, no short positions
were recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware, no other
person had an interest or short position in the Company's shares or
underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which was recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s Directors,
independent non-executive Directors, other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group,
any person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group and any minority Shareholder in
the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme was adopted on 6 June 2002
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised Share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the Shares of the Company in issue at
any time.

Pursuant to the extraordinary general meeting passed on 8 December
2009, the general scheme limit of the Company’s Share option
scheme has been reset to 736,104,330 Shares, representing 10% of
the Company's issued Share capital on the date of meeting, with the
passing of ordinary resolution, which allowing the Company to grant
further options carrying the rights to subscribe for a maximum of
736,104,330 Shares. As at the date of this report, no option has been
granted pursuant to the Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares issuable under Share options to
each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period,
is limited to 1%, of the Shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of Share options in excess of this limit is subject to
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
Shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive Directors,
in addition, any Share options granted to a substantial Shareholder or
an independent non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the Shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company's Shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to Shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of Share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the Share
options granted is determinable by the Directors, and commences after
a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of the offer of the Share options or the expiry date
of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the Share options is determinable by the
Directors, but may not be less than the higher of:

(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s Shares on
the date of the offer of the Share options;

(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
Shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of the offer; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at Shareholders’ meetings.
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CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

On 15 September 2010, Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi Heat and
Power Company Limited (“Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi”), a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a master
agreement with Shanxi Zhongkai Industry Group Company Limited
(“Zhongkai Group”), whereby Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi will supply
and Zhongkai Group and its subsidiaries will purchase such amount
of electricity generated by Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi for a term of
approximately 27 months, expiring on 31 December 2012. Details of
the continuing connected transactions are as stated in the Company's
announcement dated 16 September 2010 and the Company’s circular
dated 13 October 2010.

Due to the significant growth in the sales volume of the electricity
generated by Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi to one of Zhongkai Group's
subsidiaries, the annual caps of continuing connected transactions
were revised. Details of the revised annual caps for the continuing
connected transactions are as stated in the Company’s announcement
dated 21 January 2011 and the Company’s circular dated 22 February
2011.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions
with subsidiaries of Zhongkai Group, which constituted continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. Details of such
transactions are as follows:

FAERSERERS
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NTR5Z EBKEMRAIBEBT 2 HERERS -
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Amount

HK$'000

k=i

Nature of transactions XEMEE FHT
Sale of electricity by the Group AEEEES 30,229

Zhongkai Group, as a non-controlling shareholder of Shanxi Zhong Kai
Lingshi, is a connected person under the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed therein, there were no transactions required to
be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The continuing connected transactions have been subject to annual
review by the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules and confirmation of the
auditor of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.
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In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have concluded
that the continuing connected transaction has been entered into:

o in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

o either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

o in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Board has engaged the auditor of the Company to perform
certain agreed-upon procedures on the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions. Based on the work performed, the auditor has issued a
confirmation letter to the Board in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no Directors are
considered to have an interest in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined by the Listing Rules, other than those businesses of
which the Directors have been appointed as Directors to represent the
interests of the Company and/or the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 13 to 22 of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company maintained the amount of public float as required under the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2011.

ﬁﬁ§:§**¢+:ﬂj+—ﬁiﬁﬁ¢§'

ARRZBILFATESAR HEWERXHE :
. RARBZBE—REBBIETAIL:

. B—REFIGERET L RNEBRRR S -
A =D S —REEGER AIRAER
ARABABYLE=TRREHABILE=T
(@A) I T AR B Z RRETAL K

o REBARXZ ZHEAMERAFARERN
BARRRIREBEA G Z KT

EXECREAR AR LA EBERS
HITETRERRF - ERFAATZTE 282
RIE ETHRAE14A3BGREFTS L ARRE -

EENBFRREB RS

FARBEERREAH HEEFWRAREAR
SEEBEERAEBREFHATRBERESZ
XBxnEERs (FEBRFzEERLEWAA)
MEERZALEEZTURRALA R HAE
Bz et 2 M RIBRIN o

EER
AR

ZhEE
ER2HZME

EHARARERE

BEAAR NGB ZARERMRESAN &
ERRABE—_ZT——Ft+-_A=+—BHLFE"
ANRIER ETRANMBTEZEHARNRFRE -

36 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2011



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHREE

LITIGATIONS

Details of the litigations of the Group are set out in note 44 to the
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a
review of the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2011. The audit committee comprises the three
independent non-executive directors of the Company. During the year,
two regular meetings of the audit committee have been held.

AUDITOR

The financial statements in respect of the year ended 31 December
2009 were audited by Grant Thornton (“GTHK"”), now known as
JBPB & Co. Due to a merger of the businesses of GTHK and BDO
Limited (“BDO") to practise in the name of BDO as announced on 26
November 2010, GTHK resigned and BDO was appointed as auditor
of the Company effective from 29 November 2010. The financial
statements for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 were
audited by BDO.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

LUO NIANRU
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BULHBEMEES

Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

I BDO Tel : +852 2218 8288

TEEE - +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of
Energy International Investments Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Energy
International Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
41 to 168, which comprise the consolidated and Company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

25™ Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion 2R

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and EERR HENBHRREBRBEE M B RS L
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as AlEEmMATHRE SAFIE EEER-Z
at 31 December 2011 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the — F+tZA=tT—HZUBKRIAR E£E
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting HEZALFEZBERBSRE TERRA
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the BARHERI Z BEREL BiRE -

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited ERVCEREEAMEEMERAA

Certified Public Accountants HFEBIAD

Au Yiu Kwan BRI KL

Practising Certificate Number P05018 HEFEERIRPOS018

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012 BE —_E——_F=RA=+NAH
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mERZER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—F——F + —A=1T—HILFE

2011 2010
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
=2——% —F-TF
e FHx Fx
(&%)
Continuing operations: HEQEER:
Revenue & 5 231,388 44,413
Cost of sales HERM A (203,160) (45,851)
Gross profit/(loss) ER,(8) 28,228 (1,438)
Other income H A A 5 53,180 9,035
Excess of acquirer’s interest in net fair W h R E S 2
value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, AIRREE BERK
liabilities and contingent liabilities over RBEZRAFTFEER
cost FEEAK AR 2 BER 36(b) - 606,270
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAL (7,352) =
Administrative expenses TR X (29,819) (20,288)
Other operating expenses HigeEmz (32,281) (6,715)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  E # R 25 (E & 18
goodwill 19 (64,674) (49,064)
Finance costs B 75 B AR 7 (13,096) (5,229)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETEHA (BE) EF 8 (65,814) 532,571
Income tax credit PR ET A 9 1,881 1,457
(Loss)/profit for the year from EEEREREEK
continuing operations (E8|),BA (63,933) 534,028
Discontinued operations: BRIEREEK:
Loss for the year from discontinued REEERIEEEEBEBE
operations 11 (1,457) (350,988)
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE (BER), &R (65,390) 183,040
(Loss)/profit for the year EBEREE (BE) 787
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZ RSN 12
— from continuing operations —HBEKEETR (60,293) 535,875
— from discontinued operations — BRI EET (1,457) (350,988)
(61,750) 184,887
Non-controlling interests FE 12 B A R A A
— from continuing operations —RFELEER (3,640) (1,847)
— from discontinued operations —ERIEREEE - -
(3,640) (1,847)
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE (BER) &R (65,390) 183,040
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mERBR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#E=—ZT——F T+ - A=1+—HBILFE

2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—2——f —z-z5
B 5 FET FHET
(#&E351)
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/ FRAEQNTEE AES
profit attributable to the owners of (F51|) HFz2ER
the Company during the year (E5|) &R 13
- Basic —HK
From continuing and discontinued BEEEELRR
operations B4R || 4 e 3 (HK cent 0.37&1l) | HK cents 2.3/l
From continuing operations SECEER (HK cent 0.371l) | HK cents 6.6/ L
From discontinued operations B4R || 4R 2 — | (HK cents 4.3/ 1)
- Diluted —#8
From continuing and discontinued SEREEBREKIE
operations 4 e i N/A TEA | HK cents 2.1781l
From continuing operations FIBIC A TS N/A RERA | HK cents 6.2
From discontinued operations B4R | aRas 2 gk N/A REH | (HK cents 4.1781l)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEBRAR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—F——F + —A=1T—HILFE

2011 2010
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
e —z-=zf
B 3 FERT FHET
(Loss)/profit for the year NEE (FR) RF 183,040
Other comprehensive income Hi 2 mEKA
Exchange gains on translation of financial R E 8N EKEFHRE 2
statements of foreign operations PE 3z 10,553
Release of exchange reserve upon YNGR RS SN S
de-consolidating subsidiaries PE 3 i ¢ g 37 (972)
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEEBA
for the year 9,581
Total comprehensive income AEEEZHEBRALE
for the year (51,595) 192,621
Total comprehensive income EEEEBAEE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZINYNETE SN (52,815) 190,247
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR AR R M 1,220 2,374
(51,595) 192,621
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEFBRRR

As at 31 December 2011 R=—F——&+=-A=+—H

2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
e -z =5
Fff &E FEx FH T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment v ER Y=Y L 16(a) 604,657 510,460
Prepaid land lease payments TR+ iR & 5RIE 17 29,876 29,569
Goodwill GRS 19 209,628 274,302
Intangible assets EVEE 20 2,096,843 2,127,962
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE = 32 7,491 13,064
2,948,495 2,955,357
Current assets hEBEE
Indemnification assets HMEEE 44(b) 14,040 5,000
Inventories FE 21 15,570 4,800
Trade receivables JEUE 5 BRI 22 31,326 16,617
Prepayments, deposits and BRAFRIE ke Rk
other receivables H th & I FR IR 23 37,982 40,614
Amount due from non-controlling JIE S FE 22 AR IR R SR IR
shareholder 24 - 6,080
Pledged bank deposits BHEMIRITER 25 976 945
Cash at banks and in hand RITHEFRFHERE® 25 97,325 146,135
Tax prepaid TER 1A = 34
197,219 220,225
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables JERE 58RIA 26 12,017 18,851
Other payables and accruals H b FE < 5RIB R JEET BB 27 147,230 124,687
Amount due to non-controlling JE A B3 AR IR R SR IE
shareholder 24 4,074 11,570
Provision for legal claim ERBREE 44(b) 14,040 5,000
Bank borrowings RITER 28 12,200 21,133
Other borrowings H &5 29 2,196 8,394
Convertible bonds R E S 31 14,129 -
Tax payable JERT 18 2 -
205,888 189,635
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(BE) EEFE (8,669) 30,590
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBERE 2,939,826 2,985,947
Non-current liabilities kREBEME
Amount due to non-controlling JE A FJEE AR IR 3R SR IE
shareholder 24 8,401 -
Bank borrowings SRITIE K 28 — 11,806
Other borrowings HibER 29 113,652 87,010
Promissory notes rE 30 28,707 43,865
Convertible bonds Al (E 5 31 355 20,292
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBE G 32 522,891 530,707
674,006 693,680
Net assets EEFE 2,265,820 2,292,267
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e M BRRE

As at 31 December 2011 R—Z——&F+=-A=+—H

2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
—g——fF —ET-TF
Bt FTET TR
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to the owners of ZAAREE AEBEER
the Company
Share capital A% Zx 38 134,827 134,626
Reserves fe 8 34(a) 1,980,446 2,015,309
2,115,273 2,149,935
Non-controlling interests FE 2 IR A R A A 150,547 142,332
Total equity s 2,265,820 2,292,267
Luo Nianru Wang Meiyan
Bam EES
Director Director
BE BEFE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B %R =

As at 31 December 2011 R=—F——&+=-A=+—H

2011 2010
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
e BN o
Fff &E FEx FH T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BREREE 16(b) 6 7
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR 2 R 18 1,600,089 1,585,239
1,600,095 1,585,246
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and ENRIE ' Rk
other receivables H th & I SR IR 23 956 983
Cash at banks and in hand RITHEFRFHEERES 25 4,788 15,564
5,744 16,547
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals H M JFE < /I8 I JE 5T RUE 27 922 3,793
Convertible bonds Al ES 31 14,129 -
15,051 3,793
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE (&) EEEE (9,307) 12,754
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERARBERE 1,590,788 1,598,000
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Convertible bonds Al (E 5 31 355 20,292
Amount due to a subsidiary JES — I B A R FKIE 18 23,696 -
24,051 20,292
Net assets EERE 1,566,737 1,577,708
EQUITY EDR
Share capital % 33 134,827 134,626
Reserves G 34(b) 1,431,910 1,443,082
Total equity Bk 1,566,737 1,577,708
Luo Nianru Wang Meiyan
EW EX-$
Director Director
EZ EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERZER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—F——F + —A=1T—HILFE

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

ARREEARELRER
Convertible
bond Non-
Share Share Capital  Exchange equity Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total equity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRRES FER
BE  RHEE EAHE  EXRE  BRRE  RHEAR @i RRER oY 373
TAT FHL FET FHL FEL FAL FHL FAT FHL
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-Z5—-f—AH 73,610 1,451,003 137,610 972 15,904  (1,051,363) 627,736 - 627,736
Issue of shares upon acquisition REIRB A REET R

of subsidiaries (H3E33(0) R (d))

(notes 33(c) and (d)) 45,880 425,640 - - - - 471,520 - 471,520
Issue of convertible bonds upon  RUREEMTE A RE%1T

acquisition of subsidiaries ARk ES (E31)

(note 31) - - - - 859,292 - 859,292 - 859,292
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1)U

(note 36(a)) (FiE36(a)) - - - - - - - 139,958 139,958
Issue of shares upon conversion of 3 # AT A (& 75 K

convertible bonds EG1G)

(notes 33(a) and (b)) (Kt zE33(a) R (b)) 15,136 161,126 - - (175,122) - 1,140 - 1,140
Transactions with owners BREBAZRS 61,016 586,766 - - 684,170 - 1,331,952 139,958 1,471,910
Net profit for the year AEERFFE = = - - = 184,887 184,887 (1,847) 183,040
Other comprehensive income  Hfi2EKA
Release of exchange reserve upon  RHTB R AR BERA ARE

de-consolidating subsidiaries EHEERE (F537)

(note 37) - - - (972) - - (972) - (972)
Exchange gain on translation of ~ BEENEBHERR

financial statements of foreign Rl

operations - - - 6,332 - - 6,332 4,221 10,553
Total comprehensive income AEE2ERALE

for the year - - - 5,360 - 184,887 190,247 2,374 192,621
At 31 December 2010 RZB-ZF

+=B=t+-H 134,626 2,037,769 137,610 6,332 700,074 (866,476) 2,149,935 142,332 2,292,267
At 1 January 2011 R-Z——F—-F—H 134,626 2,037,769 137,610 6,332 700,074 (866,476) 2,149,935 142,332 2,292,267
Bank and other borrowings FERB R EGGAREN

assigned to non-controlling ROIRAMEBE

shareholder unconditionally (Hi334(a))

(note 34(a)) - - 9,443 - - - 9,443 6,295 15,738
Gain on extinguishment on the FHIERRBRRE T2 as

loan from non-controlling (I5E24)

shareholder (note 24) - - 1,051 - - - 1,051 700 1,751
Issue of shares upon conversion of 1 3% 1 AT #A R & 5 B

convertible bonds (note 33(a)) BT (H333(a)) 201 12,811 - - (5,353) - 7,659 - 7,659
Transactions with owners BREAZRS 201 12,811 10,494 - (5,353) - 18,153 6,995 25,148
Net loss for the year REELE - - - - - (61,750) (61,750) (3,640) (65,390)
Other comprehensive income ~ Hfi2EKA
Exchange gain on translation of AEENEBIBRR L

financial statements of foreign Rl

operations - - - 8,935 - - 8,935 4,860 13,795
Total comprehensive income AEE2ERALE

for the year - - - 8,935 - (61,750) (52,815) 1,220 (51,595)
At 31 December 2011 RZB--F

+=-B=t+-H 134,827 2,050,580 148,104 15,267 694,721 (928,226) 2,115,273 150,547 2,265,820
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#E=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

2011 2010
HK$"000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
2% =z
FHERT FHET
(#&=751)
Cash flows from operating activities FESEEERERILLE
of continuing and discontinued AR REXBRERE
operations
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETESHAT (EE) EF
Continuing operations BB ETE (65,814) 582,57 1
Discontinued operations BRI ST (1,457) (350,988)
(67,271) 181,583
Adjustments for: M5B (B %
Depreciation e 47,656 9,841
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TS - b 78 & R0IE 5
payments 668 269
Amortisation of intangible assets M A EE 32,281 6,406
Excess of acquirer’s interest in net R BRI ER 2
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable AIHREE BERK
assets, liabilities and contingent RBEBEZRAFFEER
liabilities over cost R A 2 85 = (606,270)
Impairment loss of goodwill HEREER 64,674 49,064
Provision for impairment loss of other H fth, & WK IR E
receivables E a1 - 39
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, HEME - -BE X
plant and equipment =l () BB (360) 269
Loss on de-consolidating subsidiaries M RARITEEEARZ
&8 - 348,966
Gain on extinguishment of non-current HHEFERDEE 2
borrowings (12,198) -
Interest income B WA (352) (121)
Interest expenses BN 53 13,096 5,229
Operating profit/(loss) before working LEEEHA I KE
capital changes wm AL (R 78,194 (4,725)
Increase in inventories FEZ2Em (10,610) (2,673)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables BUWE SIRE
(3Em) /R (14,153) 7,146
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and FERNRIE- -ZE R
other receivables E bW RIB 2R 3,918 14,152
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables ERNEZKREZ
CR ) /4 (7,463) 2,935
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H b JE A FRE R ST FE
and accruals g ORd) 17,209 (39,400)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations # &~ (FHR) &EZH % 67,095 (22,565)
Interest paid 2 FLE (6,011) (3,065)
Income tax paid [RENRIECE (185) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) e ()2
operating activities B2 FEE 60,899 (25,630)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE=—Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—E——%F —Z=—T
Mt & FHT FHT
(k&%)
Cash flow from investing activities EEREEBERORIERE
of continuing and discontinued ERIBEEKBESHRE
operations
Purchases of property, plant and BEME BELKE
equipment 16(a) (123,882) (74,862)
Net cash outflow arising from fBARTHEIIEAEAREL
de-consolidating subsidiaries 2L T E s 37 - (75)
Net cash inflow arising from acquisitions  UWEEKI B A TIFTE & 2
of subsidiaries T AR ] 36(c) - 196,572
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEMNE BEMRKEZ
plant and equipment Fr 1S 3H 1,131 207
Interest received &Y F B 352 121
Advances to non-controlling shareholder  [a) 3E#5 Hxﬂxﬁ{/gﬁjz:m,ﬂ - (188)
Net cash (used in)/generated from AR) /REeEEERK Y
investing activities INe F5 (122,399) 121,775
Cash flow from financing activities BRESEERRCRLERE
of continuing and discontinued EROBMETHHEESRKE
operations
Repayments of promissory notes B8 AN ER (20,000) -
New other borrowings EMER 36,533 -
Repayments of other borrowings BEHMmER (12,199) -
Repayments from/(to) non-controlling w®E, (A)IEHERRAL
shareholder B 7,958 (64,450)
Net cash generated from/(used in) x8. (HR)GEETHZ
financing activities Ho FEE 12,292 (64,450)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and Eﬁﬁ&iﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ Bz
cash equivalents W) 2R e (49,208) 31,695
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HzRER
1 January iﬁﬁ%{élﬁ B 146,135 113,382
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes  [E X & &) » 52 & 398 1,058
Cash and cash equivalents at RT=-ZA=+—HBHzBEK
31 December HEZEEER 97,325 146,135
Analysis of balances of cash and HEFHREZEBEER 2
cash equivalents P e i
Cash at banks and in hand RTHEGFLFERS 25 97,325 146,135
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
135 3R & M

For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#E=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated and
domiciled in the Cayman Islands. Registered office of the
Company is Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, British
West Indies and its principal place of business is Unit 1508,
15th Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’'s Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) include:

- the supply of electricity and heat representing the
business of generation and supplying of electricity and
heat; and

- the oil production representing the business of oil
production.

Trading of carpet business was ceased during the year as
this business had suffered persistent losses and management
of the Company considered that there was insignificant
contribution to the Group. This business segment is presented
as discontinued operations in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 5 for the year ended
31 December 2011. Certain comparatives on the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of cash flows
and the related notes have been re-presented as a result of the
retrospective application of HKFRS 5.

Other than the discontinued operations as described above,
there were no significant changes in the Group's operations
during the year. The Group's principal places of the business are
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
The principal activities and other particulars of its subsidiaries
are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

—REHR

EREREEERAERA A (TARA])
AH—ERASHSFEMA LI AR
SEREEZEREMEAR - AAQGE M
% = R {2 7 Century Yard, Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands,
British West Indies MEZ & X285
BARERERERFRNEFRIRFIREF OI15E
1508% « AR Al Z RN BB S X 5 P
BRAR ([BERAT]) Ee

RAFEE AR REMBAR (58 [
SEHDZFEXBBRE:

= REHE - EATEEREEE
% R

- B R MR

WHEBEXRBOCRNFEAKLE IR
X -—EERGER AAREEERSH
BERAEBEFELHER BE_T——F
TZA=1T—BIEFE  WEEDRE
AP BHREEL ([FAMHREER])
FSREINRERIELEXRF AW
R HEERERERRBEMAZETHR
RYUFCREPEREEMBEREELSE
5% M T IAES

B EX At 2 B IEREEBIN RNEE
EBREALESARY AKE LT E
BEMBUNBERPEARLME ([H
B) HENBARZIZEBNEMFRS
N TEIRRME18
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—F——F + —A=1T—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The financial statements on pages 41 to 168 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term includes all
applicable individual HKFRS, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). The financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(“HK$'000") unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 29 March
2012.

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new standards, amendments and interpretations
issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to and effective
for the Group's financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2011:

HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
(Amendments)
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

Except as explained below, the adoption of these new/revised
standards and interpretations has no material impact on the
Group's financial statements.

—RER (@)

BN EAE168E 2 FMER DIREE S
SRRAE (BB STMAE])FEM
ZEBUMBREER ([BEPEREE
Bl ZzAEREmEEA 2 @R & S
G ER BB S ER ([EE2R%E
Al ) RRERE - HHRENBEEER
AIEGI R R FTEE EmRA ([ EWR
Bl ) ZEAHERT-

MIEmMRAAR QR 2N EH BT ([
T2 BB EBIN ESESH
MEREBEAZ TREF ([TET]) -

HE—_TZ——F+_-_A=+—"HILFEZ
B BREER—_E——FE=A-TAAL
BRI ELE M-

RAIET R BB Y]
=op 4|

AR
RAFE AEBERAEATNIBELES
SRR 2 B ER BT KRR X
SRAEAEER_T——F—A—HE
M2 FEMR M HREAE WHZ
SHBHMREM:

BREVBREEN —FT-FFFEUB
SCHENS) WEER 2 Bk
ERE G ERE24 FEHKE
5 (IEET)

BT XHEEEIN RS &E
AR BB Y AKE N RERIENK
BEXTE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3% 3R & M

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=T——F+=—A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) — Business
Combinations

As part of the Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010, HKFRS
3 has been amended to clarify that the option to measure
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) at either fair value or the
NCl's proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets is limited to instruments that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in the event
of liquidation. Other components of NCI are measured at their
acquisition date fair value unless another measurement basis
is required by HKFRSs. The Group has amended its accounting
policies for measuring NCI but the adoption of the amendment
has had no impact on the Group's financial statements as there
is no business acquisition for the year.

HKAS 24 (Revised) — Related Party
Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) amends the definition of related party and
clarifies its meaning. This may result in changes to those parties
who are identified as being related parties of the reporting
entity. The Group has reassessed the identification of its related
parties in accordance with the revised definition and concluded
that the revised definition does not have any material impact on
the Group's related party disclosures in the current and previous
years.

HKAS 24 (Revised) also introduces simplified disclosure
requirements applicable to related party transactions where
the Group and the counterparty are under the common
control, joint control or significant influence of a government,
government agency or similar body. These new disclosures
are not relevant to the Group because the Group is not a
government related entity.

2.

RAFT RRIETEBUKR
HER ()

BRMBRELEREINR (7]
) -FBEH

ER=Z—SFHMHESY HREERZ
&szﬁﬁ~éﬁﬁﬁﬁ%£%%ﬁ%
B TIER]  WBIBR A FEIFEERER
([FEE i) EH U B 5 Al sk Bl & &=
FEZERREBAGZ AN EERETE
RS s EEE ERNBR B ATHE
BRI T A ADE &R RIS
FEEFERZFLOMHE 2 TH JEE
h%‘Zﬁ@@ﬁ%@E&HW%E%Z
ANTEF=E BRIEBBHBHREEABT
RE—H2E%E AlERlwm-ASEE
1EETEphat 2 FFIERER TR 2 25T
ROMERMIL RGBT HANEE 2 B WRE
WESE WL RN E AN EEBUE -

FRETTEAE245 (EE
R -—BELSHE

ERGRTER 245 (K18

‘Z*%%%T’Eﬁf uﬁrﬁ E@%ﬁ ﬁf’
ARE g E YU FEE RS 75
;Z:Aitﬁfimﬁ 21&;1,% ERBEES
BESHTHEES ZHER URAEHAK
FERBEFEASECBEFBBETE

By 488
=

BRI ERISE245F (KER]) TRalEE
AR (EAKEBEEYF XA BUF#
PO KR B S d R E
AHEZBEN)BETRXZZECHER
E-RNASBEYIBFHEEER FHit
2N B R AR EE I A EE -

D

UHF

52 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2011



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 3% 3R %% MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—F——F + —A=1T—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
certain new and revised HKFRSs have been published but are
not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the
Group.

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of the
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting
policy for the first period beginning after the effective date of
the pronouncement. Information on new and amended HKFRSs
that are expected to have impact on the Group’s accounting
policies is provided below. Certain other new and amended
HKFRSs have been issued but are not expected to have a
material impact of the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised)
— Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2012. The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised)
require the Group to separate items presented in other
comprehensive income into those that may be reclassified to
profit and loss in the future (e.g. revaluations of available-for-
sale financial assets) and those that may not (e.g. revaluations
of property, plant and equipment). Tax on items of other
comprehensive income is allocated and disclosed on the same
basis. The amendments will be applied retrospectively.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3% 3R & M

For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#E=—ZT——F T+ - A=1+—HBILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2015 and addresses the classification and
measurement of financial assets. The new standard reduces the
number of measurement categories of financial assets and all
financial assets will be measured at either amortised cost or fair
value based on the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Fair value gains and losses will be recognised
in profit or loss except for those on certain equity investments
which will be presented in other comprehensive income. The
directors of the Company are currently assessing the possible
impact of the new standard on the Group'’s results and financial
position in the first year of application.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS
9 to address financial liabilities. The changes resulting from
the amendments only affect the measurement of financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
using the fair value option (“FVO"). For these FVO liabilities,
the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is
attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income. The remainder of the change in fair
value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the
fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. All other requirements in HKAS 39 in
respect of liabilities are carried forward into HKFRS 9. However,
the loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts which
have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of these
additions.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 3% 3R %% MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZ=Z——F+-_A=+—HItFE

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial
Statements

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013 and introduces a single control model
for consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has control
when it has power over the investee (whether or not that
power is used in practice), exposure or rights to variable returns
from the investee and the ability to use the power over the
investee to affect those returns. HKFRS 10 contains extensive
guidance on the assessment of control. For example, the
standard introduces the concept of “de facto” control where
an investor can control an investee while holding less than
50% of the investee's voting rights in circumstances where its
voting interest is of sufficiently dominant size relative to the
size and dispersion of those of other individual shareholders
to give it power over the investee. Potential voting rights
are considered in the analysis of control only when these are
substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical ability to exercise
them. The standard explicitly requires an assessment of whether
an investor with decision making rights is acting as principal
or agent and also whether other parties with decision making
rights are acting as agents of the investor. An agent is engaged
to act on behalf of and for the benefit of another party and
therefore does not control the investee when it exercises its
decision making authority. The implementation of HKFRS 10
may result in changes in those entities which are regarded as
being controlled by the Group and are therefore consolidated
in the financial statements. The accounting requirements in the
existing HKAS 27 on other consolidation related matters are
carried forward unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively
subject to certain transitional provisions.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
135 3R & M

For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#E=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. Joint arrangements under HKFRS
11 have the same basic characteristics as joint ventures
under HKAS 31. Joint arrangements are classified as either
joint operations or joint ventures. Where the Group has
rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the
joint arrangement, it is regarded as a joint operator and will
recognise its interests in the assets, liabilities, income and
expenses arising from the joint arrangement. Where the Group
has rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement as a
whole, it is regarded as having an interest in a joint venture
and will apply equity method of accounting. HKFRS 11 does
not allow proportionate consolidation. In an arrangement
structured through a separate vehicle, all relevant facts and
circumstances should be considered to determine whether the
parties to the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Previously, the existence of a separate legal entity
was the key factor in determining the existence of a jointly
controlled entity under HKAS 31. HKFRS 11 will be applied
retrospectively with specific restatement requirements for a
joint venture which changes from proportionate consolidation
to the equity method and a joint operation which changes from
equity method to accounting for assets and liabilities.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of these new or revised HKFRSs and the
directors of the Company so far concluded that the application
of these new or revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 75 R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—F——F + —A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new or revised
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared under
historical cost convention. The measurement bases are
fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=T——F+ = A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) MmEEE (@)
(i) Going concern basis (i) FEAERE

The financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis which assumes
the realisation of assets and satisfaction of
liabilities in the ordinary course of business
notwithstanding that the Group suffered a
loss of HK$65,390,000 (2010: a profit of
HK$183,040,000) for the year and had net
current liabilities of HK$8,669,000 (2010: net
current assets of HK$30,590,000) as at 31

R RCREBEFELE

AR HRER—KB
BEKEREEREEREA
B EAREBRFEANRE
E91865,390,000/ 7T ( — &
— Z 4 : i 7183,040,000
BIL)ER=ZFE—F+=
A=+—A%BReHaE
F 188,669,000/ T (=

December 2011. The going concern basis has T—TF: nYEEFE

been adopted on the bases that: 30,590,000/ 7T ) « FE L
ZETHIR LA T B AR AN

(a) The directors have prepared cash flow (a) EEEHRBEAKR

forecast for the next twelve months.
Based on the results of the cash flow
forecast, the directors are of the opinion
that the Group is able to generate
sufficient cash flows from its operations.

(b) In December 2011,
into the assignment of loan agreement

the Group entered

with the bank and one of the non-
controlling shareholders of a subsidiary,
under which all parties agreed that
the bank loan of RMB10,000,000
(approximately HK$12,200,000) was
unconditionally assigned from the Group
to this non-controlling shareholder.
The assignment of the bank loan was
completed after the reporting date.

+TZEANBE SR
TR - RIFR 2 IRTE
RAER EFRRA
SEFABHEBE
ERABEIR -

(b) RZTE——F+=
R AREEERTT
M —MHHBRFZ
Hh—Z IR B
Eﬁ T EREE D
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ﬁiﬁﬂﬂfﬁ R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

75 R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—T——F + —A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Going concern basis (Continued)

Therefore, the directors consider that the Group
can meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due in the foreseeable future and
believe that the Company will continue as a
going concern and consequently has prepared
the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Should the Company be unable to continue in
business as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to restate the value of assets
to their recoverable amounts, to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities respectively, and to provide for any
further liabilities which may arise. The effects
of these potential adjustments have not been
reflected in these financial statements.

Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai
Forest Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI”)

In 2010, the board of directors discovered that
as from 31 January 2010, the exploration licence
held by QHFSMI, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group established in the PRC,
had been transferred to a company known as A
SHNTILEREEABR2AA (in English, for
identification purpose only, Inner Mongolia Xiao
Hong Shan Yuen Xian Mining Industry Company
Limited) (“Yuen Xian Company”) without the
Company’s knowledge, consent or approval.

(a)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
135 3R & M

For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#E=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i) Loss of controls over assets of QHFSMI and
IMFSMI (Continued)

Based on the searches conducted by the
Company’s legal advisers, the Company was
advised that:

(a) Yuen Xian Company is a wholly foreign
owned enterprise established in the PRC
on 21 October 2009 and is wholly owned
by a company, namely Yuenxian Mining
Industry Holding Company Limited (“HK
Yuenxian”). Ms Leung Lai Ching Margaret
(“"Ms Leung”) is one of the directors and
the legal representative of Yuen Xian
Company.

(b) HK Yuenxian (formerly known as Forest
Source Mining Industry Holding Company
Limited) is a company incorporated in
Hong Kong on 29 August 2008 and is
wholly owned by Ms Leung. Ms Leung is
also the sole director of HK Yuenxian.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 75 R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—F——F + —A=1T—HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

Loss of controls over assets of QHFSMI and
IMFSMI (Continued)

Disputes with Ms Leung

In November 2009, a legal proceeding was
commenced by Hong Kong Forest Source
Mining Industry Holding Company Limited
("HKFSMIH"), QHFSMI and IMFSMI, all of which
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group,
against HK Yuenxian, Ms Leung and such other
persons named as co-defendants to such legal
proceedings. The Company sought and obtained,
among other things, an interim injunction order
from the Hong Kong Court in the following
terms:

(a) An injunction restraining, amongst
others, HK Yuenxian and Ms Leung from
carrying on business in Hong Kong and/
or the PRC under the name of Forest
Source Mining Industry Holding Company
Limited (subsequently known as HK
Yuenxian since 7 January 2010); and

(b) An injunction restraining, amongst
others, Ms Leung from acting or
holding out as a director of QHFSMI
or interfering with the business of
QHFSMI, including but not limited to
making any representations, requests,
demands or promises to the Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region Commerce
and Industry Bureau or any other
governmental agencies in the PRC on
behalf of QHFSMI in regard to any affairs
of or relating to QHFSMI.

The interim injunction order was subsequently
discharged on 30 March 2010.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#E=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Loss of controls over assets of QHFSMI and
IMFSMI (Continued)

Ms Leung'’s legal status as director and legal
representative in the PRC subsidiaries remained
unchanged during the year in the absence of her
cooperation

Ms Leung was a director and legal representative
of both QHFSMI and IMFSMI. On 10 September
2009, the sole shareholder of QHFSMI and
IMFSMI (i.e. HKFSMIH) had resolved to remove
Ms Leung’'s capacity as director and legal
representative of both QHFSMI and IMFSMI with
immediate effect. As disclosed in the Company's
circular dated 28 June 2010, the respective
members of the board of directors and legal
representative of QHFSMI and IMFSMI had not
yet been officially changed as the procedures of
changing and updating the official records at the
relevant PRC government authority took longer
than expected as Ms Leung, being the then legal
representative, was not cooperative and failed to
provide the requested documents and corporate
seals.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 75 R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—F——F + —A=1T—HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Loss of controls over assets of QHFSMI and
IMFSMI (Continued)

Transfer of exploration licence without the
Company’s knowledge, consent or approval

The Group acquired QHFSMI from Ms Leung in
2007. QHFSMI was the holder of an exploration
licence which conferred QHFSMI the rights
to conduct exploration work for the mineral
resources containing iron, vanadium and
titanium in the titanium mine located at Xiao
Hong Shan in Inner Mongolia, the PRC. Based
on the search conducted by the Company’s legal
advisers, the exploration licence was transferred,
without the Company’s knowledge, consent or
approval, to Yuen Xian Company on 31 January
2010. Such actions by Ms Leung were not
expected in view of the interim injunction order
obtained by the Company from the Hong Kong
Court, details of which are set out in the sub-
paragraph headed “Disputes with Ms Leung”
above. Without the exploration licence, QHFSMI
no longer has the rights to, among other things,
carry out exploration of the mineral resources of
the titanium mine, access to the titanium mine
and neighbouring areas and has no priority in
obtaining the mining rights of the titanium mine.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#E=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

Loss of controls over assets of QHFSMI and
IMFSMI (Continued)

Transfer of exploration licence without the
Company’s knowledge, consent or approval
(Continued)

As soon as the Company had discovered the loss
of QHFSMI's exploration licence, the Company
sought advice from its legal advisers. Given the
discovery of the loss of significant assets of
QHFSMI, the board of directors is no longer in
the position of maintaining controls over QHFSMI
and IMFSMI by the Group. As a consequence,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group no longer has the power to exercise its
right as the shareholder and thus has lost its
control over the assets and operations and is
unable to exercise control over the financial
and operating policy decisions of QHFSMI
and IMFSMI. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company consider that it is inappropriate to
consolidate the financial statements of QHFSMI
and IMFSMI into the Group and these two
wholly-owned subsidiaries are de-consolidated
and classified as discontinued operations from
2010.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 75 R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—F——F + —A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii)  De-consolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI

The Group has been unable to obtain the
financial information of QHFSMI and IMFSMI
since 2010. The directors of the Company
consider that the Group had lost its control to
govern the financial and operating policies of
QHFSMI and IMFSMI with effect from 1 January
2010. Accordingly, the financial information of
QHFSMI and IMFSMI was de-consolidated with
effect from 1 January 2010. Details of the de-
consolidating QHFSMI are set out in note 37.

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-
group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group's perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#E=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date.
All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 75 R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—F——F + —A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded 1
January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first applied
HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for in accordance
with the transition requirements in the standard. Such
balances are not adjusted upon first application of the
standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of such
consideration are treated as adjustments to the cost of
these business combinations and are recognised as part
of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—Z——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to control
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included
in a disposal group. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company's
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=Z——F+-_A=+—HItFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Accounting for production sharing
contracts

Production sharing contracts constitute jointly controlled
operations. The Group’s interests in production sharing
contracts are accounted for in the financial statements
on the following bases:

(i) the assets that the Group controls and the
liabilities that the Group incurs; and

(ii) the share of expenses that the Group incurs
and its share of income from the production
according to the terms stipulated in these
contracts.

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 &% =

E——F+t-A=+—RLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$
at the closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the exchange reserve
in equity. Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the acquisition of
a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated into HK$ at
the closing rates.
recognised in the exchange reserve in equity.

Exchange differences arising are

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+ —A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable for the sale of goods and the use

by others of the Group's assets yielding interest, and

dividends, net of rebates and discounts. Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

0)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

sale of goods are recognised upon transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
buyers. This is usually taken as the time when
the goods are delivered and the customer has
accepted the goods;

sale of crude oil is recognised from the Group’s
share of income (including cost recovery oil,
investment recovery oil and share oil) according
to the terms stipulated in the contract, details of
which are set out in note 38;

sale of electricity and heat is recognised upon
the transmission of electricity and heat to the
customer; and

interest income is recognised on time proportion
basis using effective interest method.

(f)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#EZ=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.
A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when
incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the
fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of
consideration paid, the excess is recognised in profit or
loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
Accounting policies for the impairment of goodwill are
set out in note 3(I).
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

()

Goodwill (continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash generating unit (“CGU") to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and
then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or
loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at the
date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation expense is included in other operating
expenses in profit or loss and is provided as follows.

- Exploration and evaluation assets under oil
production business is amortised on unit of
production method.

- Customers’ contracts is amortised when the
revenue of the related customer contracts is
recognised.

- Interests in oil production sharing contracts
under oil production business is amortised on
unit of production method.

(h)

(i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—Z——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EXRSHEMAL &)
POLICIES (continued)

(i) Property, plant and equipment (G) V¥ - BERXRE

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction M WEREE(ERIR([E
in progress (“CIP")) are stated at cost less accumulated IR BRIN IR RETINE
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of RAEDBEEEDER - BE 2R
an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly BREEBEBIAKRGEEEZBRTER
attributable cost of bringing the asset to the working B2 TERRRME 2 EMBEZERE
condition and location for its intended use. ERCAS o

Other than oil properties, depreciation is provided to BB E SN - FT E IR ET A (5 R
write off the cost less their estimated residual values, if FHA DA B AR A 88 AR AR B (R R
any, over their estimated useful lives, using straight-line BE(WNE)FE FEMOT:

method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings at mining site The shorter of the lease ANy RIEH RS04
terms and 50 years BT (B EH
RAEE)
Buildings The shorter of lease terms EF R E K 29%F
and 29 years (AEBEH
RAEE)
Plant and machinery 12 to 15 years M7 ks 12E155F
Leasehold improvements, 3 to 10 years HEWE 3E10%F
furniture, office & RIM-
equipment and motor N
vehicles K&RE
Depreciation on oil properties is provided to write off BHPEZIEEREAERER
the cost of the oil properties using unit of production MR EERERERAEESLE
method utilising only proved developed oil reserves as W8 A o B E 2 BN ET & e

the depletion base.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+ —A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

The assets’ estimated useful lives, depreciation methods
and estimated residual values are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

CIP represents property, plant and equipment under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is not depreciated. Cost comprises direct
costs incurred during the periods of construction,
installation and testing. CIP is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
and depreciation commences when the construction
work is completed and the asset is ready for use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#EZ=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

(1

Prepaid land lease payments

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under
an operating lease are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated on straight-line method over the term of
lease/right of use except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the time pattern of benefits to
be derived by the Group from use of the land.

Impairment of other assets

Goodwill, property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments, intangible assets and interests in
subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value-
in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and the risk specific
to the asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

U

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generate cash inflow independently (i.e.
CGUs). As a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested as CGU level.
Goodwill in particular is allocated to those CGUs that
are expected to benefit from synergies of the related
business combination and represent the lowest level
within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the
carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment
loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the CGU,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or
value-in-use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods including impairment losses
recognised in an interim period. In respect of other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—Z——F+-_A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a clearly distinguishable
component of the Group’s business that has been
disposed of, abandoned or is classified as held for sale,
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations of the Group.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating lease. Where the Group has the right to use
of assets held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss using
straight-line method over the lease terms except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period which they are incurred.

(n)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE =T ——F+ —A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of coal is determined using
weighted average method. All other cost is determined
using first-in, first-out method, and in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling prices in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial assets

Recognition and measurement

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade
date. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred. At each reporting
date, financial assets are reviewed to assess whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the financial
asset.

(p)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 &% =

E——F+t-A=+—RLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. These are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.

method,

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed
to determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment. Financial assets are impaired if there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the assets and that event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

such as a default or

a breach of contract,
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- Significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

(p)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss of
the period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised at the date the impairment is
reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.

(p)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 &% =

E——F+t-A=+—RLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(q)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised at the date the impairment is
reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense
in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

(p)

(q)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=Z——F+-_A=+—HItFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q)

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts; and

(b) the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

(a)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
135 3R & M =

For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#EZ=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EXRSHEMRE &)
POLICIES (continued)

(q) Accounting for income taxes (Continued) (q) FIEHZETERE (&)
The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax REBESNATERLEEZ
liabilities in net if, and only if, BIETRIBE ERRCERIEAE
(@)  the entity has a legally enforceable right to (@) REBEKEGRGIFITER]

set off current tax assets against current tax VA & BT 7% 8 = B E BAT
liabilities; and BEREHE: &

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax (b) FEETIBE = BT IEE
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the BEEFE— BB AR A T H
same taxation authority on either: R —IEBRE ISR E R
(i) the same taxable entity; or (i) mA—EAEHREE: =X
(ii) different taxable entities which intend (ii) TRAMERER-

either to settle current tax liabilities EEERGEERE
and assets on a net basis, or to realise HERNBEELERIEA
the assets and settle the liabilities BEREFEIE
simultaneously, in each future period in FEFLIEE E 0] LA
which significant amounts of deferred [l 1) & & 5 2Kk 5
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be RFESEESHAM
settled or recovered. BERELREHREHH

BEMRARBEESR

(r) Cash and cash equivalents n HREERBEELZEEEH
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and RekBHeFHEEERERITETF
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term SEIR @ RITEEIF R R RE B H
highly liquid investments with original maturities of AR=EAATEARER LR
three months or less that are readily convertible into EAMReHEREEETRR A
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an ZEnBMEREE - RE2NEE
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of mEXRME RekReFMEIEAEAE
the statement of cash flows presentation, cash and cash BIEEEREEABRALEERS
equivalents include bank overdrafts which are repayable EIREKRE D 2 RITEZ ©

on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued. Any transaction costs associated with the
issue of shares are deducted from share premium (net
of any related income tax benefit) to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and accruals, amount due to non-controlling
shareholder, bank and other borrowings, promissory
notes and convertible bonds.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group's accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 3(g)).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

(s)

(t)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 &% =

E——F+t-A=+—RLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Trade and other payables and accruals, amount
due to non-controlling shareholder and promissory
notes

These are recognised initially at their fair value and
using
effective interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

subsequently measured at amortised cost,

Convertible bonds that contain an equity
component

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability and an equity
component.

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain
both financial liability and equity components are
classified separately into respective liability and equity
components on initial recognition. On initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the proceeds
of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the
call option for conversion of the bonds into equity, is
included in equity as convertible bond equity reserve.

(t)

MEaE &)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible bonds that contain an equity
component (Continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using effective interest method. The
equity component will remain in equity until conversion
or redemption of the bonds.

When the bonds are converted, the convertible bond
equity reserve and the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred to
share capital and share premium as the consideration
for the shares issued. If the bonds are redeemed, the
convertible bond equity reserve is released directly to
accumulated losses.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.

(t)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#EZ=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Retirement benefits costs and short-
term employee benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

(v)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Retirement benefits costs and short-
term employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for all its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

According to the relevant regulations in the PRC, the
subsidiaries of the Group operating in the PRC are
required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the respective local municipal governments,
whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of the basic salaries of their
employees to the scheme to fund their retirement
benefits. The scheme is responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees
and the Group has no further obligations for the actual
pension payments or other post-retirement benefits
beyond the employer contributions. Contributions under
the scheme are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules and regulations in
the PRC.

(v)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#EZ=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Retirement benefits costs and short-
term employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they are accrued to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for unused annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the reporting date. Non-accumulating compensated
absences such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that
the grants are intended to compensate. Government
grants relating to the purchase of assets are included
in liabilities as deferred government grants in the
statement of financial position and are recognised in
profit or loss on straight-line method over the expected
lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in
gross under “Other income” in the consolidated income
statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—Z——F+-_A=+—HItFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its employees
and directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at their
fair values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the share options awarded. Their value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets).

For other goods or services received by the Group
in exchange for the grant of any share-based
compensation, they are directly measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period if
vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when the equity instruments
granted vest immediately unless the compensation
qualifies for recognition as asset, with a corresponding
increase in the share option reserve in equity. If vesting
conditions apply, the expense is recognised over the
vesting period, based on the best available estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of equity instruments
that are expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently
revised, if there is any indication that the number
of equity instruments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates. No adjustment to expense
recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 &% =

E——F+t-A=+—RLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(y)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. After vesting
date, when the vested share options are later forfeited
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

o Supply of electricity and heat; and
o Qil production.

Trading of carpets business was ceased and has been
classified as discontinued operations during the year.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product line requires different resources
as well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment
transfers are priced with reference to prices charged to
external parties for similar orders.

(x)

(y)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—Z——F+-_A=+—HItFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EAES:tHFEH®E @)
POLICIES (continued)

(y) Segment reporting (Continued) (y) 28B®|SE (&)

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting REBBEE ST ISR EERES
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those G D HEEMA ST EHURE
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs, BB BB E L RE B
except that finance costs, income tax and corporate R FTER A E MR - M FE (] =
income and expenses which are not directly attributable BOREBEEREES 2 HHK
to the business activities of any operating segment are ZSl ﬁfT S UNGIE N A
not included in arriving at the operating results of the ANSBED BB FE-

operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but corporate assets DHEEREMEEE BXFE
which are not directly attributable to the business EE@EH@.LEE%W&@JEF@Z
activities of any operating segment are not allocated RABETEIREEMSE

to a segment, which primarily applies to the Group's FTEHANEBLE -
headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are SRABTBETFETMEES R
not directly attributable to the business activities of any ¥R EHEEEEZARIBE  Z
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment. RRBABNTENEEEM S
No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to FEEORTERARIRED LR

reportable segments.

(z) Related parties (z) BEAT
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s (a) RE TRt 2 — ALk
family is related to the Group if that person: HERXREKBBHR AR
Ce okl
(i) has control or joint control over the (i) HAEBE BTG X
Group; HEES
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; (ii) HAEBBEEKY
or 25
(iii) is a member of key management (iii) ZK'*IYZK%.
personnel of the Group or the Company’s NEEFEERBABR
parent. HIpK B ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 & &

=F St =HA=t HULFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(z) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)
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The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);
and

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

POLICIES (continued)
(z) Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
rarely equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Depreciation

Other than oil properties and CIP, the Group depreciates its
property, plant and equipment using straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives of 3 to 50 years. The estimated
useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of the periods that
the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of these property, plant and equipment.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EAES:tHFEH®E @)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#EZ=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Impairment of receivables

The Group’'s management reviews receivables on a regular
basis to determine if any provision for impairment is necessary.
The impairment loss on receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
Allowances for impairment of receivables are determined by
management of the Group based on the repayment history
of its debtors and the current market conditions. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
receivable is impaired. Management reassesses the impairment
of receivables, if any, at the reporting date.

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

The Group tests on annual basis whether goodwill is impaired
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 3(I).
The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
judgement and estimates of the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGUs, the timeframe for the cash flows forecast
and the suitable discount rates in order to calculate the present
value. Details in impairment assessment are set out in note 19
to the financial statements.

Estimated impairment of the intangible
assets

Fair value of customers’ contracts is determined based on
excess earnings method. These calculations require the use
of estimates about future cash flows, discount rate and
duration of customers’ contracts. In the process of estimation,
management makes assumptions about future cash flow, costs
and duration of customers’ contracts.

Fair value of interests in oil production sharing contract is
determined based on the income approach. These calculations
require the use of estimates about future cash flows, discount
rate and oil reserves. In the process of estimation, management
makes assumptions about future cash flow, costs and oil
reserves.

4,
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Valuation of convertible bonds

The directors of the Company use their judgement in selecting
an appropriate valuation technique for the Group’s convertible
bonds which are not quoted in the active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The fair value of the liability and equity components embedded
the convertible bonds are estimated by an independent
professional valuer. The fair value of these components varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any
change in these variables so adopted may materially affect the
estimation of the fair value of these components.

Control on QHFSMI and IMFSMI

As described in notes 3(a)(ii) and 3(a)(iii) to the financial
statements, as soon as the Company had discovered the loss
of QHFSMI's exploration licence, without the Company’'s
knowledge, consent or approval, the Company sought advice
from its legal advisers. Given the discovery of the loss of
significant assets of QHFSMI, the board of directors is no
longer in the position of maintaining the Group’s controls
over QHFSMI and IMFSMI. As a consequence, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group no longer has the
power to exercise its rights as the shareholder and thus has
lost its controls over the assets and operations and is unable
to exercise the control over the financial and operating policy
decisions of QHFSMI and IMFSMI. Accordingly, the directors of
the Company consider that it is inappropriate to consolidate
the financial statements of QHFSMI and IMFSMI into the
Group and these two-wholly owned subsidiaries have been de-
consolidated and classified as discontinued operations since
2010.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#EZ=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimation of oil reserves

Qil reserves are key elements in the Company’s investment
decision-making process. They are also an important element
in testing for impairment. Changes in oil reserves will affect
unit of production depreciation, depletion and amortisation
recorded in the financial statements for oil properties and
intangible assets related to oil production activities. A
reduction in oil reserves will increase depreciation, depletion
and amortisation (assuming constant production) and reduce
net profit. Qil reserve estimates are subject to revision, either
upward or downward, based on new information, such as from
developing drilling and production activities or from changes
in economic factors, including product prices or development
plans. In general, changes in the technical maturity of oil
reserves resulting from new information becoming available
from development and production activities have tended to be
the most significant cause of annual revisions.

Taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. There are certain transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax provisions in the period
in which such final tax liabilities determination is made.

4,
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5.

The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to the
financial statements. Turnover of the Group is the revenue from
these activities on continuing and discontinued operations.

Revenue from the Group's principal activities and other income
recognised are as follows:

W3 & H Atb U A

AL £ B RN BRI 1 5 -
AEBEEBARAE RS REREKILT
CES RIS

AEBTBEK 2 WEMEBEREMUKA
HHWT

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—E——F —E-TF
FAx FAE
(rE5)
Revenue on continuing operations BREKEEBZRE
Sale of electricity and heat HEE N LB 103,844 44,413
Sale of crude oil $HE R 127,544 =
231,388 44,413
Other income on continuing BESEEE2HMKA
operations
Bank interest income RITH B WA 352 121
Exchange gain, net PE 5 Uz 5 58 2,983 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BFEREE2 B
plant and equipment 360 -
Government grants (note) AT B (B 5E) 37,115 5,561
Gain on extinguishment of non-current ~ HEHIERBEE 2w (HH5E29)
borrowings (note 29) 12,198 -
Sundry income FIEWA 172 3,353
53,180 9,035
Note: M 5T
Government grants IR 4 BY

This mainly represented unconditional grants from the local government
in the PRC to the Group to compensate its selling price of heat energy
supplied to the local central heat transmit station.

Turnover of the Group for the year is HK$231,388,000 (2010:
HK$45,620,000).

TERTRMTBAHAREZ B
I ERL TR R R HEREZE

REBRAFE 24 ¥ A231,388,000/8 7
(== —Z4F 145,620,000 7C) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=T——F+=—A=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has identified its operating segments and prepared
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to management of the Group for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group's business
components and review of these components’ performance.
The business components in the internal reporting to
management of the Group are determined following the
Group's major product and service lines. The Group has
identified the following reportable segments.

(a) the Supply of Electricity and Heat segment represents
the business of generation and supplying of electricity
and heat; and

(b) the Oil Production segment represents the business of
oil production.

There was no inter-segment sale and transfer during the year
(2010: Nil).

7R B B AR R E B A AN & 1B 2 TR T T R A
HREDEEREANKERTD P Miw st
ZENDBRAZNAHGER BIHE
EBDREEREDEEN -RAAEEEEE
ETABBREZEB DR IIZRAEE T
ZEmMREBRETE - A& E B LI
THEDHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (@)
Supply of
Electricity and Heat 0il Production Total
BEME EW @it
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented) (Re-presented) (Re-presented)
“E—-%| -—%2-% E—-% | —Z-ZF | ZB--f | _Z-%%
TERL TAT TER TER TER TER
(E575)) (& =5)) (&s5))
Reportable segment revenue: BEDBKE:
From external customers RENERP 2 Mz 103,844 44,413 127,544 - 231,388 44,413
Reportable segment (loss)/profit REANE (BB) /&7 (72,537) (46,082) 30,594 606,270 (41,943) 560,188
Bank interest income ROFEKA 227 47 122 - 349 47
Gain on extinguishment of BEFRDEE NG
non-current borrowings 1,838 = 10,360 = 12,198 =
Depreciation ik 28,430 9,723 19,114 - 47,544 9,723
Amortisation of BN LB ETEEH
prepaid land lease payments 668 269 - . 668 269
Amortisation of intangible assets EVEESE 16,459 6,406 15,822 - 32,281 6,406
Impairment loss on goodwill BERNEEER 64,674 49,064 - - 64,674 49,064
Excess of acquirer's interest WEFEEREER 2
in net fair value of acquiree's NHREE BERY
identifiable assets, liabilities R RTEEL
and contingent liabilities over cost ERBLEKAZAE - - - 606,270 - 606,270
Reportable segment assets BEPBEE 696,669 787,534 2,401,802 2,369,306 3,138,471 3,156,840
Additions to non-current segment TEEERBHBEELM
assets during the year 4,529 757,690 119,350 2,239,616 123,879 2,997,306
Reportable segment liabilities EPEEE 110,704 157,404 688,599 622,372 799,303 779,776
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THEER (&)

RARELZED P2 2 BT BT
BRAPSINNAREEZMBHFT 2R

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group's key financial figures as presented in

the financial statements as follows: OIS
2011 2010
Group AEE HK$’000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
S x5
FAR F
(E=75)
Reportable segment revenue HE D Bk 231,388 44,413
Consolidated revenue e W 231,388 44,413
Reportable segment (loss)/profit HESE(BE) EF (41,943) 560,188
Finance costs B 75 A 7R (13,096) (5,229)
Other unallocated income Hfth R 5 B WA 3 73
Other unallocated expenses HEh koA (10,778) (22,461)

(Loss)/profit before income tax and BRPTERLA R B4R I8 & %75

discontinued operations (Ei8) %7 (65,814) 532,571
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—z——% —E-zF
FHR FB
(gz=75)
Reportable segment assets WEPBEE 3,138,471 3,156,840
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 316 447
Cash at banks and in hand RITHEGERFERS 5,599 16,688
Other corporate assets EmpEEE 1,328 1,607
Group assets rEEEE 3,145,714 3,175,582
Reportable segment liabilities WENBEE 799,303 779,776
Convertible bonds AR ES 14,484 20,292
Promissory notes rE 28,707 43,865
Other corporate liabilities HibXaE 37,400 39,382
Group liabilities rEEEE 879,894 883,315

FIAERBINEER 2WEBURPE (fF
) BPFIEREDIREMINERZ

All revenues from external customers are located in the PRC
(domicile). Geographical location of customers is based on the

location at which the goods delivered. No geographical location MERE D - BHRARBHIERBDEEERA
of non-current assets is presented as substantial non-current R E - E UL 25 3R B E E P
assets are physically based in the PRC. & e
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEH (#)
Revenue from the major customers is as follows: REFEREP ZKEHWAT
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—2——F =
FAx FA
(r=E5)
Customer A (note a) ZFEA (MfsEa) 127,544 =
Customer B (note b) ZFB (MfsEb) 24,058 7,863
Customer C (note b) EFEC (KisEb) - 10,380
Customer D (note b) ZFED (KisEb) - 10,050
Customer E (note b) ZPFE(H5EDb) - 5,611
151,602 33,904
Notes: B 5
(a) Revenue from this customer was derived from the Oil (a) REZBREP 2 W KRR EBRDHE -
Production segment.
(b) Revenue from these customers was derived from the Supply of (b) REZERP ZWGmRFERBERES
Electricity and Heat segment. e
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BMBRA
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —T-FF
FHET FHET
Continuing operations: BELEER:
Interest on bank and other borrowings ~ —F R E| 82 817 & E b & FFE
due within one year 6,011 3,065
Imputed interest on promissory notes REZHENE (H5E30)
(note 30) 2,459 11
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR E S 2 EE A E (FFE31)
(note 31) 1,851 2,153
Imputed interest on non-current FERBEE AR E (HFE24)
borrowings (note 24) 392 -
Loss on redemption of promissory notes & Bl A% 7 518 (M 7£30)
(note 30) 2,383 -
13,096 5,229
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8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8.

(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting) the following:

BRATEBLAT (B18) &R

BRATEHAT (BR), aFEMER (5
AN)VAT&IE:

2011 2010
HK$"000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
S i —z-%5
FERT FHET
(=51)
Continuing operations: FEREEK:
Cost of inventories recognised as BRAERIZEERAN

expense 66,245 19,332
Depreciation e 47,649 9,838
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEfT AR BRI 8 (M EE17)

payments (note 17) 668 269
Amortisation of intangible assets M & E G (fTsE20) *

(note 20) * 32,281 6,406
Auditor’s remuneration 2 BRED B & 954 700
Exchange (gain)/loss, net E 5 (Wa) 1855 (2,983) 381
Impairment loss of goodwill (note 19) EEREEE (MF19) 64,674 49,064
Loss on disposals of property, plant and & E - BE L& E 2 EE*

equipment * - 269
Operating lease charges on land and THREFIEEHOER

buildings 2,536 741
Provision for impairment loss of other Hib B RIB R EEERE

receivables * - 39
Staff costs, including directors’ BEINA BREEEFH

emoluments (note 14) (HfEE14) 25,036 7,705
* Included in “Other operating expenses” on the face of the - Bt AGABRRERZ [HOEERx] -

consolidated income statement.

Depreciation expenses of HK$43,225,000 (2010:
HK$9,337,000) and HK$4,424,000 (2010: HK$501,000 (re-
presented)) were included in cost of sales and administrative
expenses respectively.
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9. INCOME TAX CREDIT 9. MEHETA

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group had HRAEERNREFEABRESBSEEME
no estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong ] 1 5 FE AR Bt g ) + I 428 I 5 8 F) 15 Y

Kong for both years. e B4 o
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2——F e
THERT FHET

Current tax — the PRC EHINIE -

— Current year —AREE 221 145
Deferred tax — the PRC IRFE R I —

— Current year (note 32) —AEE (H5E32) (2,102) (1,602)
Income tax credit FTEHiat A (1,881) (1,457)
Reconciliation between income tax credit and the accounting RERAMXGFEZMEHAAEG (B
(loss)/profit at applicable tax rates: B)mFHERNT

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

—2——fF —E-ZF

THERT FET

(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETEELAT (E18),HF (67,271) 181,583

Tax at the applicable rates to (loss)/profit ¥R FTH G AR 2 (EiE)

in the tax jurisdictions concerned S mMRB AR RS E 2 HIE (15,466) 80,985
Tax effect of non-taxable income ERBMWMA 2 RB B (12,442) (267,589)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AP 2 MG 26,087 186,603
Tax effect of prior year's unrecognised RNEEYHEFE 2 RERBIA

tax losses utilised this year EEZUBETE = (1,792)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRIBEE BT E - 336
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary AR EZHIREEE

differences (60) -
Income tax credit FrigHiat A (1,881) (1,457)
Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi Heat and Power Company WA EBELREER AR ([WHA
Limited (“Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi”) and China Era Energy REEA]) RPREFERERKEBR AT
Power Investment Limited’s (“China Era”’s) branches in Beijing (FREER])RAELEREERZ D AT
and Jilin, the PRC are subject to PRC enterprise income tax at REFERS% (ZE—FF:25%) 2
the tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%) for the year. RN BEDERRFH -

HERERREERERAT « —T——FF® 105




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
135 3R & M =

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=T——F+=—A=1+—HILFE

10. DIVIDENDS 10. BE
The board of directors did not recommend any payment of FR - BEEEEETERNEARE(ZT
dividends during the year (2010: Nil). —TEE) o
11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 11. ERLEREXRK
As mentioned in note 1, trading of carpet business is presented AR EE1 A - AR E RN EF NIRIR BB
as discontinued operations in accordance with HKFRS 5 during iﬁiﬁ@” EST M EBEB 2T RE
the year. IEAE 2T o
An analysis of the results and cash flows of discontinued I RNrE BaRkirAaReRERZE
operations included in the consolidated income statement and RIS 2 EZBERBASROMEAT
the consolidated statement of cash flows was as follows:
2011 2010
= —E-TE
Trading of Trading of Exploration
Carpet Carpet of Mine
Business Business Business Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented) (Re-presented) (Re-presented)
WERREN | wBEEEE  BEOREH w3t
FET FHET FHET FHT
(EE75) (E75) (&E5))
Revenue U %5 - 1,207 - 1,207
Expenses (253 (1,457) (3,229) - (3,229)
Loss before income tax FIEHAIER (1,457) (2,022) - (2,022)
Income tax expense BIES b3 = - -
(1,457) (2,022) (2,022)
Loss on de-consolidating subsidiaries ~ f{BRATHBEEAKZ
(note 37) B1a (f537) - - (348,966) (348,966)
Loss for the year from discontinued REFDRIELEEBR
operations and attributable to AREEE ARG EE
the owners of the Company (1,457) (2,022) (348,966) (350,988)
Operating cash outflows frER e (311) (270) - (270)
Investing cash outflows RERS R - (32) - (32)
Net cash outflows BemdiFs (311) (302) - (302)
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12. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE 12. XRQATEEAEWNL (EBB),
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY & A
Of the consolidated loss attributable to the owners RARRIER A4 A E1861,750,000
of the Company of HK$61,750,000 (2010: a profit of Bt (ZF —ZF : % 1184,887,000/8
HK$184,887,000), a loss of HK$18,630,000 (2010: JT)H 0 A 2018,630,0008 L (ZE—Z
HK$370,008,000) has been dealt with in the financial £ :370,008,000%8 70) Z BB E R A A )
statements of the Company. M MR IR

13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BR(EEB) BF

The calculations of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the

following data:

ARREBABIEERERNREE (BEB)
S B TIRE AT BT & -

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$"000
(Re-presented)
—B——F —E-ZF
FHERT FHET
(rE5)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to MU EESRER (EE) &7
the owners of the Company for ZARNRHE ANEEARFE
the purpose of basic (loss)/earnings (FE518) &7
per share (61,750) 184,887
Loss for the year attributable to the REZARRIEB ABRE K LE
owners of the Company from BTG EE
discontinued operations (1,457) (350,988)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to ~ AT HEEGRER (E18) AF)
the owners of the Company for the ZAFEARRRHEE ANEREE
purpose of basic (loss)/earnings per xR (B8 BT
share from continuing operations (60,293) 535,875
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEEELBAR 2 FE:
shares:
— Imputed interest on convertible — AR ES AR S
bonds - 2,153
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to ARt EFEE (BE) &BF
the owners of the Company for the ZARFEARRREEE A
purpose of diluted (loss)/earnings per FEIG IS ERE%5 (BR)
share from continuing operations Y Al (60,293) 538,028
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13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 13. ER (EB8B) BF (#)
2011 2010
‘000 ‘000
= =k
TR T
Number of shares RHEHE

Weighted average number of ordinary AU EERER (BEB)
shares for the purpose of basic (loss)/ Bz LR INEF

earnings per share 20,055,353 8,139,726
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BE#ESERR 2 TE:

shares:

— Convertible bonds — Al A% (& 55 — 519,097

Weighted average number of ordinary RAUGESRE#ES (FB)

shares for the purpose of diluted Bz LR

(loss)/earnings per share 20,055,353 8,658,823
From continuing and discontinued REFERERLREEER:
operations:
The calculation of basic loss per share from continuing and BERERIIKEEBERERNEBED
discontinued operations is based on the loss attributable to BB ARE A AL EE61,750,000
the owners of the Company of HK$61,750,000 (2010: a profit B (ZZE—ZF :)575184,887,000
of HK$184,887,000) and the weighted average number of BIT)RFERNE BT L BRMNE T
ordinary shares of 20,055,353,000 (2010: 8,139,726,000) in £20,055,353,000l 8 (=& —ZF 4 :
issue during the year. 8,139,726,000/% ) 1 & o
No diluted loss per share from continuing and discontinued HRITEABEFESZEZRG  BWHE
operations attributable to the owners of the Company is ZE -+ A=tT—HLEFELEZS
presented for the year ended 31 December 2011 as there were IARBIHEAANBIEHBERERILEEE
no dilutive potential shares. BEREEEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

13.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

From continuing and discontinued
operations: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the calculation of
diluted earnings per share is based on the adjusted profit
attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$187,040,000
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
8,658,823,000 outstanding during the year ended 31
December 2010, after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The adjusted profit attributable to
the owners of the Company is calculated based on the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2010 of HK$184,887,000 as used in the basic
earnings per share plus interest of HK$2,153,000 derived from
convertible bonds. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in diluted earnings per share is calculated based on
the weighted average of 8,139,726,000 ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2010 as used in the basic
earnings per share plus the weighted average of 519,097,000
ordinary shares deemed to be issued at no consideration as if all
the Company’s convertible bonds had been converted.

The denominators and numerators used are the same as those
details above for both basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share.

From continuing operations:

The calculation of basic loss per share from continuing
operations is based on the loss attributable to the owners
of the Company of HK$60,293,000 (2010: a profit of
HK$535,875,000 (re-presented)) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 20,055,353,000 (2010:
8,139,726,000) in issue during the year.

No diluted loss per share from continuing operations
attributable to the owners of the Company is presented for
the year ended 31 December 2011 as there were no dilutive
potential shares.

13.

SR (E58) BF &)

REFERCRIEEERE:
(#)

BHE-_Z-—ZTE+-_A=+—RHILEE"
FREERADBEARBIEE AEIGE
A F187,040,0008 T R EE T —
TE+_A=+—BHILFEDEITER
B AN#E S £5£18,658,823,000% 52 (4
BFEREEBEEEYE T BRIV E
B) ARAHER NEEKEAREEFIIR
BANGESREARIZBEEZE=S—F
F+_A=+—BHLFEARREE AJE
{34 71184,887,000/8 7T + N E A/ AR &5
ZHM B 2,153,000 LT E - AT EFR
B R 2 AR MR ST R A A
STEEREARFICEE-Z—ZTF+=
A=t—HIFEE&TLERBRMETY
#8,139,726,0000% * hn £ a0 A A &) Al #4
BREHFEBHELMEEEERERTZ
L3 A N F 49 #8519,097,000 0% 51 & -

Al
E
oH]

<

N\ H

S\
=

MRS 8RS FHE EMGEERER
R#E (BR) /BN mAEER-

REGFECERH:

BECEEBESRERNBEDRER
NEHAB ANENEE60,293,0000% 7T
(ZZE—ZF % F535,875,000% 7T
(REEF)RFRBHITEREBMEF
9 $020,055,353,000/% ( =& — T & :
8,139,726,0000% ) st & -

MR EABEEEZE 2R REE
—E——FF+ZR=t+—HIFETESR
JIARRHRAEARERELEXRG SRS
EEE-

ERERREZRERAT « —T— —FFRi
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=T——F+=—A=1+—HILFE

13.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
From continuing operations: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the calculation of
basic earnings per share from continuing operations is based
on the profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
HK$535,875,000 (re-presented) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 8,139,726,000 in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2010. The calculation of
diluted earnings per share is based on the adjusted profit
attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$538,028,000
(re-presented) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 8,658,823,000 outstanding during the year ended 31
December 2010, after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The adjusted profit attributable to
the owners of the Company is calculated based on the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2010 of HK$535,875,000 (re-presented) as used
in the basic earnings per share plus interest of HK$2,153,000
derived from convertible bonds. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings
per share is calculated based on the weighted average of
8,139,726,000 ordinary shares in issue during the year ended
31 December 2010 as used in the basic earnings per share
plus the weighted average of 519,097,000 ordinary shares
deemed to be issued at no consideration as if all the Company’s
convertible bonds had been converted.

The denominators and numerators used are the same as those
details above for both basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share.

From discontinued operations:

The calculation of basic loss per share from discontinued
operations is based on the loss attributable to the owners
of the Company of HK$1,457,000 (2010: HK$350,988,000
(re-presented)) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 20,055,353,000 (2010: 8,139,726,000) in issue
during the year.

No diluted loss per share from discontinued operations
attributable to the owners of the Company is presented for
the year ended 31 December 2011 as there were no dilutive
potential shares.

13.

sk (58) BF &)
REFEREERK: (&)

HE—ZT T E - B=+—H &
B BEBECEEGSRELRRDF HIRE
N QA HEAR A FE 5% 7535,875,0007
T(REF)RBEE-_Z—ZF+ = A
S+ HLEFEEBRITEERMETS
£18,139,726,000% 5T & - & i #8 & F|
TBEARDGER A B EHAEESF
538,028,000/ 7 (K&K EF) kB E =T —
EFE+_A=+—HLIFEBETLE
A& AN#E ¥ 15 218,658,823,000/% 51 & (X
EmBABREEYE AR HE
&) o RARIER AELMSHAE S TR E
ARG ESRERRFNZBE_T—TF
T A=tT—HLEFEERRRER AENL
s #1/535,875,0007% 7T (A& &%) - hn £ 7]
Wﬁﬁ%Zﬂﬁz 153,000/8 oAt & - A LA

BEREERRN 2 L@ mEFESET
*E%J%ﬁﬁua HEREARBAZBE-T—
TE+-_A=t+—BHIFECETERAK
INtEF 15 88,139,726,0008% » 0 il 407K
NAARREHFDBHEEMERABENR
B2 17 2 &R I F 59 ££519,097,000
BErE -

FIAM D 8 Ry FHE G ESRER
F#sE (BR) /BAMAERR -

RESKRIEREEG:

ERIECEEBERERNBE DRI
RNABIHEE AEIREE1,457,000/%
7T (=—ZF —Z 4 :350,988,000/8 T (£
FY))RFABETEBRIMEFY
#20,055,353,000%x ( =& — T 4F:
8,139,726,000/% ) 5+ & -

MR ELBEEEYE RN REE
—E—FF+A=t—HLFELE=Z
JIRRBIHEEABGER EEEEBER
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

13.

14.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
From discontinued operations: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the calculation of basic
loss per share from discontinued operations is based on the loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$350,988,000
(re-presented) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 8,139,726,000 in issue during the year ended 31
December 2010. The calculation of diluted loss per share is
based on the loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of HK$348,835,000 (re-presented) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 8,658,823,000 outstanding
during the year ended 31 December 2010, after adjusting for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The loss
attributable to the owners of the Company is calculated based
on the loss attributable to the owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2010 of HK$350,988,000 (re-
presented) as used in the calculation of basic loss per share.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of diluted loss per share is calculated based on the
weighted average of 8,139,726,000 ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2010 as used in the basic
loss per share plus the weighted average of 519,097,000
ordinary shares deemed to be issued at no consideration as if all
the Company’s convertible bonds had been converted.

The denominators and numerators used are the same as those
details above for both basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

13.

14.

SR (E58) BF &)
RECKRIEKREEK: (&)

HE-_Z—ZF+_A=+—HLF
B ERIEEEXEBEEREARABE R
BA R B HEAE AL E18350,988,000
B (KEY)RHE-_ZT—ZTF+_A
St HALFEEBRTETERMETY
#18,139,726,000/ 51 & - F B HEHEETY
RIR AR Bl A A FE (5 8 18348,835,000
BT (BEY)REBEE_ZE—ZTF+ A
=+ BLEFEEBTTERMETY
#18,658,823,000/% T & (KLALMBEE
S22 EBR T ER) - ANAF
BB ABRERIDBRERB NG ESFRER
EEzBE-_T—TF+_A=+—AHLt
FEARNREE AL EE350,988,000
B (KEY ) E - AU EEREEE
BrL@aikmEFIEDRERANGFTE
EREAFBEBZBEE-_E-ZTE+ A
=+—RAIEFEBETLRRMEFIHEH
8,139,726,0000% » A0 £ an 2N 2 ) AT 2 A%
BEHFOBHERMEEAERBRTZE
A% h4E T 19 20519,097,000/% 5T & -

RSB EDFHE FAGEGRER
REE (BR) /BRrAERER -

E)E?E%UF%S‘Z (BREEMH

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
e —z—2f
FTER FHT
(=3)
Continuing operations: BEREEK:

Wages, salaries and allowances TE&- e kEM 23,924 7,523

Pension costs — defined contribution BIRE KA — EREHFRIKET S
retirement plans 1,112 182
25,036 7,705
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#EZ=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

15. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND FIVE 15. ESRANVESFMALHS
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEHE
Salaries,
allowances  Contribution to
and benefits retirement
Fees in kind  benefit scheme Total
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ec k- 3:92 BIRER
we BENEA sHEIER @5t
Bt TExT TExT FTEx FTExT
2011 —E——-F
Executive directors HITEES
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing PR &R 5 & - - - -
Mr. Wang Donghai FTRBEE - = = =
Mr. Luo Nianru EmMEE 0] - - = -
Ms. Wang Meiyan TRt (ii) - 672 - 672
Mr. Yang Guangming BB EE (ii) = = = =
Mr. Law Fei Shing BEWLE (iii) - 2,337 12 2,349
Mr. Chan Sung Wai PR (iv) = = = =
Independent non- BIkHTES
executive directors
Mr. Wang Jinghua FTEELE (v) 18 - - 18
Mr. Choi Chi Fai BEEEE v) 30 - - 30
Mr. Lum Pak Sum WIRZRELE (vi) 30 - - 30
Mr. Sun Tak Keung FEBREE (iii) 30 - - 30
Mr. Chow Pui Fung FAEELE (vi) = = = =
108 3,009 12 3,129
Notes: B -
(i) Appointed on 7 November 2011. (i) R-_E——F+—AtHEZ
£
(ii) Appointed on 25 January 2011. (ii) R—_E——F—A=_+HBEE
E{E-
(iii) Resigned on 1 January 2012. (iii) R-_E——F— A —HEfE-
(iv) Resigned on 12 April 2011. (iv) RZE——FWNA+_HB&
£
(v) Appointed on 1 July 2011. (v) RZE——FELA—HEZ
£
(vi) Resigned on 1 July 2011. (vi) R-_E——FtA—BET-
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 15. ESRANVESFMALTHS
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) (#&)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEM< (@)
Salaries,
allowances Contribution to
and benefits retirement
Fees in kind benefit scheme Total
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5o 2R RIRER
e EME T Bl EEE
Bt = FHT THT FHT FHET
2010 —E-Z&
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Law Fei Shing BIRS 4 - 1,800 12 1,812
Mr. Chan Sung Wai BREELEE - - - -
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing PREISK 5L & - - - -
Mr. Wang Donghai FTRELEE - - - -
Mr. Zhao Guogiang B o8 5 A (i) = = = -

Non-executive director FHTES

Mr. Zhang Zhenming SRIREA K 4 0) - 7 - -
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors

Mr. Lum Pak Sum MR E & 60 - - 60

Mr. Sun Tak Keung FEEEE 30 - - 30

Mr. Chow Pui Fung FEg %% - - - -
90 1,800 12 1,902

Note: P 5E -

(i) Resigned on 10 November 2010. (i) RZE—ZFTF+—A+HE

£
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#EZ=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 15. EERANVBSHFMALTHMES
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (cContinued) (#&)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office (2010: Nil).

There were no arrangements under which a director
of the Company waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2010: Nil).

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group during the year included 2 directors (2010:
1) and their emoluments are included in the above
analysis. Details of the emoluments of the remaining 3
individuals (2010: 4) during the year are as follows:

EEME (@)

FR AEELBAARFEES
NEAME - FERMARKERR
INEAR 2 BE A RBERME (=
E-FF )

FR YEEAAAREERER
REREEAMES 228 (ZF—
TEE) -

TfusmEHFEMAL

FA-AEELUESFHALE
ERLES (Z2—2F: —fu)-
BZMEFBER2E LXMW F
N BRT=RAL(ZT-FF:
i) 2 MEFBNT

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
S i —z—2F
TEx FAT
Basic salaries, housing benefits,  E A& EE28k-
other allowances and benefits EMZAIREYF =
in kind 1,661 1,649
Contribution on defined TE BE M FUR K18 ) 5T &) 2 3k
contribution retirement
benefit plans 30 47
1,691 1,696

Number of the remaining highest paid individuals whose

B F- A T EE 2 87 T 5 = 2 B

emoluments fell within the following band is as follows: ATEHBELOT:
2011 2010
—e——% -5
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£ 21,000,000/ 7T 3 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the above highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office (2010: Nil).

FA AR E A S
AEZAERAME  EAIMALSE
Bl N 2 B RAE AR A
B(ZB—2F :8\)-
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W% HERKE
(a) Group (a) A£H

Leasehold

improvements,

Buildings furniture, office

at the Oil Plant and equipment and
mining site Buildings properties machinery motor vehicles ar Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

BENR

RESE 26 i
8% £ RHEE BEREE  BORRRAE HRIR Eh
TR TR TR ThT TET TER TER

At 1 January 2010 RZ%-%

Cost A 2879 - - - 4,734 - 7613
Accumulated depreciation R E 22 - - - (3786) - (4,008)
Net book amount FEFE 2,657 - - - 948 - 3,605

Year ended 31 December

2010
Opening net book amount 2,657 - - - 948 - 3,605
Additions - 58 - 72,409 801 1,594 74,862
Acquisitions of subsidiaries

(notes 36(a) and (b)) - 118,120 99,981 183419 20,199 14,608 436,327
Disposals - - - (266) (215) - (481)
Disposals due to

de-consolidating

subsidiaries (note 37) (2,657) - - - (921) - (3,578)
Exchange differences EizH - 3,733 - 5702 82 49 9,566
Depreciation Vil - (1,715) - (7,647) 479) - (9,841)
Closing net book amount FREEFE - 120,19 99,981 253,617 20,415 16,251 510,460
At 31 December 2010
Cost - 121,944 99,981 261,409 21492 16,251 521,077
Accumulated depreciation  Z3fiTE - (1,748) - (7,19) (1,077) - (10,617)
Net book amount FEFE - 120,19 99,981 253,617 20,415 16,251 510,460
Year ended HZ-3--F125

31 December 2011 Zt-BLEE
Opening net book amount ~ EAIEEFE - 120,19 99,981 253,617 20,415 16,251 510,460
Additions b - 966 - 1,01 5,450 116,445 123,882
Transfer from CIP - - 114,545 - - (114,545) -
Disposals - - - - (m) - (m)
Exchange differences - 3,952 5,339 8,084 745 622 18,742
Depreciation - (4,270) (16,190) (23,311) (3,885) - (47,656)
Closing net book amount ~ FAKEFE - 120,844 203,675 239411 21,954 18,773 604,657
At 31 December 2011 RZB--%

TZB=1-H

Cost e - 126,990 220,135 271,162 26,514 18,773 663,574
Accumulated depreciation 23t & - (6,146) (16,460) (31,751) (4,560) - (58,917)
Net book amount REFE - 120,844 203,675 239411 21,954 18713 604,657
Buildings are located on the prepaid land lease BFARPE BN LA EFIE
payments in the PRC (note 17). (MEE17) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#EZ=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. M¥ BEKRZ®E @)
(Continued)
(b) Company (b) AT
Office equipment
HK$’000
WARE
FET
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZTF+ZA=+—H
Cost B AR 451
Accumulated depreciation ZEITE (441)
Net book amount BREFE 10
Year ended 31 December 2010 HE—_ZT—ZF+-_A=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 10
Depreciation e 3)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 7
At 31 December 2010 RZZE-—ZTFE+-_A=+—H
Cost DN 451
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (444)
Net book amount IRAEFE 7
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-_Z——F+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FYEEFE 7
Additions NE 3
Depreciation e (4)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 6
At 31 December 2011 R=B——F+=HA=+—8H
Cost Bk AR 454
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (448)
Net book amount REFE 6
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. ANt HBAERE-FEE
- GROUP
These represented the Group's interests in leasehold land ZEFERRAEERFREFEE 2 BIETE

R FAE 40T+ Mo A 2 - 1
A MERR R 25 2 REES B

and land use rights in the PRC, held without a specific term.
Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the consolidated

statement of financial position are summarised as follows: T
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—e—-% —z-T%
THERT FHET
Opening net carrying amount FYREFE 29,569 =
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WehE Mt 8 2 &) (Mf5E36(a))

(note 36(a)) - 28,921
Exchange differences PN =& 975 917
Amortisation charges during REZHIHER (HH:E8)

the year (note 8) (668) (269)
Closing net carrying amount FREEEFE 29,876 29,569

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 18. RMIBARIZELHE — XA F

2011 2010
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i —z-T%
g FH&T FET

Investments ®"E
— Unlisted shares, at cost — 3k ETR G B AE (a) = -
Due from subsidiaries JE U5 B X Rk IE (b) 2,654,493 2,632,604
2,654,493 2,632,604
Provision for impairment loss B EERE (1,054,404) (1,047,365)
1,600,089 1,585,239
Due to a subsidiary FEAT — BT B R B RIA (0) (23,696) -

ERERREZRERAT « —T— —FFRi
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#EZ=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 18. RMBARIZER X AT
(Continued) (#&)
Movement in the provision for impairment of interests in REB ARz = 2 REREESHNT
subsidiaries is as follows:

incorporation/

Paid-up share/

equity attributable

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —ET-TF
FHT FHAT
At 1 January R—HA—H (1,047,365) (694,443)
Additional impairment during FANBINBIE
the year (7,039) (352,922)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H (1,054,404) (1,047,365)
Notes: Bt &
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a) FEMBRARGFIBNOT:
(i) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 (i) RZE——F+=-A=+—H
December 2011 are as follows: ZEEMBARIZFHBOT:
Place of Percentage of Principal

activities and

Name establishment registered capital to the Company place of operation

DNEER SEM AL, B it B BHRA FMREER ADEEEREAB DL TEEBRKE DI

Directly held

EERE

Smooth Way International British Virgin Ordinary United 100% Investment holding,

Limited Islands (“BVI") States dollars Hong Kong
("US$")N

JIE 2 B B 7 PR 2 R EBELES L@mR1ZET 100% KREER BB

Cheerful Dragon Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong

BEAR AR EBELES LTmiR1ZET 100% REER  BE

Precious New Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong

ERBRAA EBELES LT@mR1ZET 100% KREER BB
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 18.
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)
(i) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2011 are as follows: (Continued)

RMBAT 2w - A RQH
(%)

Bt : (4)
(a) TEMNBRARFENT: (&)

(i) R=ZF——F+=ZF=+—H
ZEEWBARZFHBHT

(#)
Place of Percentage of Principal
incorporation/ Paid-up share/ equity attributable activities and
Name establishment registered capital to the Company place of operation
DRER SEMBAR LB 37 it B HARE HSREER AAFEEREES L TEXBRCE BN
Indirectly held
MERH
Energy Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
(Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong
RRRE (BB)ERAR & EBERUET 100% REZER BE
Treasure Tone Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
EHRBBRAR B TERIET 100% REER &8
Ho Fai Carpet Trading Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Dormant, Hong Kong
Limited*
HEEMBESBRAR & LTmRIET 100% BEBKE BB
Kanson Development BVI Ordinary US$200 100% Investment holding,
Limited (“Kanson") Hong Kong

n

RBELHE EmAR200% T

Kanson Development
Limited ( [Kanson )

100% BEER B
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#EZ=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18. R AR 2w — KD F
(Continued) (%)
Notes: (Continued) fisk: (&)
(@) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a) TEWNBARSEBOT: (&)
(Continued)
(i) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 Q) Rz _—s=sgen o

December 2011 are as follows: (Continued) S EHBAR S EENT

120

Place of
incorporation/

Paid-up share/

(%)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Principal
activities and

Name establishment registered capital to the Company place of operation
ARER SEMRAR L, B 3L i B BARE EMEX ARAEEREE D FEXBRCE BN
Indirectly held (Continued)

MERE (&)

Hong Kong Forest Source Hong Kong Ordinary 100% Investment holding,
Mining Industry Holding HK$70,000,000 Hong Kong
Company Limited*

BEERRBEEER BB EER 100% REZER BB
BRAF* 70,000,000/ 7T

Sunlight Rise Limited BVI Ordinary US$2 100% Investment holding,
(“Sunlight Rise"”) Hong Kong

ABERAR ([AE]) RERLES LEik2ET 100% REEB BB

Pride Treasure Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% Investment holding,

Hong Kong

HMHBRAF BB L iAA% 10,0007 7T 100% REERBR - BE

Ontop Finance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,

Hong Kong

REMEERAR Eai LEBRIE T 100% BREERR  BE

Shanxi Zhong Kai Group PRC Renminbi 60% Supply of electricity
Lingshi Heat and Power ("RMB") and heat, the PRC
Company Limited 185,000,000

LETEEEARE EalE ARE 60% HNEME TE
BRAT 185,000,0007C

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2011
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18.

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)
(i) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2011 are as follows: (Continued)

RMBAT 2w - A RQH
(%)

Bt : (4)

(a) TEWMBARIGRBENOT: (&)

(i) R=ZF——<+1+_H=+—H
ZEEWBRAZFBNOT

(%

Place of Percentage of Principal

incorporation/ Paid-up share/ equity attributable activities and
Name establishment registered capital to the Company place of operation
REER FEM AL, B L 3t B RAARE EMELR EAREMEREE DL TEEBREE L
Indirectly held (Continued)
MiERsHE (&)
China International Energy BVI Ordinary US$2 100% Investment holding,

Investments (Hong Hong Kong

Kong) Limited (“China
International Energy”)
TERRERIEE ()
BERAR ([HE

B aEIR | )

4

CERZHE LmR2ET

China International Energy Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
Investments (Hong Kong)
Limited

PEBERERRE (FE) B LERET
BRAA

China Era Energy Power Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10
Investment Limited
("China Era")*

PREFRERREER £ LER10E T
RE(THREFR])

* Subsidiaries examined by BDO Limited.

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the

Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

100% BRERR &5

100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong

100% BEER  BF

100% Oil production, the
PRC

100% BHREE PE

* ZEWMBRRKEE
VERREFMER
FERARERZ

EXRBIARRESRBRANFEL A
SEZEEREATEREAKEEBA
HBOBEFEZARRZHMBRR A
REAEERR RUEEMLHELRZF
BHBNRITR-

RERERREZRERAA
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18.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2011

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18.

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

(i)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries de-consolidated

since 2010 (note 37) are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Paid-up share/

RBABR z2ERE —F DT

(#&)

B : (4&)

(a) TEMBRRAGFEMAT: (&

(ii) =| g

—TFEETBEA AR

2 ERMBAR (MaE37) 15

FUR

Percentage of
equity attributable

Principal
activities and

Name establishment registered capital to the Company place of operation

ARERE REMR ARSI, BRI s B BHRAE EMELR AATEERAED L TEXEBREE M

Indirectly held

QHFSMI (notes 3(a)(ii) PRC HK$40,000,000 100% Exploration of mine,
and (iii)) the PRC

SERIR FE 40,000,000/ 70 100% R -
(B 5E3(a) (i) R (iii) )

IMFSMI (notes 3(a)(ii) PRC Not yet paid up 100% Not yet commenced
and (iii)) business

AR & HRIR A E i) R SR 100% EENGE ST
(B 5E3(a) (i) R Giii) )

(b) These amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are not (b) ZEFEAERM R NEHHHER

expected to be repaid within the next twelve months. These

balances are classified as non-current assets accordingly.

(c) Amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and are

repayable after one year.

AR+ —EARNEE B ZFER

DERERBEE-

©  ER-RMEARRAAELR 28
BR—FHEE -
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19. GOODWILL - GROUP 19. BE-X&EH

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
L —z-=2f
FERT FHT
At 1 January R—HA—H
Gross carrying amount BREBE 323,366 1,021,644
Accumulated impairment ZERE (49,064) (694,012)
Net carrying amount BREFE 274,302 327,632
Opening net carrying amount FHREFE 274,302 327,632
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36(a)) W BB B~ =) (BMIsE36(a)) - 323,366
Disposals due to de-consolidating EftB AR T EESEARZ
subsidiaries (note 37) HE (MEE37) - (327,632)
Impairment losses (note 8) A E R (HFEs) (64,674) (49,064)
Closing net carrying amount FRREFE 209,628 274,302
At 31 December R+=ZHA=+—8H
Gross carrying amount fRE4E 323,366 323,366
Accumulated impairment RETRE (113,738) (49,064)
Net carrying amount BREFE 209,628 274,302

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to

BREANANS BEIEENTREE

the CGUs identified as follows: A B
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$"000
—g——f =%
FHET FHET
Supply of electricity and heat business HMEMHEXS 274,302 323,366

HERERREZRERAA « —F

—— g




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
135 3R & M =

For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#EZ=—ZT——F T+ A=1+—HBILFE

19.

GOODWILL — GROUP (continued)

Goodwill as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 arose from the
acquisition of Sunlight Rise, in which Sunlight Rise holds
100% equity interest in both Pride Treasure Limited and Ontop
Finance Limited and 60% equity interest in Shanxi Zhong Kai
Lingshi (the “Sunlight Group”) in 2010, details of which are
set out in note 36(a). The recoverable amount for this CGU
was determined based on value-in-use calculations, performed
by an independent firm of professional valuers, LCH (Asia-
Pacific) Surveyors Limited, covering a detailed 5-year budget
plan followed by an extrapolation of expected cash flows at the
growth rate stated below. The growth rate reflects the long-
term average growth rate for the product line of the CGU.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as

19.

BE-AE£E @)

RZE——FR=F—ZTF+=-_A=+—
ArRAEELEE T TFEREFE H
FREZSEHMBRARMEERERR
DRIZEE AR U RFF LT
BAZ60% KA ER ([AELE]) B
BN TE36(a) ° sZH S E LB 2 A
Wi el < 58 R I8 2 B3 (S ERATHBETTRI =2
MAERARIZRBEREENE 2EF4H
ZAFEEE BEERIE T XA R X
HEERREeRE BRERMASES
BUZAERRPFHERER -

AR EEREEZ T EMRRAOT

follows:
2011 2010
—g—-% —2-2%
Discount rate IR = 17.66% 17.04%
Growth rate R R 3.12% 3.11%

The key assumptions also include stable profit margins, which
have been determined based on past performance, and
management’s expectations for market share, after taking
into consideration published market forecast and research.
The weighted average growth rate used is consistent with the
forecasts included in industry reports. The discount rate used is
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to this CGU.

As at 31 December 2011, provision for impairment loss of
HK$64,674,000 (2010: HK$49,064,000) was recognised in
profit or loss to write down to its recoverable amounts due to
the continuous lower profitability.

Management of the Company is not aware of any other
probable changes that would necessitate changes in its key
estimates which will result in the carrying amount of goodwill
exceeding its recoverable amount.

TZRI[ABERENMBEER  MAEE
DREBERRNERE LT REAMHT
SRR MR ERE TS OREL 2 AHE
FE o PTER NP R EEBITERS N
PRERTEOR — B PREE AT IR R TOERTREAT - I
RERENRSESEMNEB I ERAR -

R-E——F+-_F=+—H SHEES
BEH 2 B %64,674,0008 L (—ZE—F
F 149,064,000 70 ) ERNIEm K ER - A
MREEAKWE £ AAAFRENFE
K e

RRAREBBUTMBETMNEEHETE
HEtHR BB 2 R EM AR S - 2k
HEZEmMESRERKmEHE-
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20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 200 BREE-—AEH
Exploration Interests in
and oil production
evaluation Customers’ sharing
assets contracts contract Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note (i) (note (ii)) (note (iii)
BARR EREBIH
AEEE EFRH B zER @t
TEx TR TR TER
CGEO) (Bt aEi)) ( Btz Gii) )
At 1 January 2010 RZZT—-ZF-HA—A = - = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries WeEB I 1 Al
(notes 36(a) and (b)) (HT7E36(a) % (b)) 25,235 2,104,000 2,134,368
Amortisation for the year AEEHEE (6,406) = (6,406)
At 31 December 2010 and R=ZE-ZF+-A=1+—-HEK
1 January 2011 —T——%—HA—H 18,829 2,104,000 2,127,962
Amortisation for the year (note 8) FREH (F:8) (16,459) (15,780) (32,281)
Exchange difference EHESR 973 - 1,162
At 31 December 2011 R-Z-——-%+-A=1+-H 3,343 2,088,220 2,096,843
Notes: B 5E -

(iii)

These are mainly classified from exploration and evaluation
assets arising from the Oil Production segment when the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting the
oil resource had been determined and that the commercial

production commences are recognised initially at cost.

Customers’ contracts acquired from the business combination
are recognised at fair value on business combination and are
charged to profit or loss when customers’ contracts complete.

Interests in oil production sharing contract acquired from
the business combination are recognised at fair value on
business combination and are charged to profit or loss on unit
of production method. Details of the oil production sharing
contract are set out in note 38.

(if)

(iii)

HEBENETERROBERZ MR
BEATERFGRREEER 2N
KAEMDBZWRLFEEELETH
B VT RKAHER

BEBEHIGIEFPANRELAH
ZRFERR ITREFPANTKEE
B AR

BEBAHNSZEREHRIRALZ
REREHAMHZ AT ERR WAL
EBMDEREARNGR -ERMEB DK
BH 2 FIBENHIFE38 -

ERERREZRERAT « —T— —FFRi
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21.

22.

INVENTORIES - GROUP 21.
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, all inventories are raw
materials.

TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 22.

The Group normally allows trading credit terms ranging from
30 to 120 days to its established customers. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. Trade debtors with balances aged over
120 days are required to settle all outstanding balances before
any further credit is granted. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date,
is as follows:

G SES

R ER-F-FE+-A=+—
E*%ETEH%%MM

PEURE 5 R — R

AEE -—MHETFEELHEZREFI0E
R0AZ BB EEM - SERFEBEEE
LR -BREAI1208 A L2 BINE S ERTE
&% EARERTRE— P EEEEMSA
KEELEH - BURZESRBEL B -

EWE 5 RIBRIEER B 82 R 5 T
™

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

S —-%%

FET FHET

1 - 90 days 1-90H 31,326 16,158

121 - 365 days 121 - 365H - 459

31,326 16,617

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, there were no trade n= —Fk —ZEF+ZA=+—

receivables that were individually determined to be impaired. = Iﬂfl& g5 QEIETIE'J TE BB ° A
The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances. EEVERZEFESSEEAERR-

Ageing analysis of trade receivables that were past due but not

EEMERREZEREZREZRikD

impaired is as follows: I N
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E——F “E-TF
FET FHET
210 — 240 days past due but not BEI210E 2408 B K RBE
impaired = 459

As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables of HK$31,326,000
(2010: HK$16,158,000) were neither past due nor impaired.
These related to different customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

NZZE——F+=HA=+—H" 31,326,000

BTERESEE(ZF —FF:

16,158,000/ 7T ) I £ 38 HA KR (B » 5% & Bk
BB B EE NI 2R R P A
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23.

24.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES — GROUP AND COMPANY

23. FAMNFIE RS RHEMERR
H-AEERALRQF

Group Company
G2y G
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—2--f% —2-%% = —F-2f%
TERT FHET THET FHAT
Prepayments R RIE 1,517 2,608 956 983
Deposits Ze 348 474 = =
Other receivables (note) H s R I8 (F ) 36,117 37,532 = =
37,982 40,614 956 983
Note: B =

Included in other receivables of the Group as at 31 December 2011
were loan receivables of HK$35,935,000 (2010: HK$37,095,000)
due from the independent third parties. The loan receivables of
HK$35,935,000 (2010: HK$34,143,000) were unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2010, the remaining loan
receivables of HK$2,952,000 were unsecured, interest-bearing at 12%
per annum and repaid during the year.

R-ZB——F+-_A=+—HB KXEHEHEM
ERRERREERBLE =T Z2EKRER
35,935,000/ 7t (= F — T 4 : 37,095,000
JT) ° fE U & $£35,935,0008 T (—ZE—F
34,143,000 7T ) AEER - 2 B RAEZRERE
B R-ZT-—TE+_A=1+—8 EKEZRH
%42,952,0007% 7T A EE IR IR FFFR12%5T B
MREFERNEE-

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) NON- 24. W (FEA) EERBRERK
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS - GROUP H-AKE
Maximum
amount
outstanding
2011 2010 during the year
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
FRES
—E——F —E—ZF REESH
FHERT FHT FHET
Amount due from non-controlling & Yt JE % f% A% B8 k18
shareholder - 6,080 6,080

Amount due to non-controlling shareholder of HK$4,074,000 is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Amount due to non-controlling shareholder in principal of
HK$9,760,000 is unsecured, interest-free and is due on 31
July 2013. As at 31 December 2011, the carrying value of this
interest-free loan of HK$8,401,000 was determined based
on the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
discounted using effective interest rate of 9.79% per annum.
Upon the change of terms of the loan, gain on extinguishment
amounted to HK$1,751,000. The amounts of HK$1,051,000
and HK$700,000 have been credited to capital reserve and
non-controlling interests in equity respectively and imputed
interest amounting to HK$392,000 has been recognised in
profit or loss during the year.

JFE 1 JE 42 A% IR 3R 50 7B 4,074,0007% 7T A &
B B NBREREE-

JE < FE 728 A% 3% 3R AN & %8 59,760,0007%8 7T
ZREAREER RERR-_ZT—Z=FL
A=t—HBE®M R=ZTE——F+=A
—+— A8 % B 538,401,000 T Z i
HEZRMGRKRBEA L 2BERER
FHEITI%ETE - BERZIEH L E 1%
STHEA 2 W A1,751,00008 7T c E£R
1,051,0008 7T }2700,000/8 7L 2 2 Bl A
P 2 ERREMIEERERS  MEE
F82392,0008 L E RIBEER -

ERERREZRERAT « —T— —FFRi
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25.

26.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH
AT BANKS AND IN HAND - GROUP AND
COMPANY

Pledged bank deposits earn interest of 0.35% to 0.5% (2010:
0.326%) per annum. Cash at bank earns interest at the floating
rates based on the daily bank deposits rates.

As at 31 December 2011, included in the pledged bank
deposits and cash and bank balances of the Group were
HK$68,987,000 (2010: HK$71,972,000) of bank balances
denominated in RMB placed with the banks in the PRC.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under the
PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
foreign currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 60-day terms.

Ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

25.

26.

CEARTERURRBRTESR
RFERE - FEERERQT

B R ITHERIZFF E0.35%E0.5%
(ZZ—F4F:0.326% )5t 2 - SRITAETFIR
BEBRTERFRIZZESHF RS -

R—E——F+-_A=+—H 4d5E
EEARTERERESRROTERBE
$R17 45 #268,987,0008 L (Z T —ZF :
71,972,000 7C) - ERIRITEHRUAAR
MHE FREMR PR ZR1Te

ARBTEEE AT BIINE - RIBF B
CGMEERIRP) &k (BE - EERMNE
EERE)  AKERERERELETI
PEX ZRITHARE LB INE

B E SR AEE

ENESEELSREMBENRCOR AN

i
= o
T

JENE SRR EFET A B 2 Rk 5 T
™

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

S i —z-=F

FERT FET

1 - 90 days 1-90H 6,436 12,679
91 - 120 days 91 -120H 474 3,324
121 - 365 days 121 - 365H 2,907 626
Over 1 year 16 2,200 2,222
12,017 18,851
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27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS - 27. HAENREREFTRE X
GROUP AND COMPANY EERERQF
Group Company
rEE NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
g% | -z-=f | —®——§ | -—T-=TF
FERT FHT FTEx FHET
Other payables H {th JE {1 38 132,940 109,140 70 70
Accruals JE&t 7R 14,290 15,547 852 3,723
147,230 124,687 922 3,793
Other payables as at 31 December 2011 are mainly RZE——F+ZA=+—HzHEME
construction cost payables of HK$70,689,000 (2010: NRIBF ERENEEKZAT0,689,000/
HK$50,055,000), deferred government grant of 7L (==& —2Z 4 : 50,055,000/ 7T ) * EiE
HK$16,634,000 (2010: HK$2,479,000), staff accruals and other BT 5716,634,0008 7L (=T — T 4F:
levies. 2,479,000 ) - ETEHERARHEME
=
28. BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP 28. RITER—ZFEH
The bank borrowings are repayable as follows: RITIEREAR AT HREE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
S —z-%
FHERT FET
Within one year —FR 12,200 21,133
In the second year to fifth years, F_FEFRF (REEEMT)
inclusive - 11,806
12,200 32,939
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings are denominated HITER 2 REEIAAREEE - 8]1T
in RMB. Bank borrowings are charged at floating interest rates B3I 2 B F 7 K8.64%£8.97% (= F
ranging from 8.64% to 8.97% (2010: 6.48% to 19.5%) per —ZF :6.48%%19.5% ) 5T B + WA —fH
annum and are secured by a related company of one of the WEBARHA —ZIEERIRR 2 BEER
non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary. BIEH I -

HERERREERERAT « —T——FF8/ 129
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HittfE - AKH

RZIE——FR=ZT—ZEFF+_A=1—
B FEERAKREBLIE=FH Hu

29. OTHER BORROWINGS - GROUP 29.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, all borrowings were
obtained from the independent third parties and are analysed

as follows: T
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —ET-TF
FExT FAT
Repayable on demand or within one year & ZKEEH—FNEE
Loan A, unsecured EHA - EK - 5,903
Loan B, unsecured BB &L 2,196 2,125
Loan C, unsecured BERC EH - 366
2,196 8,394
Repayable after 1 year but within 5 years —F&BRFRNEE
Loan D, unsecured E XD K 36,464 35,414
Loan E, unsecured BERE EEE — 23,613
Loans F, G, unsecured ERFRG EEH 42,692 22,778
Loan H, unsecured EFH - I 3,107 4,024
Loan I, unsecured BRI s 1,220 1,181
Loans J, K, L and M, unsecured BRI K LEM - K 30,169 -
113,652 87,010
Loan A bore the interest at the rates of 9.72% per annum. The ERARFNEI 72% B - ZEREIRE

BMA—T——F+_A-tRAZEXRE
EAEEGRGERERT RMBARZESD
—BIFERBRR - ZERCERR NEFA
el ENCAEISE S

loan was unconditionally assigned to one of non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary in accordance with the assignment
of loan agreement dated 20 December 2011. The loan was
waived and was credited to capital reserve and non-controlling
interests in equity accordingly.

il

B HRBIRF A X24%5 B RARERME

o

Loan B bears the interest at the rate of 24% per annum and
repayable on demand.

il
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29.

30.

OTHER BORROWINGS - GROUP (continued)

Loan C was interest-free and repayable on demand. This loan
has been waived by the lender in December 2011.

Loan D bears the interest at the rate of 3% per annum and
repayable in January 2013.

Loan E bore the interest at the rate of 5.31% per annum and
this loan has been waived by the lender in December 2011.

Loans F and G are interest-free and repayable in July 2013.

Loan H is interest-free and repayable by instalment of
RMB200,000 per month from July 2013.

Loan | is interest-free and repayable in July 2013.

Loans J, K, L and M are interest-free and repayable in July 2013.

The Group has negotiated with the lenders of loans F, G, H,
J, K, L and M to modify the existing term of the borrowings
during the year. As there were a substantial modification in
the terms of the borrowings, they have been accounted for as
extinguishment of non-current borrowings. Accordingly, there
is a gain on extinguishment of HK$12,198,000 (note 5) which
represented the change in the present value of the borrowings
using existing terms into the present value of the borrowings
using modification terms.

PROMISSORY NOTES - GROUP

As described in note 36(b), as a part of the consideration of
the acquisition of China International Energy, the Group issued
promissory notes with a principal amount of HK$50,000,000 on
31 December 2010. The promissory notes are unsecured and
interest bearing at 2% per annum. The fair value at the date
of issue amounting to HK$43,854,000 was calculated at the
discounted borrowing rate of 8.99% per annum.

On 21 January 2011, the Group early redeemed part of
promissory notes with a principal amount of HK$20,000,000
upon request of the promissory note holder. Accordingly, loss
on redemption of promissory notes of HK$2,383,000 was
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2011 (note 7).

29.

30.

HMWER-—AEEH @)

ERCREBREZEREE HLERER
—E-—Ft_AmET#R-

M

T AR FEFE3I%TERBR T —=F
—REE-

ERERFAME531%: B RIEERER
B —F T AmETRR-

ERFRGRERNEAN_ZE—=Ft AR

\%O

FHREEREB T —=FtARK
!H A E#200,0007T \HM@J&

ERAEREREAR_ZE—=FtAEE-
BRI K LEMERERBR-_T—=F
+ AEZE-

FNR- ANE@EEEEMF G HJ K LK
MZEFIERER MEFTZEERZR
BlEF-HRZEER 1\ FHIREKX(E
R HWR AR IEREER - Bt - #K 4
I 2512,198,000/ 70 (MI5E5) IE B FAN IR
BIEFET 2 REE BEFMEETIRRIE
TZHEZE
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L0 FE36(h) AT Al - 2N & B R —ZF
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30.

31.

PROMISSORY NOTES - GROUP (continued) 30. E-X&EE (#)
Movement of promissory notes is as follows: REZBEHWT :
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000
L —2-=%
FET T
At 1 January n—A—H 43,865 =
Issue of promissory notes (note 36(b)) BITAE (MizE36(b)) - 43,854
Imputed interest expenses (note 7) HENMSER (MFE7) 2,459 11
Early redemption of promissory notes RE AR (17,617) =
At 31 December W+=—RA=+—H 28,707 43,865
In December 2011, both the Group and the promissory note RZZT——F+ A AEEEXERSF
holder agreed to extend the maturity date of promissory notes AREREAZIHBEE-_T—=F+tH
to 1 July 2013. =
CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND 31. ATRRES - FEEREAQF

COMPANY

In November 2007, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds (“CB1") in the principal amount of
HK$365,000,000 as a part of the consideration for the
acquisition of 51% equity interests in Kanson. CB1 bear no
interest with a maturity date on 4 November 2012 and are
convertible into shares of the Company at the conversion price
of HK$0.60 per share (subject to the standard adjustment
clauses relating to share sub-division, share consolidation,
capitalisation issues and rights issues) at any time after the issue
date. Details of CB1 are set out in the Company’s circular dated
15 October 2007.

In July 2008, the Company issued zero coupon convertible
bonds (“CB3") in the principal amount of HK$580,000,000
as the consideration for the acquisition of the remaining 49%
equity interests in Kanson. CB3 bear no interest with maturity
date on 2 July 2013 and are convertible into shares of the
Company at the conversion price of HK$0.25 per share (subject
to the standard adjustment clauses relating to share sub-
division, share consolidation, capitalisation issues and rights
issues) at any time after the issue date. Details of CB3 are set
out in the Company's circular dated 6 June 2008.

R-ZZEZLE+—H ARBAETEAE
#1365,000,000/8 7t 2 ER B Al IR E 5
(T REHE —HES])  ERKE
Kanson 51%M% AN # 25 2 #F 79 (8 Al i
BESFE-HEFARS RT—ZF
+— A 0 A B R AT R BT A B B
MR AR EER0.60EB TR BARF K
i (ZRERROIFRA - It A B EAXEE
TR BB AR 2 R BAR) - ATk
BFF-HEFZABENARR-_ZT
TtETATHEAZERRABEK-

RZZEZENFLA ARABITASE
580,000,000 T 2 T X B Al IR EFH
([AIMmEESFE=MESH]) ERIE
Kansonf 49 %% A # z 2 A (B - ] # %
BEHFEF-MEFAEE RZITE—=F+
A Z A EE R Al R #8817 B B 18 1F a] B
RHIBETRR025E T HIAARQRIKRG
(BBRIROIFE  RDE G BAXMLETT
NECRE FE B 2 IR E RGN - IR &
FEMEFZFBHRBEHAZTZEN
FRANBZARRQGB R -
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31.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

According to the sale and purchase agreements dated 5
November 2007 and 8 April 2008, another zero-coupon
convertible bonds with face value of HK$400,000,000 (“CB2")
and HK$380,780,000 (“CB4") will be issued on the fifth
business day following the date of receipt of mining licence in
respect of the underlying mine. CB2 and CB4 are convertible
into shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.60
and HK$0.25 per share respectively. As the mining licence
has not been obtained, CB2 and CB4 have not been issued
and have not been recognised in the financial statements. As
mentioned in notes 3(a)(ii) and (iii), as the exploration licence
was transferred without the Company’s knowledge, consent or
approval, the Company is now seeking for legal opinion on this
matter.

The fair value of the liability components, included in CB1 and
CB3, was calculated using market interest rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond. The residual amount, representing the
value of the equity conversion component, is included in the
convertible bond equity reserve in the owners’ equity.

In August 2010, the Company issued zero coupon convertible
bonds (“CB5") in the principal amount of HK$140,430,000
as a part of the consideration for the acquisition of Sunlight
Rise. CB5 bear no interest with maturity date on 9 August
2020 and are convertible into shares of the Company at the
conversion price of HK$0.093 per share (subject to the standard
adjustment clauses relating to share sub-division, share
consolidation, capitalisation issues and rights issues) at any time
after the issue date. Any CB5 which remains outstanding on the
maturity date shall be converted automatically into the shares
of the Company. Details of CB5 are set out in the Company's
circular dated 28 June 2010.

31.

RRES -AEERAQT
(%)

BRERBHAZEZTLtF+—ARBEE=-F
ZENFHNANBZEERZ 5 HtHE
% Bl 5400,000,0007% 7T ([ A] £ j% & 5 55
—#bfE %) %380,780,0005% 7T ([ AT A%
EHFOUES]) 2 EZEATBRRES
BRBEEBER CFREBEBRZE
R EEEEET A BRRESSE - HES
KAl R ESH B AL E S D Bl Al % 5 i (E
B i%0.6078 7T % 0.25%5 T R BN A A ik
oA EAMEBRAKER TREES
F_MEHFRAUARESBEELES S
BT B ERN SRR AR - M E
3(a)(ii) K (i) Fritt - EERpERE AR A BT A
1B RAREARRNFIRE S E 2 E R T e
o ARRBIERUESRERZER -

AMRESRE - HtEF R RBRERE=
HEFBEBO 2 RXATEDRESETA#H®
BEScMENEFE - T BA %
mEBHEOZEE YA AEEARRZ
AR E s A

RZE—ZFNA ARQRBETAERE
140,430,000 T o EE B A | & H
([T]RESBERIES])  EAKES
BrBrRE-AIRREFFEFRAMESFA
BB RZE_ZEFNANBEBARAR
1T B BR1E (T (AT B FE 32 R (B 80,093
BB ARRQG KD (BEREGHF
MR E BN BITREREREZ
FAEFEGR) - ERRBEBIDRER
BMeA R ESFFERILESBES LR
RRAEIm A RRESFERIES 2 &F
BHABHAZZTE—ZTFA=Z+tNAZ
AN B K o

ERERREZRERAT « —T— —FFRi
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31.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

In December 2010, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds (“CB6") in the principal amount of
HK$526,880,000 as a part of the consideration for the
acquisition of China International Energy. CB6 bear no interest
with maturity date on 31 December 2015 and are convertible
into shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.08
per share (subject to the standard adjustment clauses relating
to share sub-division, share consolidation, capitalisation issues
and rights issues) at any time after the issue date. Any CB6
which remains outstanding on the maturity date shall be
converted automatically into the shares of the Company. Details
of CB6 are set out in the Company’s circular dated 11 October
2010.

As a part of the consideration for the acquisition of China
International Energy, a zero coupon convertible bonds
("CB7") in the principal amount of HK$526,880,000 shall
be issued upon the final and absolute dismissal, striking-out,
withdrawal, discharge, release, settlement or discontinuance
of the litigation mentioned in note 44(b), details of which are
set out in note 36(b). CB7 will bear no interest with maturity
date on 31 December 2015 and are convertible into shares of
the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.08 per share
(subject to the standard adjustment clauses relating to share
sub-division, share consolidation, capitalisation issues and
rights issues) at any time after the issue date. Any CB7 which
remains outstanding on the maturity date shall be converted
automatically into the shares of the Company.

The fair values of CB5, CB6 and CB7 were calculated using
income approach and are included in the convertible bond
equity reserve in the owners’ equity.

31.

RRES -AEERAQF
(%)

RZZE—ZF+ A AQAETES
%6526,880,0008 T2 T E B AR ESH
([ATRBRESS A ES])  EAKRE
FEIREREEIR 2 BANRE AT RRESF
AtEEARE R-_Z—H&E+_- A
=+— B2 H R R 1T B HB1& AR
% 5 #a (8 G A%0.087% 7T 3 A 7R A 7 A% 1D
(BERBROIFHE  BRHE M BT
K BE B% A0 B 2 A= 2E F 5k 50) o (AR
D ARE LB 2 TR ESF I ES
BEBEBRERRRRRG - AT BRESE
AtEEZHFBENEBRAE T —TF+
A+—BZARRBE-

AR AR M FE44b0) At 2 B ek (15 H
R aE36(b) ) xR K e 2 Mk Bk - B
BT B BRKRUERETAS
#1526,880,000/8 T 2 TR BRI IR E 55
([T REFELIES])  ERKE
TEBERERZ B O RE AT RRESE
tHEFEREE R_E—HF+-A
=T A B RATR#ETH RN E
BAMEER0.08B T LM AR R RN
(ZAERBR DA A B BT
RECRARRE 2 R B ARR) (B RE
HADAREL B TRRESFLIES
RSB Y RAUNCIEL §7

AgBREFERRHES JHREREFER
EFRABREESFE CHESFIIZERA
ERHE WEIAEB AR 2 T BERES
REmiEE-
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND 31. IRARES - FEEREQAF
COMPANY (continued) (#)
CB1, CB3, CB5, CB6 and CB7 recognised in the statement of R AR AR AER Z AR ESFE — it
financial position are calculated as follows: B ATRRESE =B ES AR E

FELMES TRRESFSAHESFR
MRk ESE L HESFTENT

CB1 (B3 CB5 CB6 CB7 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRRES TRRES TRRES TRBES TRBES
E-HES E-HES FaMES EAMES EtHES @t
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Face value of convertible bonds issued ~ BE{TAlEKES 2
MfE 365,000 580,000 140,430 526,880 526,880 2,139,190
Proceeds of issue (fair value on initial {7 (B RHERZ
recognition) N 365,467 363,506 174,178 342,557 342,557 1,588,265
Equity component BxB5 (189,421) (103,438) (174,178) (342,557) (342557)  (1,15,151)
Liability component 2EHH 176,046 260,068 - - - 436,114
Movement of liability component BERSEH
Movement of liability component for the years ended 31 HE-_Z——FRkR-_Z—ZTF+=A
December 2011 and 2010 is as follows: T+ —BHUEFEZEEBIEBHHT
2011 2010
—E--% ZT-%F
CB1 (B3 Total CB1 (B3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRBES TRRES pkES HkES
E-HES E=RES @ F-HEH E-WBEH Eh
TER TER TER FAL TAR TER
At 1 January m—RA—H 19,975 317 20,292 19,001 278 19,279
Exercise of convertible bonds TETARES (7,659) = (7,659) (1,140) - (1,140)
Imputed interest expenses (note 7) BEFSER (H:7) 1,813 38 1,851 2,114 39 2,153
At 31 December WtZA=+-8H 14,129 355 14,484 19,975 317 20,292
Less: current portion RRBHS (14,129) - (14,129) - - -
Non-current portion ERBHH - 355 355 19,975 317 20,292
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31.

E——F+t-A=+—RLFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

Movement of equity component

Movement of equity component for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

RRES -AEERAQF
(%)

IR0 25

BE-_Z2——FRrR=_ZF— EJF*)EJ
ST—BLEFEZERBOEESHMT

NAI

CB1 CB3 CB5 CB6 CB7 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRRES TRRES TRRES TRRES TRRES
E-HEH EoHEH EafES ERHES ERidi L @t
TET TER T TEx TEx TET
At 1 January 2010 R=Z-%£4-f—-A 15,849 55 - - - 15,904
Equity component upon initial ERERNER DD
recognition (notes 36(a) and (b)) (B ¥36(a)Re(b)) - - 174,178 342,557 342,557 859,292
Exercise of convertible bonds TRARRES (944) = (174,178) = - (175,122)
At 31 December 2010 and WZE-%F
1 January 2011 +ZRA=+—H
kZZ—%
—A—H 14,905 55 - 342,557 342,557 700,074
Exercise of convertible bonds IFETRRES (5,353) - - - - (5,353)
At 31 December 2011 RZE-——F
T-A=+-H 9,552 55 - 342,557 342,557 694,721
The fair value of the liability components of CB1 and CB3 at RETH TBRRESFE —HEFRATR

the dates of issue amounted to approximately HK$176 million
and HK$260 million respectively. Interest expense on the
bonds is calculated using effective interest method by applying
interest rate of 15.7% and 17.4% per annum to the liability
components of CB1 and CB3 respectively.

During the year, 20,079,000 (2010: 3,543,000) new ordinary
shares in aggregate were issued, at the conversion price of
HK$0.508 (2010: HK$0.508) per share to the bond holders
upon the conversion of CB1 (note 33(a)). The conversion
price was adjusted to HK$0.508 as a result of the open offer
in 2009. As a result, there was an increase in share capital
and share premium of HK$201,000 (2010: HK$36,000) and
HK$12,811,000 (2010: HK$2,048,000) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, 1,510,000,000 new
ordinary shares in aggregate were issued, at the conversion
price of HK$0.093 per share, to the bond holders upon the
conversion of CB5 (note 33(b)). As a result, there was an
increase in share capital and share premium of HK$15,100,000
and HK$159,078,000 respectively.

KREHFE-#HEFBEF» 2A2FES
BI#74176,000,0005 7£ %2 260,000,000
T BEZHMEBRNIREBRIERENE
FEI157%K17.4%5 %Jffﬁ%ﬂ%f%%‘“
—%ttﬁ#&ﬁﬁﬁxﬁ#’**ﬁttﬁféf

ﬁ+#

RAEAFERN KRR ABRKESSE —
HEHET SRR TR K BECS508H
T(ZZE—ZTF:0. 508;‘%ﬁ>mﬁ%ﬁﬁ
AN 174 ££20,079,0000% (= f¢
3,543,0008% ) 1 ¥ @ A% (MY u£33(a))
@E:;ﬁ%hi%&ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%&
#0.5088 7T B I - ERA KRR IRE D
B3 H11201,000/8 7T ( ZZF —Z 4 : 36,000
HEIT) 12,811,000 T (2 — T4
2,048,000/ 7T) °

@i:;—%¢+*ﬁ:+—ﬁiiﬁ

E—ﬂ iﬂxmﬁfao 093/%7zmﬁ*<hﬁ}\
2174 ££1,510,000,000 85 @M% (B 5T
33(b)) o At - E AR A K % 1008 8 9 Bl 1
5115,100,0005% 7T 52.159,078,000/%8 7T °
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32.

DEFERRED TAX — GROUP

Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the years
ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

32. EERE-FEH

BE-T-—FR-Z-FTF+-A

St-BLEEEEHEAERE B

T :

Fair value
adjustment on
business
Deferred tax liabilities EZEHEAE combination
HK$'000
MEBEHELZ
APERE
FERT
At 1 January 2010 RZZE-—ZF—-—H—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (notes 36(a) and (b)) W BE Bt /8 2 =] (i 5E36(a) & (b)) 532,309
Credited to profit or loss FFABEE (1,602)

At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 RZZE-ZTF+A=+—HBX
—E2——%F—Hf—H 530,707
Credited to profit or loss (note 9) FFABE=mE (ME9) (8,059)
Exchange differences N ER 243
At 31 December 2011 WZZE——F+=ZA=+—H 522,891

Deferred tax assets

Accelerated

BEEHREEE capital allowances

HK$"000

EE R BB EE

FHERT

At 1 January 2010 RZE—-—ZTF—H—H -

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36(b)) U B B /&8 A &) (B 5E36(b) ) 13,064
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 RZZE-—TF+_A=+—HBX

—ET——%—HF—H 13,064

Charged to profit or loss (note 9) FFABE=E (M) (5,957)

Exchange differences N ZER 384

At 31 December 2011 RZB——F+ZRA=+—H 7,491

The Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$3,017,000 (2010:
HK$3,017,000) to carry forward against future taxable income.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
tax losses as these were incurred by the companies that have
been loss-making for some time. These tax losses do not expire

under current legislation.

AR R EMABRAL KRR -

HERERREZRERAT « —F

AEBHH3,017,00008 TR ERHIEE
B(=ZZF—Z4:3,017,000% 1) 7] & &2
FAACSH R R FEER A IR o W AE LB TEH B
BRRERLENIEEE ERAEBEBETH
EEE—BREHZARMEL REE A

—— g
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. BA&
2011 2010
—E—-F —T-%F
Number of Number of
shares shares
Notes '000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
15 & B SGE 2
B sE TR TER TR FAHT
Authorised: EERA
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEOIETY
At 1 January R—A—H 50,000,000 500,000 20,000,000 200,000
Increase in authorised ordinary ETE LB AL N
shares (e) - - 30,000,000 300,000
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 50,000,000 500,000 50,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRARRKRA:
At 1 January, ordinary shares of R—A—B SkEAE
HK$0.01 each 0.01BIL 2 EBR 13,462,586 134,626 7,361,043 73,610
Exercise of convertible bonds and TEAREES R
issue of shares BITRG (a), (b) 20,079 201 1,513,543 15,136
Shares issued in August 2010 RZZE-FTF
NRET 2B (0) = - 1,510,000 15,100
Shares issued in December 2010 RZE-—FF
TZABTZKG (d) - - 3,078,000 30,780
At 31 December, ordinary shares of R+ZA=+—H"
HK$0.01 each BREE0OETZ
EiE Rk 13,482,665 134,827 13,462,586 134,626
Notes: Bt 5
(a) During the year, 20,079,000 (2010: 3,543,000) new ordinary (a) FRARARARKRESFE —HLE
shares in aggregate were issued, at the conversion price of FHETHBEREREIRE0.508%
HK$0.508 (2010: HK$0.508) per share to the bond holders TL(ZZT—ZFF:0.5088 L) AEH
upon the conversion of CB1 (note 31). As a result, there was A A%EITA H£20,079,0000 (==
an increase in share capital and share premium of HK$201,000 — T4 1 3,543,0004% ) #7 & @A (M 5E
(2010: HK$36,000) and HK$12,811,000 (2010: HK$2,048,000) 31) « Et - BERRA RO RE D FIE N
respectively. 201,000/ 7t (ZZ — =4 : 36,000/8

JL) %12,811,0008 L (Z T —ZTF:
2,048,000 7T) °

138 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2011



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2011 &=

—T——F+-A=t+—HIEFE

33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(d)

For the year ended 31 December 2010, 1,510,000,000 new
ordinary shares in aggregate were issued, at the conversion
price of HK$0.093 per share, to the bond holders upon the
conversion of CB5 (note 31). As a result, there was an increase
in share capital and share premium of HK$15,100,000 and
HK159,078,000 respectively.

On 10 August 2010, 1,510,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of entire interests of Sunlight Rise, as detailed in
note 36(a). As a result, there was an increase in share capital
and share premium of HK$15,100,000 and HK$194,790,000
respectively.

On 31 December 2010, 3,078,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of entire interests of China International Energy,
as detailed in note 36(b). As a result, there was an increase
in share capital and share premium of HK$30,780,000 and
HK$230,850,000 respectively.

By a special resolution dated 28 October 2010, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$200,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each to HK$500,000,000 by the creation of a
further 30,000,000,000 of HK$0.01 each ranking pari passu in
all respects with the existing shares of the Company.

All issued new ordinary shares in 2011 and 2010 rank pari
passu with other shares in issue in all respects.

33.

&N P

Bst: (&)

(b)

()

(d)

—E—FR-T—

HE-_Z-—ZTF+_A=+—HIEF
B ARARAMREFERIES
HE1T H IR R B iR 7 2 /80.0937 T M)
BEH#FH AEITE #£1,510,000,0008%
LB (M aE31) c B ERA K
B% 17 )3 (& 2 Bl 3 015,100,000 7T &
159,078,000/ T °

RZZE—ZTFNA+H ARQEIET
1,510,000,0004% & & E {B0.017%8 7T 2
MEBR FRKEAE S iR 2

ARE (FRHE36()) A HIR
RN Btn B 9 BI3E 115,100,000 7T
194,790,000/ JT °
RZZE—ZTF+_A=+—HB 42
7] % 173,078,000,000/% & % M {50.01
Bz Rk RS EEK
RERE2MESZHBONE (FEMHF
36(b)) o E It - H IR AR K AR 155 B 9 5
¥ 7130,780,0007% 7T % 230,850,000/%
T

BEBHA-_Z-—ZF+A=ZTN
EIZ%EU;?&E%% PR ) FE 4G AR R O
30,000,000,000/% & I E {E0.01% 7T
2 B4 #% % 7E B 8 £9200,000,0007% 7T
(% %20,000,000,0000% & A% I 1E0.01
78T 2 Eim AR ) #E N Z=500,000,0005%
TWEMBAEERNARRARG =
BRSEZ-

TEZACEITH

& LH&EXEE@E@E?‘HHM\ =6

RERERREZRERAA
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34. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein during the year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The share premium account includes:

(i) the difference between the combined net asset
value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in 2001, over the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange therefore;

(ii) the premium arising from the capitalisation issue
in the previous years;

(i) issue of shares of the Company at a premium net
of the transaction costs associated with the issue
of shares; and

(iv) amount transferred from other equity reserves
upon exercise of share options and conversion of
convertible bonds.

Capital reserve

During the year, the Group entered the assignment of
borrowings agreements with one of the non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary and the lenders. Both
parties agreed that the bank and other borrowings
amounted to HK$15,738,000 were transferred
from the Group to this non-controlling shareholder
unconditionally. The amounts of HK$9,443,000 and
HK$6,295,000 have been credited to capital reserve and
non-controlling interests in equity respectively.

34.

R
(a)

rEE

ARBRERZEBLBREHE
BHEARNG AL DR -

B ERERE:

(i) REARER_TT—F2
SHkBzMERR A
BEFEBL AR MR
MEEITZBAE(E 2 =58 :

(iy BEFEEMBOTELZ

i {8

i) ARENEE (BINB BT
BAA IRBISE B ) B TR
5 R

(iv)  PRTTIE RS AR K S e TR A
18 7 IR A0 L 1 o ok R 85 03
ZHRIE

BRAW#EE

RAFE  ANEBEE—FEHE QA
ZER—FIEERBRREREFEIAL
BEREERH -FTNSHFERE
RIT R EAEE 15,738,000/ 7T H
AEBEGHERED LIFERR
B °9,443,0007% st }26,295,000/%8
TTE D RIFT AR 2 IR AN G5 K 3E

TR A
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34. RESERVES (continued) 34. & (#@)
(b) Company (b) ZAAF
Convertible
Share Capital bond equity Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ARRES
RRE R B fE ES ] @it
TET TET TET TER TET
At 1 January 2010 R_Z-TF—H—H 1,451,003 140,667 15,904 (1,065,420) 542,154
Issue of shares upon RN B A Rl R 31T
acquisition of subsidiaries &7 (Hi&E33(c)&(d))
(notes 33(c) and (d)) 425,640 - - - 425,640
Issue of convertible bonds ~ RUREEH B A AIF 31T
upon acquisition of AARES (H:E31)
subsidiaries (note 31) - - 859,292 - 859,292
Issue of shares upon RALB A ARERRET

conversion of convertible Bt (B #E33(a) K (b))
bonds (notes 33(a) and

(b)) 161,126 - (175,122) - (13,996)
Net loss for the year AFEEBRBRFE - - - (370,008) (370,008)
At 31 December 2010 and MW -Z—T4F

1 January 2011 +ZA=+—Bk

—T——%—-fF—H 2,037,769 140,667 700,074 (1,435,428) 1,443,082
Issue of shares upon RERTRRESRFET

conversion of convertible Befn (P &E33(a))

bonds (note 33(a)) 12,811 - (5,353) - 7,458
Net loss for the year AFEBRBRFE - - - (18,630) (18,630)
At 31 December 2011 RZB-——-F

+=R=+-H 2,050,580 140,667 694,721 (1,454,058) 1,431,910
Details of the share premium account of the Company RRRRD R ERFIBEHN L
are set out in note 34(a) above. F¥34(a) °
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35.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has a share option scheme, which was adopted
on 6 June 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from that date (the “Scheme”),
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors, independent non-executive directors,
other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services
to the Group, customers of the Group, any person or entity
that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group and any non-controlling shareholder in
the Company’s subsidiaries.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is equivalent to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.

Pursuant to the extraordinary general meeting passed on 8
December 2009, the general scheme limit of the Company's
share option scheme has been reset to 736,104,000 shares,
representing 10% of the Company’s issued share capital on the
date of meeting, with the passing of ordinary resolution, which
allows the Company to grant further options carrying the rights
to subscribe for a maximum of 736,104,000 shares. As at the
date of the approval of these financial statements, no option
has been granted pursuant to the Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1%, of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

35.

URORER ZHE

ARrRRB BRERE ([H8]) &t
REpLOEHARELEXNEERZE
BRBEEZE - R _ZEZE_FRANBED
A BIRRIERTTBURRER] - BAIMZA
HEFFI0FAK —EAR -AEZAER
SRECEARBZES BUFRTE
= AEBEZEMERS AEEZERH
REEER AKREZEET RAKER
TR FRIEMBRMEZEFAAL
S E 88 R AR R BN E A R Z A I FE I AR AR
o

BRI RIBRT BB RFIR 2 W RITE AR
ZEREEB REERARRREMERCD
BTN Z210% °

BER-_SZAE+_ANBRTZR
REAE AARBERESE K
HEIREBE EFHR T A736,104,0008% i
D (EARERITAHARFBHITRAZ
10% ) ' BEE T RAZRERB  AQRT
HE—SELNAE&Z A RET36,104,000
B DR 2 BB AL - M2 S IS R it
B E - BRI R B A B AR A

EE+ZEAREA - REBRETR
AERNZEBREER2RERTZESK
MEE T REARR BN EMNREDET
PR 2 1% © i — TR LA RE 2 B
Pt BIZEHERR KRS EBUS BRI & -
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35.

E——F+"A=+—HILFE

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)
Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors,
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with aggregate value (based on the price

in addition, any share

of the Company's shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders” approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors of the Company, and commences after a certain
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of the offer of the share options or the
expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors of the Company, but may not be less than the higher
of:

(a) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;

(b) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company'’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and

(o) the nominal value of the shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There was no share option granted or exercised in 2011 and
2010. As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group has no
outstanding share option.

Subsequent to the reporting date and up to the date of the
approval of these financial statements, no additional share

options were granted.

35.

Ut AER2@EE &)

ﬁ%ZKQET%%\I%ﬁEAM,%iE%HQ
RABFEZEMBBAZBEBRE BEx
BSEIERNTES 2 Lo T 1E
A+ EAHEARTARAR 2 EEMRE
KBUATESHBEFZEMBEEA
AT (A BB AR - e AR B 2N 2 B B 1 {A] B R
BB 171D 20.1%3k 48 {8 #8%15,000,000
%ﬁwﬁ%ﬁ%&uﬂaﬁzﬁw“ﬂm&ﬁfﬁﬂi%
E)E-RIASEERREAEG LRSERE
HEfE o

RHOBRE 2 2@ AR R D BREESZ

HiBET28H MEEE A - AR A INE T L8
RAKIBT2BENRE R E 2 BEE

ZITEMBARRESERE  HRE K
BEBRFER mEmA BN FEREZ
R O B TR R 10 Sat Bl faim 2 B
(AP EHLEERE)

BREZTEERARRESTRE HED
BERATZE®SH

(a) EHERREERE 2 BHIARRRK
T BAE‘éi“ﬁﬁZHﬁZ miE:

(b) ARBROREEZHRRHBELE
B AT AR 5 B R X2 P2 1T
W&« I

(0) W fn 2 1A °

PR A TR A AW B R
RELEREZEN-

R-B——FR-E—BELEEHN
GEERER R —FR-E—TF
+-AS+— B ARELEYRTEZ
AR 4 -

RBEBMRMBEZSMBRRIAER
Hi BRI LA R OB A

ERERREZRERAT « —T— —FFRi
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 36. ¥HEH
(a) The Sunlight Group () HEEEH
On 10 August 2010, the Group completed the RZZFE—ZZFNATH K&
acquisition of the Sunlight Group through the wholly- EEkERAARE 22BN B
owned subsidiary of the Company, at the consideration ARKERAEBEER KREAF
comprising of cash of HK$70,000,000, the consideration I8 470,000,000/ AFEA
shares with fair value of HK$209,890,000 and the 209,890,000/ L 2 KB XA
convertible bonds with fair value of HK$174,178,000 F{EA174,178,00078 T 2 7] # i
(i.e. CB5 (note 31)). The principal activity of the Sunlight BEH (BARKREFFEFRAILES
Group is the supply of electricity and heat in the PRC. (FF3E31) ) cAEEE 2 FEXEK

RRTESREHE-

Details of net identifiable assets acquired and goodwill WHEZ A #REEFERPEBZHF
are as follows: SmT
2010
HK$'000
—ZT-ZF
FAT
Purchase consideration: BERE:
- Cash -R&e 70,000
— Fair value of shares issued (note 33(c)) —B281TRN A FE (HF33(0)) 209,890
— Fair value of convertible bonds issued —BBTAUBRRESFCAFE
(note 31) (PfF7E31) 174,178
Total purchase consideration BEHERE 454,068
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired W Z ] HREEFEZ A FE (130,702)
Goodwill (note 19) P& (MEE19) 323,366
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 36.

(a)

The Sunlight Group (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
arising from the acquisition as at the date of acquisition
and the corresponding carrying amounts immediately
prior to the acquisition are as follows:

EKa0tm)
(a) FEEE(#)
WHEEEFRES Z AIBREERE

AR B 2 A EA R ZE W
BEEA ZHEEREENT

Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
2010 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
WU 2
~NEE AR A
—E-ZF —E-TF
FH&T FHT
Property, plant and equipment M BB KR (HisE16@))

(note 16(a)) 305,844 305,844
Prepaid land lease payments T L EFKIE (FIsE17)

(note 17) 28,921 28,921
Intangible assets (note 20) wmEE (HiE20) 25,235 -
Prepayments, deposits, other FENFIE - ZE

receivables and other assets H At JE W FRIE I

Hh&E 40,781 40,781
Inventories FE 2,127 2,127
Trade receivables EWE 5 BR1A 11,024 11,024
Pledged bank deposits BEBIRITER 915 915
Cash at banks and in hand RIOTEGFLFERS 116,455 116,455
Trade payables BE SERE (15,916) (15,916)
Bank borrowings RITHE K (31,922) (31,922)
Amounts due to non-controlling  J& 1~ 3F#2 i% I B8 7018

shareholder (75,448) (75,448)
Other payables, accruals and E b RIA

other liabilities JEERIEREMEE (131,047) (131,047)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 32)  IEAEFLIE & & (Ff#E32) (6,309) -

Net assets EEFE
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR AR R A
Net identified assets acquired W2 EHREEFE

Purchase consideration settled in R -_ZZNFUBESLEE

cash in 2009 EERE

Cash at banks and in hand in the B ZKBRRZRITET R
subsidiaries acquired FEHS

Cash inflow on acquisition WHEEIER 2N

270,660 251,734

(139,958)

130,702

(35,000)

116,455

81,455
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a)

The Sunlight Group (Continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition because the cost of
business combination included intangible assets that
do not qualify for separate recognition. No goodwill is
expected to be deductible for tax purpose.

The fair value and the gross amount of trade and other
receivables amount to HK$21,010,000. None of these
receivables were impaired.

Transaction costs of HK$3,468,000 were expensed and
were included in administrative expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

The fair value of the shares issued was based on the
published share price on the acquisition date. The fair
value of convertible bonds was determined by the
income approach.

The Group has elected to measure non-controlling
interests in this acquisition at proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Since the acquisition, the Sunlight Group contributed
revenue and the loss of HK$44,413,000 and
HK$55,290,000 respectively to the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

Had the acquisition been taken place at 1 January
2010, revenue and loss of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2010 would have been approximately
HK$105,006,000 and HK$3,726,000 respectively. The
pro forma information was for illustrative purposes only
and was not necessarily indicative of revenue and results
of the Group that actually would have been achieved
had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2010
nor are they intended to be projection of future results.

36. ¥8¥E06F @)

(a)

FSEEE (&)

BHREFAFRA BRI TEEL
BRER B EE HEBAKE
ELBHE -BHTERESNNR-

B E 5 MR IA R B At R W R 2 1~
1B & #B% 421,010,000/ 7T © 7%
% WOk IR I B RL(E

3,468,000 T Z R K AR EZE
—E-ZTE+_A=+—HIFE
ZITH RS A8 o

E BTG < X FETDREWE A
Bz e A EEE - AT RBES
ZRFEANBAEEE -

AEBEREREREEREEST 27
BREEFELOFERAREZ
IR AR R M

BRBEREAR - BE_F—FF
TZA=+—HLEFE FESHE
AASEREREEREBED R
44,413,000/ 7T }255,290,0007%
Lo

WEEEER =S —TF— A —
B#L #HE—"ZT—ZTF+ -4
=+—HLEFE AEBZHER
&5 18 5 Bl 4 5105,006,0007% 7T &
3,726,000 L fEE ERHEHH
Rz WIEHAMZRESED
RZZ—ZTF—F—AxK2ER
T ANEBEAERES 2 S R E
BN BRERRIRFEE 2B -
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

The China International Group

On 31 December 2010, the Group completed
the acquisition of 100% equity interest in China
International Energy together with its subsidiaries
referred to as the (“China International Group”), at the
consideration comprising of cash of HK$150,000,000,
the promissory notes with fair value of HK$43,854,000,
the consideration shares with fair value of
HK$261,630,000 and the convertible bonds with fair
value of HK$685,114,000 (i.e. CB6 and CB7 (note 31)).
The principal activity of the China International Group is
oil production in the PRC. Details of the operations are
set out in note 38.

Details of net identifiable assets acquired and excess
of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities

36. (&6 m)

(b) FHERES

RZZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H K
& Bl 18 5T Pk WS AR R B B B A
ROGERENBRALAEAHE
BIRR&EE ) 2 2SR AR - RE
£ #8538 £ 150,000,000 7T * A F
{8 /543,854,000 T2 ANE - AF
1B A261,630,0008 7T 2 A B D
N A 18 5685,114,0005 7T 2 7]
B ES (BN AR (EFH 5 B iE
FRABKESFFECIES (K
31))) A BRBBER 2 FBEK
ARPENEEBR BRAEK
TBEPATFESS ©

Wiz Al R B EFE R B 7 1R
HRRBET ZAIHREE -BER
FRABZ RN FFEERBBRAR

over cost are as follows: ZEE BN
2010
HK$'000
—E-2F
FHET
Purchase consideration: BERE:
— Cash paid —BfE® 150,000
— Fair value of promissory notes issued —BEITAEZAFE (HiE30)
(note 30) 43,854
— Fair value of shares issued —BETRH 2T E 261,630
— Fair value of convertible bonds issued —BETIBRRES (AARRKRES
(i.e. CB6) (note 31) ERPES) 2 AFAE (FFEE31) 342,557
— Fair value of convertible bonds (i.e. -~ ES (A RRESSES)
CB7) (note 31 and note (i) below) ZAFAE (B&E31 R T M=) 342,557
Total purchase consideration BEEARE 1,140,598
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired Wz AT #REE FEZ A FE (1,746,868)
Excess of acquirer's interest in the net fair W EEHRUWEE S 2 Al HREE -
value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, BERKABEZATFERES
liabilities and contingent liabilities over BB AN 2 #EE
cost 606,270
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 36. ¥XKE06t @)
(b) The China International Group (b) HEEBRESR &)
(Continued)

WEERMEL ZAIHREERE
BERKRERHZ A FEARERK
BERAIZEEREENT

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
arising from the acquisition as at the date of acquisition
and the corresponding carrying amounts immediately

prior to the acquisition are as follows:

Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
2010 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
WU EER 2
NEE BREE
—E-EF —E-EF
FHT FAET
Property, plant and equipment M BB KRB (EE16(a))

(note 16(a)) 130,483 130,483
Intangible assets (note 20) | & E (MsE20) 2,109,133 5,133
Prepayments, deposits, other TERTFRIE - 1= - H b FERGRIE &

receivables and other assets EMmEE 18,769 18,769
Indemnification assets WMEEE 5,000 -
Trade receivables FEWE 5 iR1AE 12,739 12,739
Cash at banks and in hand RITHEGERFERS 80,117 80,117
Deferred tax assets (note 32) FEFRIEE = (M15E32) 13,064 13,064
Other payables, accruals and H M FE A FRIB - FEETRUE K

other liabilities HhEafE (96,437) (96,437)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 32)  EEFHIBEEE (MizE32) (526,000) -
Net identified assets acquired/ Wy EMREEFE EEFE

net assets 1,746,868 163,868
Purchase consideration settled in R -_ZZNFURSEE 2

cash in 2009 BERE (150,000)
Cash at banks and in hand inthe WEZHB A G ZRTEF N

subsidiaries acquired FHEBES2 80,117
Cash outflow on acquisition s EIEM SN (69,883)
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

The China International Group
(Continued)

Note:

(i) Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, CB7
shall be issued upon the final and absolute dismissal,
striking-out, withdrawal, discharge, release, settlement
or discontinuance of the litigation mentioned in
note 44(b). As there was the undertaking of the
indemnification of the litigation by the vendor, the
whole CB7 was expected to be issued upon the final
and absolute dismissal, striking-out, withdrawal,
discharge, release, settlement or discontinuance of the
litigation.

The excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost arose in the acquisition because
the Group obtained intangible assets arising from the
business combination.

Indemnification assets of HK$5,000,000 were
recognised as there was the undertaking of the
indemnification of the litigation by the vendor. The
amount was calculated based on the possible outcome
of the litigation at the date of acquisition (note 44(b)).

The fair value and the gross amount of trade and other
receivables amounted to HK$30,233,000. None of these
receivables were impaired.

Transaction costs of HK$3,517,000 were expensed and
were included in administrative expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

The fair value of the shares issued was based on the
published share price on the acquisition date. The fair
value of convertible bonds was determined by the
income approach. The fair value of promissory notes
was calculated at the discounted borrowing rate of
8.99% per annum.

36. (&6 m)

(b)

FEERESR &)

P GE

(i) IR E B e AR A B R
FE44(b)FT il 2 FF FA SR A8 I 58
Rk HBR B BIT®
B - BRR SR AR IE 18 6 B 1T A
BESBELIESF - BREA
BFAELBREREERE T
BREHFECHREFEHBER
FARKRTERR  HBR -
8- BT BRRR - RORSAR IE1R

2ERELT

HRARBESEBEHMELLZ
BRVEE SERBBEESRWES
EHERKBET ZAIBREE BE
RERBEZ AP REESBBNX
Ao

HREFHRFRIELBERE
A BB H 585,000,000 T
BEE-ZSBEDRENKEAR
HFaz ReE RmEE (M
44(b) ) °

JEUE 5 BRTE K B A fEUNGRIE 2 A
B N 42%8 530,233,000 7T © %
LW RIBI ERE -

3,517,0008 L 2 R B KX ARE =
—E-TEFE+-A=t+—HIEE
ZITBASY AL -

BTG 2 A FETDRBWER
HZ B RMEEE - ATARES
ZRFENBNEETE - ARZ A
FEDREEREREREFL.99%
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

The China International Group
(Continued)

Since the acquisition, no revenue and results was
contributed by the China International Group for the
year ended 31 December 2010 as the acquisition was
completed on 31 December 2010.

Had the acquisition been taken place at 1 January
2010, the revenue and the profit of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2010 would have been
approximately HK$51,717,000 and HK$4,058,000
respectively. The pro forma information was for
illustrative purposes only and was not necessarily
indicative of revenue and results of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2010 nor are they
intended to be projection of future results.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the acquisitions of the above
subsidiaries is as follows:

36. ¥8¥E06F @)

(b)

(c)

FEERESR (&)

HRAKEBEEERN T —ZTF+=
A=+—H=K thakESEN
K HEZZE-TEF+ZA=1+—
BIEFE - BB & B & A AN
SEEREMNERERES-

WRBEEBER_-_E—FF— A —
A#LE HE2_T—ZTF+_-A
=t HBLEFE AEBEZRER
i K92 Bl 49 &51,717,00078 7T &
4,058,000 Lo 5= A RHE R
BHzA - WIEFHAMZKESED
R_E—ZTF—A—HERZER
T NEB A BERES 2 Wk
BN EERARIRELE ZTBA -

BERB LANBARZHEERR
TFERBRAFEITET

2010

HK$'000

—E-EF

FHET

Total consideration in cash paid in 2010 REZZE-—ZTEIN2RERELE -

Cash at bank and in hand acquired WEZRTEFLRFERS

— The Sunlight Group —AEL£E 116,455

— The China International Group —HPEBEEREE 80,117
Net cash inflows in respect of the BRAKEWNBAR 2RSS RAFRE

acquisitions of subsidiaries 196,572

BE-FT-—£T-A=t-ALEE:
A2 8 B AE ST A 0 o

There was no business combination occurred for the year ended
31 December 2011.
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37.

DE-CONSOLIDATING SUBSIDIARIES

As described in notes 3(a)(ii) and 3(a)(iii), the board of directors
of the Company considered that the Group no longer had the
power to exercise its rights as the shareholder and thus had
lost control over the assets and operations and was unable
to exercise control over the financial and operating policy
decisions of QHFSMI and IMFSMI. As a consequence, the
Group had been unable to obtain the financial information of
QHFSMI and IMFSMI since 2010. The directors of the Company
considered that the Group had lost its control to govern
the financial and operating policies of QHFSMI and IMFSMI
with effect from 1 January 2010. Accordingly, the financial
statements of QHFSMI and IMFSMI were de-consolidated with
effect from 1 January 2010, and the loss arising from loss of
controls over QHFSMI’s and IMFSMI’s assets amounting to
HK$348,966,000 was recognised in 2010.

Details of net assets attributable to QHFSMI and IMFSMI as at 1
January 2010 are set out below:

MEBARFTBHEEAR

70 BT 5E3(@) () A 3(a) (i FT it - KA Al E =
ERAE AEBTHBARTEREEARE
RN THERREHSERERAR S
REZEERKCE ZRGIE  WELHE
ERBRRAR B FRIRZ IS R EREIT
FEEHE A AEEEELANESE
HREFAZHERIREED = T*fiiZWﬁ
BR-ARBEERE AT —TF—
H—Eﬁ'$%l5%£ﬁé%@m%&
NER SRR KA & RK 2 1= HIHE - A
I SEREEARHHRE L BERET
BHGEAAR R-_Z—ZTF—-F—B#£4
WMo REBBRBERANEOHRREEZIE
%I 4 BT EE AE 2 /55 18348,966,00078 7T B
—E—TEER

R-Z-ZTF-A-BFEERRNARA
HREHEEFEZFBHINGT:

2010
HK$'000
—E-TF
FHT
Net assets de-consolidated of: THEAEARZEESFE:

Property, plant and equipment (note 16(a)) M BE RERE (WiE16@)) 3,578
Exploration and evaluation assets B KT fh B E 38,562
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AN REIE 12 e R E M EYKRIA 71
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeZHEEEB 75
Deposits received, other payables and accruals BRI ® « b E T8 R EETFIA (19,980)
22,306
Goodwill (note 19) & (MEE19) 327,632
349,938

Release of exchange reserve on de-consolidating THEEAAENBRARZEL FHED
subsidiaries (972)
Loss on de-consolidating subsidiaries (note 11) WEARTBLGEAE AR ZERE (KHiE11) 348,966
Cash outflow on de-consolidating subsidiaries MERARTBEAEARZRERE (75)
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38.

OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT -
SONGLIAO CONTRACT

In August 2007, China Era entered into an oil production
sharing contract (the “Songliao Contract”) with China National
Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC") to develop and produce crude
oil in Liangjing Block on Songliao Basin in Jilin, the PRC. CNPC
is a state-owned company established in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Songliao Contract signed in August 2007,
China Era agrees to provide funds and apply its advanced
technology and managerial experience to cooperate with CNPC
for the development and production of crude oil in Liangjing
Block on Songliao Basin in lJilin, the PRC. The maximum term
of the Songliao Contract is 30 years from 1 December 2007,
unless extended due to the production period.

China Era bears all costs required for the evaluation operations
and development operations. The operating costs incurred
shall be paid by CNPC and China Era in accordance with 51%
and 49% respectively. However, CNPC's portion of operating
costs shall be advanced by China Era and recovered from the
production of crude oil.

Under the terms of the Songliao Contract, the evaluation costs,
development costs and operating costs are to be recovered
according to a mechanism of cost recovery oil and investment
recovery oil.
taxes and royalty that might apply in the PRC, is share oil,
which is apportioned between 51% by CNPC and 49% by
China Era.

Remaining oil, after cost recovery, all applicable

In December 2009, the approval of Overall Development
Program from National Development and Reform Commission
has been obtained. The technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting oil are demonstrated. CNPC is the holder
of oil exploitation licence.

38.

EREBIREN-NEEN
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38. OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT -

SONGLIAO CONTRACT (continued)

Set out below is the summary of assets, liabilities and results for
the year recognised in the consolidated financial statements in
relation to the Group's interest in the Songliao Contract:

(a)

(b)

(c)

38.

EHEBIREN -—NRESH
(4&)

AT IR A B 5K P L AN SR BNR
BANIERERZAFREZEE Af
REBEZHBE:

Result for the year () FEXS&
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
e —T-%F
FB T
Revenue Wz 127,544 -
Other income HEA 10,450 -
Expenses i3 (90,514) =
Profit before income tax B P15 B4 Al A 47,480 =
Income tax expense FRSHLF (5,958) =
Profit for the year NG Z i A 41,522 -
Assets and liabilities (b) EERAE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
=t s
FHET FET
Property, plant and equipment WME - WEREE 231,434 127,360
Intangible assets mVEE 5,280 5,133
Other non-current assets Ht3emehEE 7,491 13,064
Current assets MBEE 60,330 46,125
Current liabilities wBEE (84,207) (67,830)
Non-current liabilities EREBAE (67,608) (22,778)
Net assets EEFE 152,720 101,074
Commitments (o) A
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
e e L
FER FHT
Capital commitments: B
Contracted but not provided for B &I #11B KRR ETIREE
in respect of equipment 629 3,395
Other commitments: b A
Contracted but not provided for BB RMERE &
in respect of administrative fee BB RS
and training fee 58,321 62,897
58,950 66,292
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39.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
Group
At 31 December 2011, the Group had total future minimum

lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease falling
due as follows:

39.

RERNEE

REHE

RZZE——F+_H=+—8B FEER
TOIFHRARER2 TR BELERN 2R

R LHBEENKERMAT

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

S —z-%5

FERT FHET

Within one year —FR 1,876 2,006
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FFEEFRF (BREEMTE) 970 1,768
After five years fF & 1,166 1,128
4,012 4,902

The Group leased certain leasehold land and buildings under REERBEEHEOERETHEHE TR

operating leases. The leases ran for an initial period of two
to thirteen years, with an option to renew the lease and
renegotiate the terms at expiry date or at dates as mutually
agreed between the Group and respective landlords/lessors.
None of the leases included contingent rentals.

Company

The Company did not have any significant lease commitments
as at 31 December 2010 and 2011.

BF - 2EZHONTR/AMET=F"7
REBASASEEAHET HHEAKL
REE A EEERRBIBOGR -

ZEROTEEAAEE -

NN

ARFANR_F-FFR-_F——F+=H
St BuEEMEAMEOEE-
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40.

41.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 40. BEAXRRH AR
Group xE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E-TF
FHET FHET
Capital commitments: B
Contracted but not provided for in ERTAER R B R B
respect of equipment 3,038 4,965
Other commitments: E A FHE
Contracted but not provided for in BT ERSEEREE RFIE
respect of administrative fees and SHRRME
training fees 58,321 62,897
61,359 67,862
Company NN

The Company does not have any significant capital and other
commitments as at 31 December 2010 and 2011.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the balances and transactions with related parties
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions with its related parties during the
year:

Compensation of key management
personnel

Included in staff costs are key management personnel
compensation (including directors’ emoluments) and comprises
the following categories:

41.

ARFAR-Z—FFR-F——F+-A
S+ BAMEAERERRE AR

BEALRS
BUBRRFARE 2 AR REBEALY

RGN FR - AEBMBEEBFEALEE
MRS :

TEEEAEBHE

IBEEBABRZHE(BREEME) D
FRABIARA BFEIATER:

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

—2——F —TTF

FHET FAT

Short-term employee benefits EHEERA 4,778 3,539
Contribution to retirement benefit RKIE FFT &) 2 R

scheme 42 59

4,820 3,598
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42.

E——F+t-A=+—RLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group does not have written financial risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors meets

periodically to analyse and formulate strategies to manage

the Group’s exposure to credit risk, market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk.
Generally, the Group employs conservative strategies on its risk
management. The Group’s exposure to market risk is kept at a
minimum level. The Group has not used any derivatives or other

instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or

issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group's
exposure to credit risk mainly arises from granting credit
to customers in the ordinary course of its operations and
its investing activities.

The carrying amounts of these financial assets presented
in the statement of financial position are net of
impairment losses, if any. The Group minimises its
exposure to the credit risk by rigorously selecting the
counterparties, performing ongoing credit evaluation
on the financial conditions of its debtors and tightly
monitoring the ageing of the receivables. Follow-
up actions are taken in case of overdue balances on
an ongoing basis. In addition, management monitors
and reviews the recoverable amount of the receivables
individually or collectively at each reporting date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

42.

B R EE

7 55 BN A% 1) 5T 25 T B S T B B ISR I
Eol-AM E=eeEHRITEH D
R GIETBR BB AR EB T AE 2 EER
B ~ Tz f (B4 4 R Jaml e B ) o e B )
KrgEcRk -—Kms ~EESH
HE 2 BIRRA— R 2 RE  1Ei i
A& B AR 2 % A IR R R R K F
REEWEEREAITELIASHEMTA
ETE ANEEWEFERBETITES
MIANEEERSZ

(a) EERB

EERREERITEZHT IRk
BTERESRTIAEGRZEEM
SIBMAKERIMBRRZER -
AEEZEERREIERENEA

BEBEERETRTEPZEER
REREER-

ZEMBEENYBHRRKRENNZ
FEHECHBREEBE(NE) -
AEBEEBBREREHF 7 WH
BEBAZHBRAETHEEE
?ﬁ'%&%ﬁ%?FWMEZE
'KK&fﬁﬁE%%WZZT
o AN B B BRER B 4B R 15 e UK
@@%m%wWNEEE ﬂx
S A HE R S R B g R
%ﬁEZTWEéﬁ’ﬁ%%TT
W m & JEEH B 2 BB RS -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The default risk of the industry in which customers
operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent. As at 31 December 2011, the Group
has a certain concentration of credit risk as 40% and
77% of the total receivables was due from the Group's
largest trade debtor and the three largest trade debtors
respectively.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents, is also limited because almost all the
Group's cash and cash equivalents are deposited with
major banks located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

As the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy counterparties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk
to a desirable level.

42.

HEERER &)

(a) EERB (&)
ot REUR 5 B 1 TR b e UK 2 IE T
TOHRAERETREECEY

BEHSHETENEEN G 1E
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EHRFMAERER AEEREY
Zﬁ%ﬂ CFESRREL MR
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RESEFRAR=ZZEAESER
/\o

AEBzABERE MRS EEHE
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42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The sales and purchases of the Group are predominantly
in US$, RMB and HK$. Exposures to currency exchange
rates arise from certain of the Group’s cash and bank
balances, other receivables and other payables which
are denominated in US$ and RMB respectively. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments
to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group reviews
its foreign currency exposures regularly and does not
consider its foreign exchange risk to be significant.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
reporting date to foreign currency risk from the above
stated items denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of relevant group companies.

42.

MREMRERE &)

(b)

S EE L B

ARBZEBERFERNUET A
RERBITIIE SNERRKE AR
SEDRINETRARBIIEZE
THRERRTET  EMEEFR
Ro H Al JE A5 R IR AN = (B 30 K 16
D74 & B T B B OME R - A
SEERRTEIMNERR X RA
HIMNER BRI FEAK -

TRFFVNNIwE R HAAEE LR
BiREHAEBE AR 2T K LAS
Z B DA 2 SNE E R

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
S —z-T4
FET FHT
Cash and cash equivalents ETIEZ2Re KRS EHEER
denominated in US$ 432 422

By assessing foreign currency risk on other receivables
and payables, the effect arising from a reasonably
possible change in the exchange rates of HK$ against
US$ and RMB in the next twelve months was not
material to the loss for the year and accumulated losses
at each of the reporting date, on the basis that all other
variables remain constant.

AR A L At B W R OR I B AN IR
SMNERR - WRERAAEBEER
BAE KRR+ —EAETHET
RARBZIEXTRABHESHES
TEHEAZBRNRS®EBH
ZRFEBRLTEK-
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42.

(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) ~ 42. BIEEBREE ()
Interest rate risk (o REmEPB
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk for changes INER B A N R B B PR AE 2 I R R,
in interest rates relates primarily to the Group's floating SEEHAEE B EREH-
interest rate borrowings. The Group has not used any ANER B W AR REMPTEA L E
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest HF KRR AT EIREHFI &
rate risk. However, management monitors interest rate R EITEIE W EERZEEY
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest S B R A 2R g o
rate exposure should the need arise.
Sensitivity analysis BRBE T
The Group is exposed to changes in market interest AEEZRITIRE RRITEFKAT
rates through its cash at banks, and bank borrowings, B A & 5t 8 - & M ER 5 5 & 2
which are subject to variable interest rates. e R g o
The following table indicates the approximate change TRINEANEE ZBRFAERE (B
in the Group's (loss)/profit after income tax and B)/ BA R EBHEERFRAE
accumulated losses in response to reasonably possible g (AEERREEBEAR
changes in the interest rate, to which the Group has FERRR) MEEZBOES -
significant exposure at the reporting date.
2011 2010
S —z-2f
Effect on loss Effect on profit
after income after income
Increase/ tax and Increase/ tax and
(decrease) in accumulated (decrease) in accumulated
interest rate losses interest rate losses
HK$'000 HK$'000
HRFABHE HERFEHE
BER i M B
AEEH/ RitE#E FEEH/ 2 ER
(FH) o (TH) pr
TERT FHET
Cash at banks RITIR S 0.1% 70 0.1% 89
Cash at banks RITHE (0.1%) (70) (0.1%) (89)
Bank borrowings IRITER 0.1% 9) 0.1% (25)
Bank borrowings IRITE (0.1%) 9 (0.1%) 25
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rate had occurred
at the reporting date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 0.1%
increase/decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.

Fair values

The fair values of the Group’s current financial assets
and liabilities are not materially different from their
carrying amount because of the immediate or short-
term maturity. The fair values of non-current liabilities
were not disclosed because their carrying value is not
materially different from their fair value.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not
able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in
respect of settlement of its financial obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management.

The Group maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents assessed as adequate by management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies
on internally generated funding and borrowings as
significant sources of liquidity.

42.

MREMRERE &)

(c)

(d)

(e)

FZ=REk &)
GBS (4E)

SRR E D AT TR R R R R
BHERAEEHMETE WEEH
RZBEGEZHENTEERTA
TR 2 FIEERF o EF T
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FF{EZ st - BRI IIERZ
T —TFEREEED-

AFE
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AR EHARE - HRIERBE
BzHREEEEATFTELEEX
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cContinued) 42. BIEERER (&)
(e) Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) "BEELRR (&)

AEBRARBRES O MEERR
FRIERBEB Mz BEEDA

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities as at the reporting dates, based

on the contractual undiscounted payments, were as BRI -
follows:
2011
g%
Group AEE Within 6 to
6 months 12 months 1 to 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
18 A B ANE+=EA —25F
FHERT FHERT FHERT
Trade payables ERE 5RIA 12,017 - -
Other payables and H b FE A FRIB K
accruals FE &t IR 130,596 - -
Amount due to non- JE A JE 45 AR AR R SR8
controlling shareholder - 4,074 9,760
Bank borrowings RITHER 12,313 = =
Other borrowings HibER 2,196 - 126,988
Promissory notes = - - 30,900
Convertible bonds GIEYSEES - 15,287 414
157,122 19,361 168,062
2010
—E-TF
Group rEE Within 6 to
6 months 12 months 1to 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
NEA KA ~NE+ZM@A —ERF
F&T FHET FHT
Trade payables ENESERE 18,851 - -
Other payables and H A FE A 5RI8 R
accruals FEETFRIA 124,687 - -
Amount due to non- JFE A I AR AR SR SR 1E
controlling shareholder 11,570 - -
Bank borrowings RITHERK 21,243 - 12,910
Other borrowings HAnfE R 8,485 - 90,655
Promissory notes KE - - 52,000
Convertible bonds AR E % - - 24,344
184,836 - 179,909
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42. BIERER (&)

(e) Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) RBELEAM (&)
2011
=
Company AAT Within 6 to
6 months 12 months 1 to 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AMEA MR AE+=fA ~EHfF
FET FTERT FERT
Other payables and H b B 1< 5RIB K FEET BB
accruals 922 - -
Convertible bonds AR &5 - 15,287 414
Amount due to a FES — M B A R KB
subsidiary 23,696 - -
24,618 15,287 414
2010
—T-EF
Company KRAF] Within 6 to
6 months 12 months 1to 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7~ E A AR NETZ@EA —ZERF
FHET FHET FET
Other payables and H b B~ 5RIB R FE T BB
accruals 3,793 - -
Convertible bonds AR E S - - 24,344
3,793 - 24,344
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42.

E——F+"A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(f)

Summary of financial assets and
liabilities by category

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities as recognised as at 31 December 2011
and 2010 are categorised as follows. See notes 3(p)
and 3(t) for explanations about how the categorisation
of financial instruments affects their subsequent

42.

KRR ER &)

(f) BOBEADZHMBEER

REME

AEER_F——FR_T-FTF
TZA=T—R#ER ZBMW,\F
BEREES T - F MK
’“*EZZDHT/E,Jéqu;ﬁI?ﬁuE
3(p) 302 A FE -

measurement.
Group Company
rEE b NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g% | -z 35 | —®8——& | -T-TF
FAR FRT FHR FAT
Financial assets MBEE
Loans and receivables ETA}SZFE W K IE
- Cash at banks and in hand —RT&GFERFERS 97,325 146,135 4,788 15,564
- Pledged bank deposits *Eﬁ?ﬁiﬁifﬂ?m 976 945 -
— Trade receivables —EWE HERE 31,326 16,617 = -
- Amount due from non- — U SE 7R AR A% R FRE
controlling shareholder - 6,080 - -
— Other receivables H A JEY IR 36,117 37,532 = -
— Indemnification assets §Eﬁ1§§ 14,040 5,000 = -
— Due from subsidiaries — e K B R RIFRIE - - 1,600,089 1,585,239
179,784 212,309 1,604,877 1,600,803
Group Company
AEH NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB——F —E—ZF —E——F —ET—ZF
FHET FAET FExT FAT
Financial liabilities BHaE
Current TE
Trade payables JEB S8R 12,017 18,851 - -
Other payables and accruals — E i JE~ 7008 & & 5+ 2008 130,596 124,687 922 3,793
Amount due to non-controlling J& < 3E 42 % A% 3 50 15
shareholder 4,074 11,570 - -
Bank borrowings WITER 12,200 21,133 - -
Other borrowings HAib &3 2,196 8,394 = -
Convertible bonds R ES 14,129 - 14,129 -
Non-current ¥ RE
Bank borrowings RITHER - 11,806 = -
Other borrowings H o {8 5K 113,652 87,010 = -
Promissory notes RE 28,707 43,865 -
Convertible bonds ARRES 355 20,292 355 20,292
Amount due to a subsidiary T — B QD 5 E - - 23,696 -
Amount due to non-controlling JES FEIR & i 8 518
shareholder 8,401 - - -
326,327 347,608 39,102 24,085
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43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 43. EXER

The Group's objectives when managing capital are: AEBEZEARERERRS:

(a) To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going (a) RERNEEEENEEERFEL
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and BN R B AR RS R E R R
benefits for stakeholders; il

(b) To support the Group's stability and growth; and (b) TREASERELEERER &

(c) To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the (c) BAEBREERANZEERERE
Group's risk management capability. bl

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its AEBETHEBRSLEBELERNLE

capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and B EREAGEERRREHRERRE

shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital M- ZREHAERAEERKEARTE

requirements of the Group. The Group currently does not ko B AT 2N 5 [ 3 AR B AN (A 1 ZCAR B

adopt any formal dividend policy. Management regards total BE-REAREREMNME EEERE

equity less equity component of convertible bond as capital, for R B A RRESERI D RIEER-
capital management purpose. The amount of capital as at 31 RZE——F+ZA=+—HZE&AX=S

December 2011 amounted to approximately HK$1,571,099,000 BE49/1,571,099,0008 L (=T —ZF ¢

(2010: HK$1,592,193,000), which management considers as 1,592,193,000/ 7T ) « &£ & EFE T & A B

optimal having considered the projected capital expenditures T REARKEEKS BEREERREH

and the forecast strategic investment opportunities. SREEEREKTF-
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44. LITIGATIONS

(a)

Capital contribution to IMFSMI

The Group's subsidiary, namely IMFSMI was established
since 2007 and its capital had not yet been fully paid up
since then. IMFSMI (acted under the legal representative
and the director of IMFSMI, Ms Leung) required its
immediate holding company, namely HKFSMIH to make
capital contribution of HK$30 million to IMFSMI (the
“Capital Contribution”), in accordance with IMFSMI’s
articles of association. In September 2009, IMFSMI
acted as plaintiff and undertook legal action against
HKFSMIH for the Capital Contribution. In March 2010,
the Company’s PRC counsel replied to the court in Inner
Mongolia that

(i) The plaintiff (i.e. IMFSMI) does not possess the
litigation capacity as the business license of
IMFSMI had already expired on 30 April 2009.

(ii) The plaintiff does not have any rights to
undertake the litigation as there are no laws
in the PRC to enable a company to sue its
equity holders who have not made their capital
contribution.

(iii) The certificate of approval for IMFSMI was invalid
and the 2009 annual statutory examination in
the PRC had not been fulfilled.

(iv) After taking into account the above

considerations, the PRC counsel advised that

the business licence of IMFSMI should be firstly
cancelled. As such, the Capital Contribution may
not be necessary.

The court in Inner Mongolia had dismissed the litigation
in April 2010 and subsequently the plaintiff appealed
against the decision. In February 2011, the Group
received a letter from the court in Inner Mongolia that
IMFSMI has withdrawn the litigation.
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44, LITIGATIONS (continued)

(b)

Tarim Basin

In September 2009, an independent party (the
“Plaintiff”) undertook a legal action against and filed
a claim to a group of three parties. These three parties
are referred to as the “First Defendant”, the “Second
Defendant” (i.e. China Era) and the “Third Defendant”
(collectively referred to as the “Defendants”). The First
Defendant was an ex-director of China Era and the Third
Defendant was a related company of First Defendant as
the First Defendant was a director of both China Era and
the Third Defendant at that time.

Based on the statement of claims, the Plaintiff alleged
that China Era entered into an agreement in May
2007 with the Plaintiff relating to a production sharing
agreement for an exploration and exploitation project
that related to an oilfield located at the North and
South Kashi Blocks on Tarim Basin in Xinjiang, the
PRC. The Plaintiff further alleged that a tender was
submitted in June 2007 for the North and South Kashi
Blocks on Tarim Basin (the “Tender”) but was rejected
by PetroChina Company Limited for political reason
only. The contract for the North Kashi Block on Tarim
Basin was subsequently awarded to the Third Defendant
in December 2008 (the “Kashi Contract”). The
Plaintiff alleged that the Tender contained confidential
information beneficially belonging to the Plaintiff which
was disclosed by China Era to the Third Defendant
to secure the Kashi Contract to the exclusion of the
Plaintiff,
fiduciary duties owed to the Plaintiff.

in breach of its duty of confidence and/or

44.

Ell_\lf
:UDI'

(&)
BEKRAM

REZEZNFAA —BBILA
(TREDH=FHBEETE
VRERR-FRA=TER[IE—
®E [R-wE] (BDFBEFEK)
RIE=%&] (BEARIKRSE]) -

—RERTEFRZ—%ME
= MAF-—HEERSTEFNK
RE-REZES AUFE=RSE
RE—REZ—HBEERF -

REPFRREE REHERETESF
KRBT FRABRER L —
i AR B BB B E
HEARRMZ RAILR 58 KRR
ZMMEMET 2 — RN B R K
RIERZEENKH# - REE—
FHEBR _ZTLFRAREENR
Az B R KR R R 2 AR
E(®EE]) HERBORE AN
WP BELARARKODBRARIE
BEIE-BERIBEEARAM R
EREONR_ZENET_ART
E=wE (BTN  -REHE
MEEHEREEERAIHETE
£ e B FR RS =S REZ
FREZER NEBIBRREZBER
TEHEBETAH EREREZIF
REARAREEE-

166 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2011



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE=—ZT——F +—A=1T—HILFE

44. LITIGATIONS (continued)

(b)

Tarim Basin (Continued)

The Defendants filed defence on 14 December 2009
where the Defendants denied the claim made by the
Plaintiff.

Had the Defendants lost the legal claim, based on the
advices of the legal representatives of the Defendants
in November 2009, January 2010 and December 2010,
the amount to be claimed by the Plaintiff will be
determined with reference to the amount that would
have been charged by a consultant who can secure
the same information in relation to the Kashi Contract.
Accordingly, the legal representatives of the Defendants
advised China Era that the amount to be claimed is
no more than HK$5,000,000. There is the undertaking
of the indemnification of the litigation by the vendor
of the China International Energy. Accordingly, the
indemnification assets of HK$5,000,000 and the
provision for legal claims of HK$5,000,000 have been
provided in the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2010.

On 20 December 2011, the Plaintiff and the Defendants
entered into a settlement agreement in which the
Defendants agreed to pay a settlement sum of
US$1,800,000 (approximately HK$14,040,000) to the
Plaintiff and the Plaintiff agreed to discontinue the claim
by filing a consent order to the Court after receiving the
settlement sum. Accordingly, the indemnification assets
of HK$14,040,000 and the provision for legal claims
of HK$14,040,000 have been provided in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011. On 4
January 2012, the Plaintiff filed the consent order with
the Defendants’ consent to the Court.
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45. MATERIAL NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Conversion of convertible bonds

During the year, 20,079,000 new ordinary shares
in aggregate were issued at the conversion price of
HK$0.508 (as adjusted) per share to bond holders
upon the conversion of CB1. As a result, there was
an increase in share capital and share premium of
HK$201,000 and HK$12,811,000 respectively.

Assignment of bank and other
borrowings

During the year, the Group entered into the assignment
of borrowings agreements with one of the non-
controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and the lenders.
Both parties agreed that the bank and other borrowings
amounting to HK$15,738,000 in aggregate were
unconditionally assigned from the Group to this non-
controlling shareholder. The amounts of HK$9,443,000
and HK$6,295,000 was credited to capital reserve and
non-controlling interests in equity respectively.

45. EXRFBEERF

(a)

(b)
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